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CORPORATE PROFILE AND CORPORATE
INFORMATION

LTSN RAFEH

HL Technology Group Limited (the “Company”, “our” or “we”, together  SHERHTEBAR A A * (AT ] ~ [FHFIEY Ikl F
with all its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is a services and products provider 1] - ERIHAAENBARSGHE AEE ) 22 HEBE
for the global communication system and consumer electronics markets. R4 NMHEEFMIHHRSESNERIELIER - NEE T
The Group is mainly engaged in designs, development and provision of ~ Z{ =R~ AR NMIEHBERS - UNREREES
communication system and manufacture and sale of signal transmission {555 {&E 8 KB E R - ARATHRMG ([’RH HRZE
and connectivity products. Shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were —ZHF+— A+ XHEAXEEBHARZSMER AR
first listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong  ([B#zZAT ) FAREMNE £ -

Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 16 November 2010.
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CORPORATE PROFILE AND CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
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CHAIRMAN’'S STATEMENT

ERHE

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

The global economy continued to expand throughout 2015 at a moderate
and uneven pace as the United States and Europe were recovering from
the economic recession. At the same time, some developing countries
such as China has also undergone a slow economic growth with GDP
growth slowed to approximately 6.8%. With this unstable economic
environment, the investors hesitated to invest in the market and therefore,
some enterprises deferred their business plans for development in the past
year.

The performance of the communication system segment of the Group
has been affected by the weakening economy and the continuous
intense competition in the telecommunications industry which resulted in
significant decreases in the revenue and the profit of the Group in 2015.

In order to keep up the growth engine, the Company decides to broaden
its offering for Business to Business (“B2B") market with a vertical
integrated solution of network system integration and mobile internet
software of enterprise Office Automation (“OA") to fulfill the tremendous
demand resulted from “Internet Plus” plan which was put forward by
China Premier Li Kegiang in March of 2015.

As a result, the Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with a third party to acquire 75% equity interest in the issued share
capital of Fortune Grace Management Limited (“Fortune Grace"”) at a total
consideration of HK$450.0 million on 6 November 2015. Fortune Grace
has interest in Wafer Systems Limited, which is principally engaged in the
business of network system integration, including network infrastructure
solutions, network professional services and mobile internet software of
OA as well as integrated solutions such as Smart Office Suite (the “Newly
Acquired Business”). The acquisition of Fortune Grace was completed on
13 November 2015.

By this acquisition, the Company is not only able to further enrich its
portfolio but also to strengthen the Group’s overall operating synergy
together with existing business. Most importantly, this move is able to
enlarge our customer base, leading to potential revenue growth in the
following years.

As the traditional telecommunications industry is getting more and
more competitive, business of mobile terminal products with the three
major telecommunications operators in China has been under intense
competitive pressure.

ES R AT
BEEEBABMEBRRPER - 2REER =T
—HFRFERN - TS RIER « SRR

B0 B R BRI AR IE R AR R R - pilan
TR EANEEREEREREZEKRL6.8% © L

W%ﬁm%$%mFﬁT'&§%%&émeﬁ*T
B REEFRHEREF RS -

AEEBERADPRAZLCERBLBEMITERF
BEIRTE  SRAKE T —RAFWaE s
KU T ©

RRTBERE ) ARBRAEBAER/EEH X
(IB2B )G ERES - BHEMEBEREEN
HABREMATREECERRZESHL(RAEED
L DB B ERAET - NPT EIER =
E-RF=AREGN EBE+ FFEMELNEAR

At - RZZE—HF+T—ARA  ARAHEE=FH
RIS EE W - AU Fortune Grace Management
Limited ([ Fortune Grace |) B 3 /TR AN 2 75% & i -
BB AA50.08 8B T ° Fortune Gracel A B % &
SER QB HER - EHEE%%@%? MESES -
PREMABERESEATR  RESERBERAE
A E{bH B) B B4 EEMEFJ//USZNT/\%%?%EW PUESE
PAE 1 (Smart Office Suite) ([ FTEE A ZETE |) o WEE
Fortune Grace A —ZE—RF+—A+=H%K °

BRZWESEE  ARATERENE-—FPEEHA
B BRBR(CARBEERRAEBHERKEEHRX
e REENR  IRIBEARMOTFPER - AR
X%&i’%x BERWEIER -

HAEREMTENHT BB - BPE=KEH
LERNBDRBREREE —EAIRABFES -



HL Technology Group Limited BLHRHE EEER A 7

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEHE (&)

In order to improve liquidity of the Group and to reallocate the Group’s
resources to research and development and sales and marketing of
network system integration business of Enterprise Private Network so
that the Group is able to focus on the businesses with better prospects
and profitability, on 4 December and 31 December 2015, IR
WG A R A (“Shenyang New Postcom Co., Ltd*”, “Shenyang
New Postcom”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into sale and purchase agreements with independent third parties
to dispose of motor vehicles, equipment and properties at a total cash
consideration of RMB100.0 million and intangible assets at a total cash
consideration of RMB150.0 million respectively.

As for the signal transmission and connectivity products, they recorded
a substantial loss during the first half of 2015 due to the overall decline
and intense competition in the consumer electronics industry. The board
(the “Board") of the directors (the “Directors”) decided to dispose of the
business of manufacture and sale of traditional signal transmission and
connectivity products for the purpose of group restructuring. Therefore,
on 28 April 2015, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with a company owned by Mr. Chi Shaolin (“Mr. Chi"”), a
Director (resigned on 29 October 2015) and a substantial Shareholder
(ceased to be a Shareholder on 8 December 2015), to dispose of the
entire share capital of Honglin International Limited (together with its
subsidiaries referred to as “Honglin International”) at a cash consideration
of approximately HK$232.8 million. The disposal of Honglin International
was completed on 30 June 2015 and each of the members of Honglin
International ceased to be the subsidiaries of the Company.

Upon the completion of the disposal of Honglin International, the
Company does not have any business operations in Weihai and the
properties there have been left idle and leased out. To improve the
liquidity of the Group and focus more on those businesses with better
prospects and profitability, on 8 July 2015, the Company entered into a
sale and purchase agreement to dispose of 100% equity interest in &
TR TSR A RN F (“Weihaishi Yubo Wire & Cable Technology
Co., Ltd.*", "Weihai Yubo") with an independent third party at a
cash consideration of RMB65.0 million. The disposal of Weihai Yubo
was completed on 27 October 2015 and Weihai Yubo ceased to be a
subsidiary of the Company.

Upon the completion of a series of acquisition and disposal, the major
product lines and services of the Group are in the area of provision of
network communication devices and systems, network system integration
of Enterprise Private Network and mobile internet office software
solutions.

*  The English names are for identification purpose only

AREAEENRBESHRRARBEAEEBEREND
REREREEREECEIMNPRAGELSE
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NEIREREARBISO.OEETHEEREE -
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEHE (&)

Throughout the year, the Company made its efforts in (i) enforcing and
expanding the existing product portfolio and services to improve the
overall sustainable profitability through acquisition; (ii) disposing the
underperforming business of the Group to improve the overall liquidity of
the Group and allocating more resources into the business with stronger
profitability and better prospects; (iii) making betterments on sales and
marketing, utilising internal resources and business networks to explore
new market segment, broadening our customer base and improving the
overall sustainable profitability; and (iv) adopting measures to facilitate
cost reduction and to improve our organisational and operational
efficiencies.

The Group recorded a total revenue from its continuing operations
of approximately RMB841.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2015, representing a decrease of approximately RMB552.4 million, or
approximately 39.6% as compared to the revenue of approximately
RMB1,393.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2014. The decrease
was mainly attributable to the fact that the revenue from the ordinary
business decreased by approximately RMB619.4 million, or approximately
44.4% as compared to that for the year ended 31 December 2014, mainly
due to the decrease in the network products and services resulting from
(i) the weakening economy and the continuous intense competition in
the telecommunications industry; and (ii) the Group has been downsizing
the operation of the traditional communication products and services
due to the shifting of its focus towards the development of the business
of network system integration and the reorganisation of its internal
resources. The decrease was partially net off by the revenue generated
from the Newly Acquired Business amounted to approximately RMB67.0
million.

The Group’s gross profit from its continuing operations for the year
ended 31 December 2015 amounted to approximately RMB123.6
million, representing a decrease of approximately RMB40.4 million,
or approximately 24.6% as compared to that for the year ended 31
December 2014. The decrease was mainly attributable to the fact that
the decrease in gross profit from the ordinary business by approximately
RMB56.7 million, or approximately 34.6% as compared to that for the
year ended 31 December 2014 mainly due to (i) the weakening economy
and the continuous intense competition in the telecommunications
industry; and (ii) the Group has been downsizing the operation of the
traditional communication products and services due to the shifting of
its focus towards the development of the business of network system
integration and the reorganisation of its internal resources. The decrease
was partially net off by the gross profit occurred from the Newly Acquired
Business amounted to approximately RMB16.3 million.

Py RARBA)BEBRENHTREAREES
BARRY - HTNEREGBERFES  ()HE
AEBRBRENEBUNE T EBLRAHES -
UHELERSEEBNENBRARANBEENE
B (DRBHERTISHRE  BRABERRELE
HABIEFTIS - BABPERRAERENRER
RIS + B(VIRERIE SEA R AR B B A T A
HE o

BE_Z—AF+-A=1+—HLLFE  TE£ENF
BIREEBRSBRRENAREMI SHEE T - BE
EENF+_A=+—HIEFEHARE1,393.9
BETHAERDHARBS52 458 TTHAI39.6% ©
BAOEEZRARAEBREEBEHRAHEEZEZ
—HFF+_A=+—HALEFERLELOARE
619.4A BTk #144.4% » =B RPN EEE @ MR
ETFRAmMRD - () ERSREAITERFFHE
Rl MVASREBELEAERPRERBAER
MEHANITER - BitfRESREERMRBHL
ERE - AR BOXIIBAEBEERZNAR
¥67.08 BITATHEEH

BE_Z-AF+-A=+—RHIFE AEEHFE
KEEBNEMNOARKI1236BET BHE_T
—ME+ A=+ ALEFERINARBL04EE
TLEAI24.6% © B EBRBNINRE FXHENHE
ECT-MEF A=+ —HIEFERLBRPHOAR
W56 7ASBITIA34.6% @ TEHNOBEBERSNE
AITEBRFRHERR RAEEKEOEAERE
MEGEREEBREAARER  AtERERRE
Em R RIBEORERIE - BB D ZHBAER
EMHARK16.3BBTTHIELH -
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EEHE (&)

The Group's net profit from its continuing operations amounted to
approximately RMB37.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2015, representing a decrease of approximately RMB30.6 million, or
approximately 44.8%, as compared with that of approximately RMB68.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2014. The decrease in net profit
from its continuing operations was mainly attributable to the decrease
in net profit from the ordinary business by approximately RMB39.0
million, or approximately 57.1% as compared to that for the year ended
31 December 2014, mainly due to (i) the decrease in gross profit of
approximately RMB56.7 million resulting from the weakening economy
and the continuous intense competition in the telecommunications
industry and the Group has been downsizing operation of the traditional
communication products and services due to the shifting of its focus
towards the development of the business of network system integration
and the reorganisation of its internal resources; (ii) the increase in
impairment loss of customer relationship, prepaid land lease payments,
and property, plant and equipment of approximately RMB28.9 million;
and (iii) the provision of profits tax of approximately RMB5.9 million
arising from the completion of the disposal of Weihai Yubo in October
2015. The decrease was partially offset by (i) the increase in other
income and gains generated from the ordinary business of approximately
RMB14.0 million; (ii) the total decrease in administrative expenses and
selling and distribution expenses of approximately RMB18.4 million
incurred in the ordinary business in line with the reduction in revenue; (iii)
the decrease in finance costs of approximately RMB8.3 million incurred in
the ordinary business in line with the decrease of loan balances due to the
improvement on liquidities of the Group; and (iv) the net profit generated
from the Newly Acquired Business of approximately RMB8.4 million.

Loss from a discontinued operation was approximately RMB12.5 million,
which included an operating loss of approximately RMB30.3 million due
to the decrease of gross profit under the overall decline and intense
competition in consumer electronics industry, and a gain on disposal of
the discontinued operation of approximately RMB17.8 million.

In summary, for the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group recorded
net profit of approximately RMB25.2 million.

HE-Z-—AF+-A=+—RILFE A&£EZF
BIREmFMARE77TEE  BRE_T—U4F
+ZA=+—RHLFEHAREESIFETHELRD
M ARBE30.6 B BTl H144.8% © FHEGE TR
FERHRRBERNANBEE T —NF+=
A=+—HLFERLBIOOARE3.08ELHL
57.1% » EEHEROEERIBREAITERFIFEY
o MEAEERELEBARRERERAAELELK
BHEANBER  ARLEREFBREERIRBEHLE
HIE  BHEMNBIOOARBS67TAER () AR
FRIF AN tEERBRYE - BEMREEH
BIERBENOARE289FE T » LR —_T—H
FTAZKEERSRIEMELNFSHBEOAR
WS OBEETT - BRIR DA ZUTSIEIENE : ()VRBE
¥BATEENEMBRARKEEMOARE1408E
70 ()VREEBARENITHAST A REE kDM
AHBOHARKISARE T - BRI
(iINREEBITBBNREXN TR OARKSIEE
UL BAKERBESWE  BREHRROERT K
(v) TBAEBESCNOARES4BET

BIMREEBBBROARB 1288 BREEE
BOARKI0IEET  DHIMOHEEFITEEET
BRITEBRFHNEREMNRD  ARHERK L
BEBREOARE178EETTAE -
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REBBFSENOARE252B&TT -
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEHE (&)

OUTLOOK

In light of the communication market is in the growing stage due to
maturity of 4G technology and Enterprise Private Network technology, we
believe demands for communication system equipment and services will
be boosting continuously.

In the segment of B2B market, we believe there is a huge demand for
mobile internet software of OA. With the software, enterprise is able to
integrate mobile internet, cloud computing and big data to better improve
company'’s efficiencies and effectiveness.

The Group will accordingly keep increasing its investments in the
telecommunications industry, seeking for more strong partners and
working closely with them to develop new products and solutions.
The Group will also keep exploring new technologies to be applied in
the current products and services. Furthermore, the Group will keep
monitoring its business scale and portfolio closely and putting more
resources into the business with stronger profitability and better prospects
to ensure a sustainable development of the Company and bring long-term
contributions to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | express my earnest gratitude towards our
Shareholders for demonstrating your support and confidence in our
management team at any moment. At the same time | also wish to
thank our colleagues on the Board for your persistent contribution in the
Company’s development and progress. Furthermore, | thank all the staff
that have been committed to their duties for and being resilient in the
development of the Group’s business.

Yours faithfully,

Chan Sek Keung, Ringo
Chairman

30 March 2016
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBiBE

Revenue
g

RMB'000
ARETT

3,000,000
2,712,525

2,513,955
2,500,000

2,000,000 1,865,376
1,500,000 1,393,914
1,000,000

841,527

500,000

2011 2012 2013 2014* 2015*
—3—F -F--F -2-=F _T-IF R-RF
(restated)
(18 %51)

For continuing operations only

Profit/(Loss) Attributable to
the Owners of the Parent

A REEARGERR,(EE)

RMB'000
ARETT

150,000

100,000

50,000

-50,000

-100,000

-150,000

-200,000

116,071

(35,680)

Total Assets

RMB'000
ARETT

4,000,000

3,506,275
3,500,000

68,260
3,000,000
35,621

2,500,000 2,204,139 2,417,922 2,429,885

2,000,000

1,720,391

1,500,000

1,000,000

500,000

(177,510)

2011 2012
“3 -3

10

2013 2014*  2015¢ 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
= ST ZECF 2=

ZE CT-SHF CEPEY CT-RE E——F ZF CE-SF CT-mE CZ-RF

(restated)
(#=3)

* EFRFEEETE



A highlight of results, selected financial ratios, assets and liabilities and

cash flows is as follows:

RESULTS INFORMATION

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 —Z—HF 5

FINANCIAL SUMMARY (CONTINUED)

MHBER

R REEYHLER  BERABRESRENM
ZmT

REEHN

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1+—-HLEFE

2015 2014
—EB-RF —TpmE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTT
(Restated)
(5 =71))
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FERE
Revenue Wz 841,527 1,393,914
Gross profit EF 123,588 164,013
Profit before tax from continuing operations B S R T B g A 51,510 84,406
Profit for the year from continuing operations BB F S 5 A 37,730 68,260
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRIEEE
Loss for the year from a discontinued operation ~ B 4% &L EEEIE (12,537) (20,471)
Profit for the year FE A 25,193 47,789
Attributable to: AT & 77 FEAG
— Owners of the parent — B RREAE A 24,851 49,382
— Non-controlling interests — JEIE i 342 (1,593)
Earnings per share FRREA
— Basic and diluted (RMB cents) — EAREEARES) 3.48 6.86

11
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY (CONTINUED)
MBREGE

SELECTED FINANCIAL RATIOS INFORMATION KB|EMBELERER

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1t-HLEE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
“BE-IE —T-mE —T-=F —T——F —T——%
(approximate)  (approximate)  (approximate)  (approximate)  (approximate)
(8E#) (BE4) (Bi4) (B4 (#E49)
Gross profit margin EH|= 14.7%" 11.8%" 13.2% 13.1% 20.3%
Net profit/(loss) margin WA/ CFB8) = 4.5%" 49%" (6.6%) (2.0%) 6.4%
Current ratio (times) B R (f3) 1.9 1.2 1.0 1.1 1.3
Gearing ratio® BARBELEO 2.4%" 5.9%" 25.9% 30.4% 28.4%
Return on total assets® BB R 2.2%" 43%" (6.1%) (1.7%) 5.6%
Return on total equity® BRI 3.9%" 11.6%" (16.0%) (3.9%) 11.8%
(1) Calculated by using short-term borrowings divided by total assets. (1) REHEERIBEETE -
(2)  Calculated by using average balances of total assets and total equity. (2) RABEERERR THESHE -
* The ratios were calculated using data from continuing operations. * LR TR B S SIEE -

12
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY (CONTINUED)
MBREGE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES INFORMATION EEREEER

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-RF —TNFE —T—=F T ZFT——F

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL ARETLT ARMTT ARETT ARKTT

Cash and cash equivalents Re RBEEEY

(excluding pledged deposits) (MBREDERTFH) 192,120 169,950 62,721 144,082 106,650
Current assets REBEE 1,220,150 1,798,707 1,636,186 2,298,193 1,543,252
Non-current assets ERHEE 500,241 631,178 781,736 1,208,082 750,887
Current liabilities THAE 631,916 1,549,690 1,598,964 2,004,695 1,191,894
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 40,550 24,807 23,341 39,045 9,718
Equity attributable to [SYNGIEZZSPN

owners of the parent FE(h iR 979,077 846,994 795,858 1,427,338 1,031,694
Non-controlling interests FEPE R A 68,848 8,394 (241) 35,197 60,833

CASH FLOWS INFORMATION HEREER

Year ended 31 December
BE+-—HA=t—-HLEE
2015 2014 2013
—E-RF ZZNFE ZZT—=4F

RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFR ARBTL AREFT ARETR ARBTR

Net cash from/(used in) REFEE,

operating activities (PrR)IR&FE 40,833 250,274 85,830 59,195 (167,546)
Net cash from/(used in) BEEBIE

investing activities (FTR)IR&FE 154,747 (7,971) (142,281) (183,715) 161,211
Net cash (used in)/from mEEE(FTA),/

financing activities FriSii & #58 (170,653) (134,983) (19,872) 172,808 (47,423)
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HL Technology Group Limited BLHRI R EBAR A A
FINANCIAL SUMMARY (CONTINUED)

MBEE(R)

A summary of consolidated results for the five years ended 31 December

2015 is as follows:

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Finance costs

Share of loss of an associate

Profit/(loss) before tax from
continuing operations

Income tax expense

Loss for the year from a
discontinued operation

Profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive (loss)/income
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year

Profit/(loss) attributable to:

— Owners of the parent
— Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
attributable to:
— Owners of the parent
— Non-controlling interests

Earnings/(loss) per share —
Basic and diluted (RMB cents)

Yezs
HERK

EH
e ONSL
HERDHRX
THFX
HiFx
BBMKA
i NG
RRCERTA
i/ (B1R)
FERAX
BRIEESE
FEER

FREHN/(B1])

Hie2E(BR), e
A DI S
EAER

FEEERKEE
(B8 s

AT & EEER,
(EE):
REHEBA
- 3E?‘W%|M%E§

UTEAEERE RS,
(EEM%?
REHEBA
— #?‘“%‘M%Eé

SRAMN,/ (BR) —
EXLEE(ARED)

BHE_T—

BHBEZEIT

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-HLEE

EFE+TZRA=+—BIAAFENEEE

2015 2014 2012 2011
—g-nf —mE = —FZfF T F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREFTT ARETT AREFTT AREFT
(Restated)
(fe=71)

841,527 1,393,914 2,712,525 2,513,955 1,865,376
(717,939) (1,229,901) (2,354,482) (2,184,596) (1,486,971)
123,588 164,013 358,043 329,359 378,405

18,173 4,202 21,083 41,105 23,593

(9,639) (14, 702) (110,871) (79,378) (49,056)
(39,018) (46,171) (247,486) (227,749) (178 893)
(33,569) (6 836) (24,890) (44,486) (1,513)

(8,025) (16 ) (150,551) (61,645) (37,536 )

- (270) -

51,510 84,406 (154,942) (42,794) 135,000
(13,780) (16,146) (25,020) (7,151) (15,640)
(12,537) (20,471) (249) - -

25,193 47,789 (180,211) (49,945) 119,360

(436) (18) (246) 278 (733)
24,757 47,771 (180,457) (49,667) 118,627
24,851 49,382 (177,510) (35,680) 116,071
342 (1,593) (2,701) (14,265) 3,289
25,193 47,789 (180,211) (49,945) 119,360
24,636 49,364 (177,761) (35,402) 115,338
121 (1,593) (2,696) (14,265) 3,289
24,757 47,771 (180,457) (49,667) 118,627
3.48 6.86 (24.7) (5.0) 16.1
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
THEFWE S

On 28 April 2015, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with a company owned by Mr. Chi, a Director (resigned on 29
October 2015) and substantial Shareholder (ceased to be a Shareholder
on 8 December 2015), to dispose of the entire share capital of Honglin
International at a cash consideration of approximately HK$232.8 million.
Honglin International is principally engaged in manufacture and sale
of traditional signal transmission and connectivity products. The Board
decided to dispose of the business of manufacture and sale of traditional
signal transmission and connectivity products for the purpose of group
restructuring. The transaction was completed on 30 June 2015 and each
of the members of Honglin International ceased to be the subsidiaries
of the Company. Therefore, Honglin International was classified as a
discontinued operation.

The comparative consolidated statement of profit or loss has been
represented as if the operation discontinued during the current year had
been discontinued at the beginning of the comparative year.

Revenue

The Group recorded a total revenue from its continuing operations
of approximately RMB841.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2015, representing a decrease of approximately RMB552.4 million, or
approximately 39.6% as compared to the revenue of approximately
RMB1,393.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2014. The decrease
was mainly attributable to the fact that the revenue from the ordinary
business decreased by approximately RMB619.4 million, or approximately
44.4% as compared to that for the year ended 31 December 2014, mainly
due to the decrease in the network products and services resulting from
(i) the weakening economy and the continuous intense competition in
the telecommunications industry; and (ii) the Group has been downsizing
the operation of the traditional communication products and services
due to the shifting of its focus towards the development of the business
of network system integration and the reorganisation of its internal
resources. The decrease was partially net off by the revenue generated
from the Newly Acquired Business amounted to approximately RMB67.0
million.
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HL Technology Group Limited BLHRHE EEER A 7

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEETwmE D (&)

Cost of Sales

The cost of sales from the Group’s continuing operations amounted
to approximately RMB717.9 million, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB512.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2015,
or approximately 41.6%, as compared to that for the year ended 31
December 2014 of approximately RMB1,229.9 million. The decrease was
mainly attributable to the fact that the cost of sales from the ordinary
business decreased by approximately RMB562.6 million, or approximately
45.7% as compared to that for the year ended 31 December 2014,
which was basically in line with the decrease in revenue and the reduction
of in-house costs incurred since the Company raised the proportion of
outsourcing which was more efficient and with lower costs. The decrease
was partially net off by the cost of sales from the Newly Acquired Business
of approximately RMB50.7 million.

Gross Profit and Margin

The Group’s gross profit from its continuing operations for the year
ended 31 December 2015 amounted to approximately RMB123.6
million, representing a decrease of approximately RMB40.4 million,
or approximately 24.6% as compared to that for the year ended 31
December 2014 of approximately RMB164.0 million. The decrease was
mainly attributable to the fact that (i) the decrease in gross profit from the
ordinary business by approximately RMB56.7 million, or approximately
34.6% as compared to that for the year ended 31 December 2014
mainly due to (i) the weakening economy and the continuous intense
competition in the telecommunications industry; and (ii) the Group has
been downsizing the operation of the traditional communication products
and services due to the shifting of its focus towards the development of
the business of network system integration and the reorganisation of its
internal resources. The decrease was partially net off by the gross profit
generated from the Newly Acquired Business amounted to approximately
RMB16.3 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENwmR D (&)

Gross Profit and Margin (Continued)

The gross profit margin from the Group’s continuing operations increased
to approximately 14.7% for the year ended 31 December 2015 from
approximately 11.8% for the year ended 31 December 2014. The increase
was mainly attributable to (i) the increase in gross profit margin from
ordinary business due to the rising proportion of sales from network
products related to the Enterprise Private Network; and (ii) the Newly
Acquired Business with higher gross profit margin.

Other Income and Gains

The Group recorded other income and gains from its continuing
operations of approximately RMB18.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2015, including (i) gains on disposals of subsidiaries of the
Group of approximately RMB4.5 million; (ii) gains on disposals of property,
plant and equipment of approximately RMB4.3 million; (iii) approximately
RMB7.6 million from the government grants released during the year; and
(iv) approximately RMB1.8 million from the interest income and others.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The selling and distribution expenses from the Group’s continuing
operations decreased by approximately RMB5.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2015, or approximately 34.7%, as compared with that for
the year ended 31 December 2014. The decrease was mainly attributable
to the decrease in selling and distribution expenses from the ordinary
business by approximately RMB7.2 million, or approximately 49.0% as
compared to that for the year ended 31 December 2014, which was
basically in line with the decrease in revenue. The decrease was partially
net off by the selling and distribution expenses incurred by the Newly
Acquired Business amounted to approximately RMB2.1 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEETwmE D (&)

Administrative Expenses

The administrative expenses from the Group’s continuing operations
decreased by approximately RMB7.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2015, or approximately 15.6%, as compared with that for the
year ended 31 December 2014. The decrease was mainly attributable to
(i) the decrease in administrative expenses from the ordinary business by
approximately RMB11.3 million, or approximately 24.5% as compared
to that for the year ended 31 December 2014, mainly due to the
decrease in staff costs as a result of the reduced number of staff; and
(ii) the decrease in research and development expenses as the Group
reduced its investments in the research and development on traditional
communication products. The decrease was partially net off by the
increase in professional fees incurred for the projects for acquisition and
disposal and the administrative expenses incurred by the Newly Acquired
Business.

Other Expenses

Other expenses from the Group’s continuing operations amounted to
approximately RMB33.6 million, which was primarily attributable to (i) the
impairment loss of approximately RMB18.1 million recognised in respect
of customer relationship with three major telecommunications operators;
(ii) the impairment loss of approximately RMB9.3 million recognised
in respect of prepaid land lease payments; (iii) the impairment loss of
approximately RMB5.1 million recognised in respect of property, plant and
equipment; and (iv) the impairment loss of approximately RMB1.1 million
recognised in respect of trade and other receivables.

Finance Costs

The finance costs from the Group’s continuing operations decreased by
approximately RMB8.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2015,
or approximately 50.3%, as compared with that for the year ended 31
December 2014. The decrease was basically in line with the decrease of
loan balances due to the improvement on liquidities of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENwmR D (&)

Income Tax Expense

The income tax expense from the Group’s continuing operations
decreased by approximately RMB2.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2015, representing a slight decrease as compared with that for
the year ended 31 December 2014, which was primarily composed of the
current income tax expenses, deferred tax expenses and the withholding
tax incurred. The decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease of
current income tax expense basically in line with the reduction in profit
before tax from continuing operations, which was partially offset by
the withholding tax of approximately RMB5.9 million arising from the
completion of the disposal of Weihai Yubo in October 2015. Overall, the
Group's effective tax rate from the Group’s continuing operations for the
year ended 31 December 2015 was 26.8%, compared with 19.1% for
the year ended 31 December 2014.

Profit for the Year

The Group’s net profit from its continuing operations amounted to
approximately RMB37.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2015, representing a decrease of approximately RMB30.6 million, or
approximately 44.8%, as compared with that of approximately RMB68.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2014. The decrease in net profit
from its continuing operations was mainly attributable to the decrease
in net profit from the ordinary business by approximately RMB39.0
million, or approximately 57.1% as compared to that for the year ended
31 December 2014, mainly due to (i) the decrease in gross profit of
approximately RMB56.7 million resulting from the weakening economy
and the continuous intense competition in the telecommunications
industry and the Group has been downsizing operation of the traditional
communication products and services due to the shifting of its focus
towards the development of the business of network system integration
and the reorganisation of its internal resources; (ii) the increase in
impairment loss of customer relationship, prepaid land lease payments,
and property, plant and equipment of approximately RMB28.9 million;
and (iii) the provision of profits tax of approximately RMB5.9 million
arising from the completion of the disposal of Weihai Yubo in October
2015. The decrease was partially offset by (i) the increase in other
income and gains generated from the ordinary business of approximately
RMB14.0 million; (ii) the total decrease in administrative expenses and
selling and distribution expenses of approximately RMB18.4 million
incurred in the ordinary business in line with the reduction in revenue; (iii)
the decrease in finance costs of approximately RMB8.3 million incurred in
the ordinary business in line with the decrease of loan balances due to the
improvement on liquidities of the Group; and (iv) the net profit generated
from the Newly Acquired Business of approximately RMB8.4 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEETwmE D (&)

Profit for the Year (Continued)

Loss from a discontinued operation was approximately RMB12.5 million,
which included an operating loss of approximately RMB30.3 million due
to the decrease of gross profit under the overall decline and intense
competition in the consumer electronics industry, and a gain on disposal
of the discontinued operation of approximately RMB17.8 million.

In summary, for the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group recorded
net profit of approximately RMB25.2 million.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group continues to implement prudent financial management policies
and maintains a relatively low gearing ratio during its operations. As at 31
December 2015, the Group's gearing ratio (measured by total short-term
borrowings from continuing operations as a percentage of total assets
from continuing operations) was approximately 2.4% (31 December
2014: approximately 5.9%). The decline in gearing ratio was mainly due
to the decrease of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings as the
Group did not renew bank and other borrowings upon maturity.

As at 31 December 2015, the total interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings of the Group amounted to approximately RMB41.3 million (31
December 2014: approximately RMB489.4 million). These loans carried
interest at floating or fixed rates. Out of the interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, approximately RMB32.4 million were unsecured loans
and carried interest at floating rates, and approximately RMB4.2 million
were unsecured loans and carried interest at fixed rates and approximately
RMB4.7 million were secured loans and carried interest at floating rates.

As at 31 December 2015, there were no outstanding balance on interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings from the ordinary business because
the Group disposed of Honglin International and did not renew those
bank borrowings upon maturity. The interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings from the Newly Acquired Business were approximately
RMB41.3 million as at 31 December 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEEN WK

Liquidity and Financial Resources (Continued)

Save as aforesaid or as otherwise disclosed in this report, and apart from
intragroup liabilities, the Company did not have any outstanding loan
capital issued and outstanding or agreed to be issued, bank overdrafts,
loans or other similar indebtednesses, liabilities under acceptances or
acceptable credits, debentures, mortgages, charges, hire purchases
commitments, guarantees or other material contingent liabilities as at the
close of business on 31 December 2015.

The Directors have confirmed that there has been no material change
in the indebtednesses and contingent liabilities of the Group since 31
December 2015 to the date of this report.

Foreign Currency Risk

As certain of the Group’s trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other payables and pledged deposits are
denominated in foreign currency, exposure to exchange rate fluctuation
arises. The Group has relevant policy to monitor the risk associated with
the fluctuation of foreign currency and control such risk.

Working Capital

Inventories balance as at 31 December 2015 was approximately RMB14.0
million (31 December 2014: approximately RMB145.4 million). The
decrease was mainly attributable to the decline in inventories balance
from the ordinary business of approximately RMB141.9 million, or
approximately 97.6% as compared to that as at 31 December 2014,
mainly due to the inventory control and the effect of the disposal of
Honglin International. The decrease was partially net off by the inventories
balance from the Newly Acquired Business of approximately RMB10.5
million.

The average turnover days for inventories (calculated by using the data
from continuing operations) increased to 9 days as at 31 December
2015 (31 December 2014: 5 days). The increase was mainly due to the
relatively low inventory turnover rate from the Newly Acquired Business as
some equipment provided to the customers needed to be imported from
overseas suppliers in advance.

Trade and bills receivables balance as at 31 December 2015 was
approximately RMB585.1 million (31 December 2014: approximately
RMB1,260.9 million). The decrease in trade and bills receivables balance
was mainly attributable to the decrease in trade and bills receivables
balance from the ordinary business of approximately RMB830.2 million,
or approximately 65.8% as compared to that as at 31 December
2014 mainly due to the decrease in sales and the disposal of Honglin
International. The decrease was partially net off by the trade and bills
receivables balance from the Newly Acquired Business of approximately
RMB154.4 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYS|S (CONTINUED)

EEEN W&

Working Capital (Continued)

The average turnover days for trade and bills receivables (calculated by
using the data from continuing operations) increased to 476 days as at 31
December 2015 (31 December 2014: 247 days) which was mainly due to
the rising proportion of sales with relatively longer credit period.

Trade and bills payables balance as at 31 December 2015 was
approximately RMB390.2 million (31 December 2014: approximately
RMB867.0 million). The decrease in trade and bills payables balance was
mainly attributable to the decrease in trade and bills payables balance
from the ordinary business by approximately RMB553.8 million, or
approximately 63.9% as compared to that as at 31 December 2014
mainly due to the disposal of Honglin International. The decrease was
partially net off by the trade and bills payables balance from the Newly
Acquired Business of approximately RMB77.0 million.

The average turnover days for trade and bills payables (calculated by
using the data from continuing operations) increased to 284 days as at 31
December 2015 (31 December 2014: 185 days). The increase in turnover
days was mainly due to the rising proportion of purchase or outsourcing
production with relatively long payable credit period.

The Group's cash conversion cycle (calculated by using the data from
continuing operations) for the year ended 31 December 2015 was 201
days as compared with 67 days for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Cash Flows

The net cash flows from operating activities for the year ended 31
December 2015 of approximately RMB40.8 million was primarily due to
the decrease in trade and bills receivables, which was partially net off by
the decrease in trade and bills payables and the decrease in operating
profit.

The net cash flows from investing activities for the year ended 31
December 2015 of approximately RMB154.7 million was primarily
attributable to cash inflows from the disposals of subsidiaries of the
Group.

The net cash flows used in financing activities for the year ended 31

December 2015 of approximately RMB170.7 million was primarily
attributable to repayments of bank loans and other borrowings.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENwmR D (&)

Capital Expenditures

As at 31 December 2015, the Group incurred total capital expenditures
from its continuing operations of approximately RMB242.8 million in the
purchase of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had no significant capital
commitments. As at 31 December 2014, the Group had capital
commitments of approximately RMB7.9 million in respect of the
acquisitions of property, plant and equipment.

Contingent Liabilities

A subsidiary of the Group is currently a defendant in a lawsuit brought
by a supplier alleging that the subsidiary breached and repudiated a
commissioned development contract on software of handsets. At the
same time, the Group instituted a counter-claim against the supplier for
the compensation for the loss on default in a contract with one of the
Group's customers. The litigation is likely to continue for a considerable
amount of time, and the Directors, based on the advice from the Group's
legal counsel, believe that the outcome of this claim cannot be reliably
estimated. Therefore, the Group has not provided for any claim arising
from the litigation, other than the related legal and other costs incurred.

The Group underwent several reorganisations, including disposals of the
entire interest in Honglin International and Weihai Yubo during the year
and transfers of several subsidiaries within the Group. The Group has
conducted filings of the reorganisations, if required, with the relevant
tax authorities. However, those reorganisations may be subject to further
investigations if initiated and requested by the relevant tax authorities. The
Directors believe that the taxes arising from those reorganisations have
been properly dealt with and provided for in the financial statements.
Given the complexity of relevant tax laws and regulations and the
diversified practice of respective tax authorities in the PRC, the Directors
consider that the existence of any additional tax obligation arising from
those reorganisations cannot be confirmed until completion of such
further investigation, if any, and/or issuance of any written notice by
the relevant tax authorities. Therefore, the possible obligation of such
additional tax has not been provided for.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEEFwE D (&)

Employees E&
As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a total of 404 employees 31 RZZE—RF+_A=+—H8 AKEBEEHLFL04%
December 2014: 971). The breakdown of employees of the Group asat EBI(=ZZ—HFE+-A=+—H :9718) - K&H
31 December 2015 and 2014 is as follows: BEER - ZE—RAFE-_ZT—NF+_A=1+—HKNHH
AT
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
R-ZE-HF s
+=A=+-AH
Manufacturing and technical engineering FUEREI TR 65 320
Sales and marketing SHE NG HERE 121 305
General and administration —MRRITIR 135 222
Research and development ift 2% 83 124
Total @it 404 971

The decrease in the number of employees as at 31 December 2015 as RZE—HAF+ZA=+—HAMEEHKELX =T —H
compared with that as at 31 December 2014 was mainly due to (i) the F+ZA=+—HMEEZEHE R  F2HRO)EE
Group completed the disposal of Honglin International and Weihai Yubo, B FE Ak H & BhMEI X [ G 818 - i 30 S 5T A H (&
and their employees were not included; and (ii) the Group streamlined 8  R()AEBEBHEFT - WA EEEE - 116
departments and reduced the number of employees as the Group ~ RASEFRER R  BLAUREREIRESER
redressed its business strategy towards the development of the business ~ FTEl - BRIR D &0 X 5B AZEBH 2 50 E 8 iR
of network system integration. The decrease was partially net off by all & °

employees of the Newly Acquired Business.

Compensation policy of the Group is determined by evaluating individual ~ A& EEREER R HETHESERRREETE - I
performance of the employees and has been reviewed regularly. EE R -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENwmR D (&)

MAJOR AND CONNECTED TRANSACTION

IN RELATION TO DISPOSAL OF HONGLIN
INTERNATIONAL

On 28 April 2015, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of the entire interest in Honglin International with
Jia Ya Developments Limited (“Jia Ya”) and Mr. Chi at an initial cash
consideration of HK$255.0 million (the “Disposal 1”).

Jia Ya is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability and is wholly-owned by Mr. Chi.

As certain applicable percentage ratios (as calculated in accordance with
Rule 14.07 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)) for Disposal 1 were more than 25% but
less than 75%, Disposal 1 constituted a major transaction of the Company
under the Listing Rules. Besides, Mr. Chi was a substantial Shareholder
(ceased to be a Shareholder on 8 December 2015), an executive Director
(resigned on 29 October 2015) and CEO of the Company (resigned on
29 October 2015), who was interested in as to approximately 14.5% of
the equity interest in the Company as at 28 April 2015, each of Mr. Chi
and Jia Ya was a connected person (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company at the time of the transaction, and Disposal 1 also constituted a
connected transaction of the Company and was subject to the reporting,
announcement and the independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Disposal 1 was approved by the
independent Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 25 June 2015. Disposal 1 was completed on 30 June
2015 at a final cash consideration of HK$232,804,729 as mutually agreed
by the parties to the sale and purchase agreement.

Details of Disposal 1 have been set out in the announcements of the

Company dated 28 April 2015 and 30 June 2015 and the circular of the
Company dated 10 June 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEETwmE D (&)

DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION IN RELATION TO
DISPOSAL OF 100% EQUITY INTERESTS IN WEIHAI
YUBO

On 8 July 2015, the Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement
to dispose of 100% equity interest in Weihai Yubo with Meadow Bridge
Limited (“Meadow Bridge”) and 5& 53 (Mr. Zhang Kedong*) (“Mr.
Zhang”, as the guarantor for Meadow Bridge) at a cash consideration of
RMBE5 million (or HK$82 million).

Meadow Bridge is a company incorporated in Anguilla, the British West
Indies with limited liability, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Zhang.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (as defined under
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules) in relation to the disposal exceeded 5%
but was/were less than 25%, the disposal constituted a discloseable
transaction of the Company and was subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

Details of the disposal of 100% equity interests in Weihai Yubo have been
set out in the announcements of the Company dated 8 July 2015 and 27
October 2015.

DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION IN RELATION

TO ACQUISITION OF 75% EQUITY INTEREST IN
FORTUNE GRACE

On 13 October 2015, the Company entered into a non-legally binding
memorandum of understanding with Fortune Grace to acquire not less
than 51% of the issued share capital of Wafer System Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Fortune Grace.

On 6 November 2015, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Smoothly Global Holdings Limited (“Smoothly Global”)
and Mr. Chan Sek Keung, Ringo (“Mr. Chan", as the guarantor for
Smoothly Global) to acquire 75% equity interest in the issued share capital
of Fortune Grace, at a total consideration of HK$450.0 million, of which
HK$190.4 million shall be settled in cash and the balance of HK$259.6
million shall be settled by the issue of consideration shares under the
general mandate.

*  The English name is for identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENwmR D (&)

DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION IN RELATION

TO ACQUISITION OF 75% EQUITY INTEREST IN
FORTUNE GRACE (Continued)

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, each of Smoothly Global
and Mr. Chan undertakes and guarantees to the Company that the
aggregate audited consolidated net profit after tax of Fortune Grace and
its subsidiaries for the 2 years ending 31 December 2016 (the “Actual
Profit”) shall be not less than HK$60 million (the “Guaranteed Profit”).
In the event that the Actual Profit fails to meet the Guaranteed Profit,
Smoothly Global shall indemnify the Company the compensated amount
by way of cash within five (5) business days upon receipt of the written
notice from the Company.

110,000,000 consideration Shares were issued by the Company to
Smoothly Global on 13 November 2015. As at the date of this report,
the Company has settled part of the cash consideration in the amount
of HK$100.4 million. The relevant parties to the agreement entered into
supplemental agreements to the sale and purchase agreement and further
agreed to extend the payment date of the remaining cash consideration
of HK$90.0 million to 30 June 2016.

Fortune Grace is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability and is principally engaged in investment holding. The main
asset of Fortune Grace is its interest in Wafer Systems Limited, which
is principally engaged in the business of network system integration,
including provision of network infrastructure solutions and network
professional services as well as internet related software solutions.

As the applicable percentage ratios (as defined under Rule 14.04(9) of
the Listing Rules) in relation to the acquisition exceeded 5% but were
less than 25%, the acquisition constituted a discloseable transaction
of the Company and was subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

The transfer of 75% equity interest in Fortune Grace was completed
on 13 November 2015 and Smoothly Global became a substantial
Shareholder holding 110,000,000 Shares.

Details of the acquisition of 75% equity interest in Fortune Grace have

been set out in the announcements of the Company dated 13 October
2015, 6 November 2015 and 13 November 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWE D

DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION IN RELATION TO
DISPOSAL OF MOTOR VEHICLES, EQUIPMENT AND
PROPERTIES

On 4 December 2015, Shenyang New Postcom, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
to dispose of fourteen vehicles including sedan and minivan, and truck
and forklift with PLRE T BSRHE A IR 7 (transliterated as “Shengyang
City Liansheng Technology Company Limited*”, “Shengyang Liansheng”)
at a cash consideration of RMBO0.5 million.

On the same day, Shenyang New Postcom entered into another sale
and purchase agreement to dispose of various types of tools, electrical
appliances, computer equipment and office network equipment with
Shengyang Liansheng at a cash consideration of RMB1.0 million.

On the same day, Shenyang New Postcom entered into the third sale and
purchase agreement with Shengyang Liansheng to dispose of 2 parcels
of land with a total site area of approximately 151,132 square meters
located in the PRC at a cash consideration of RMB98.5 million.

Shengyang Liansheng is a limited liability company established in the PRC.

As the applicable percentage ratios (as defined under Rule 14.04(9) of
the Listing Rules) in relation to the above mentioned sale and purchase
agreements in aggregate exceeded 5% but were below 25%, the three
disposals constituted discloseable transactions of the Company and were
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements under Chapter
14 of the Listing Rules.

Details of the disposal of motor vehicles, equipment and properties have
been set out in the announcement of the Company dated 4 December
2015.

*  The English name is for identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT D|SCUSS|ON & ANALYSlS (CONTINUED)

DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION IN RELATION TO
DISPOSAL OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS

On 31 December 2015, Shenyang New Postcom, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with YT IR 87 25 RH R AT BR A 7] (transliterated as “Shenzhen
Ji Shi Ming Ye Technology Company Limited*”, “Shenzhen Ji Shi Ming
Ye") to dispose of its technology know-how of the third generation
mobile telecommunications multi-media technology and certain patents
relating to wireless mobile communication terminals and systems (the
“Intangible Assets”) at a cash consideration of RMB150.0 million.

Shenzhen Ji Shi Ming Ye is a limited liability company established in the
PRC.

As the applicable percentage ratios (as defined under Rule 14.04(9) of
the Listing Rules) in relation to the disposal exceeded 5% but were below
25%, the disposal constituted a discloseable transaction of the Company
and was subject to the reporting and announcement requirements under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

Details of the disposal of the Intangible Assets have been set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 31 December 2015.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

IN RELATION TO THE ENTRUSTMENT LOAN
AGREEMENT AND THE TENANCY AGREEMENT

On 28 April 2015, Weihai Yubo entered into an entrustment loan
agreement with i i A E A7 A 7] (Weihaishi Honglin Electronic
Co., Ltd.*, “Weihai Electronic”) pursuant to which Weihai Yubo had
entrusted the bank in the PRC which possesses the relevant qualifications
(the “Bank”) to provide an entrustment loan in the principal amount
of not more than RMB95.0 million to Weihai Electronic and the total
amount of the entrustment loan, including the principal amount and
the interest accrued at any time during the term of the entrustment loan
agreement, shall not be more than RMB102.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2015. Pursuant to the entrustment loan agreement, Weihai
Yubo was required to provide a pledge of land and property to the Bank
to guarantee the principal amount of the entrustment loan aforesaid.

On the same date, Weihai Yubo entered into a tenancy agreement with
Weihai Electronic, pursuant to which Weihai Yubo shall continue to lease
to Weihai Electronic the land and the property erected thereon owned by
Weihai Yubo. The lease term is from 28 April 2015 to 31 December 2017.
The rental is RMB100.0 per square meter per year and the total rental
shall not be more than RMB4.0 million in each of the three financial years
ending 31 December 2017.

*  The English name is for identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEETwmE D (&)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

IN RELATION TO THE ENTRUSTMENT LOAN
AGREEMENT AND THE TENANCY AGREEMENT
(Continued)

Weihai Yubo is a company established in the PRC with limited liability. The
principal business of Weihai Yubo is investment holding and provision of
rental services of plants.

Weihai Electronic is a company established in the PRC with limited liability.
The principal business of Weihai Electronic is manufacture and sale of
power cord cable and assembly products and investment holding.

Upon completion of Disposal 1, Weihai Electronic became a connected
person of the Group, and the transactions contemplated under the
entrustment loan agreement, the corresponding asset pledge agreement as
well as the tenancy agreement became continuing connected transactions
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of such continuing connected transactions have been set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 28 April 2015 and 30 June 2015,
and the circular of the Company dated 10 June 2015.

The disposal of Weihai Yubo was completed on 27 October 2015.
Following the completion of disposal of Weihai Yubo, the Company
ceased to have any interest in Weihai Yubo and Weihai Yubo ceased to
be a subsidiary of the Company accordingly. As a result, the transactions
contemplated under the entrustment loan agreement, the corresponding
asset pledge agreement as well as the tenancy agreement between
Weihai Electronic and Weihai Yubo would not constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENwmR D (&)

SHARE REPURCHASE

On 15 July 2015, the Directors agreed that the Company may repurchase
the Shares of an amount of up to HK$200.0 million for a period of 2
weeks from 15 July 2015 pursuant to the repurchase mandate granted to
the Board at the annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM")
held on 29 May 2015. On 24 July 2015, the Company announced that
the Company have repurchased an aggregate of 50,000,000 Shares with
price range of HK$3.48 per Share to HK$4.10 per Share from the open
market from 16 July 2015 to 23 July 2015 (the “Share Repurchase”),
representing approximately 6.94% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 24 July 2015. The aggregate consideration of the Share
Repurchase was approximately HK$189.8 million.

Details of the Share Repurchase have been set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 15 July 2015 and 24 July 2015.

CHANGE IN SHAREHOLDING OF CHENLIN
INTERNATIONAL

The Board has been informed by Chenlin International Joint Stock
Company Limited (“Chenlin”), a substantial Shareholder (ceased to be
a Shareholder on 8 December 2015), that Chenlin has entered into an
agreement on 4 December 2015 with Asia Venture Holdings Corporation
(“AVHC"), a company wholly-owned by Mr. Liu Dafan, pursuant to
which Chenlin has agreed to dispose of all of its shareholding in the
Company, being 97,000,839 Shares (“Sale Shares”) of the Company, to
AVHC at a consideration of HK$208,550,000. The Sale Shares represent
approximately 12.4% of the issued share capital of the Company at the
time of transaction. Completion took place on 8 December 2015 and
Chenlin ceased to be a Shareholder and AVHC became a substantial
Shareholder holding 97,000,839 Shares.

Details of the change in shareholding of Chenlin have been set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 8 December 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEETwmE D (&)

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD
Acquisition of 100% of the Issued Share Capital of Yao
Neng Developments Limited (“Yao Neng")

On 24 March 2016, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Sina Trade Limited and Mr. Mao Hai Tao for the
acquisition of 100% of the issued share capital of Yao Neng at a
total cash consideration of HK$400.0 million. Yao Neng is a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liabilities on 1
January 2016 and is principally engaged in investment holding. The
main asset of Yao Neng is its indirect interest in the entire equity interest
in HERERE (G AR A (transliterated as “Huazhong Technology
(Shenzhen) Company Limited*") which has developed four online service
platform solutions in the PRC relating smart campus and management
platform system, community and professional training platform system,
smart city comprehensive administration services platform system and
internet of things logistics management platform system.

As the applicable percentage ratios (as defined under Rule 14.04(9) of
the Listing Rules) in relation to the acquisition exceeded 5% but were
below 25%, the acquisition constituted a discloseable transaction of
the Company and was subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

Details of the acquisition of 100% of the issued share capital of Yao Neng
have been set out in the announcements of the Company dated 8 March
2016 and 24 March 2016.

Proposed Change of Company Name

On 30 March 2016, the Board proposed to change the English name
of the Company from “HL Technology Group Limited” to “InvesTech
Holdings Limited” and the Chinese name of the Company from “Js
MEHEEBAR AR *" to "EFIERABRAF**" (the “Change of
Company Name”). The Change of Company Name is subject to the
fulfillment of certain conditions.

The Board believes that the new English and Chinese names of the
Company can better reflect its recent development in network system
integration business and the online service platform development
business, allow the public and investors to better discern the Company’s
principal business activities, and improve the brand recognition of the
Company.

Details of the Change of Company Name are set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 30 March 2016.

*  The English name is for identification purpose only
**  The Chinese name is for identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESEE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Chi Luen (“Mr. Wu"), aged 39, is an executive Director and CEO
of the Company. Mr. Wu is also a member of compensation and benefits
committee of the Company (the “C&B Committee”) and a director of
several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wu is in charge of the overall
strategic planning, business planning and decision making in all material
matters of the Group. Mr. Wu was appointed as Director and a vice CEO
on 25 June 2015, and was redesignated as CEO of the Company on 29
October 2015.

Mr. Wu graduated from the Department of Mathematics (Applied
Mathematics Section), College of Science and Engineering and was
conferred the Degree of Bachelor of Science in June 2000, and graduated
from the Graduated School of Management (Master's Program), College
of Management with a Degree of Master of Business Administration in
June 2002, both at the Fu-Jen Catholic University in Taiwan.

Mr. Wu served as a Territory Sales Representative of Seagate Technology
Taiwan Limited from October 2010 to October 2014 and has over 5
years of experience in the industry of information technology, and is
knowledgeable on technology trend and industry know-how.

Mr. Lu Chengye (“Mr. Lu"), aged 38, is an executive Director and a
vice CEO of the Company. Mr. Lu is in charge of the overall strategic
planning, business planning and decision making in all material matters
of communication system segment of the Group. Mr. Lu joined Rosy
Sun Group as a general manager of the Mainland subsidiary of Rosy Sun
Group in May 2012. Mr. Lu was appointed as Director on 29 May 2013
and was promoted as a vice CEO of the Company on 15 November 2013.

Mr. Lu has over 15 years of experience in the communication industry
gained in the Group and in his previous employment. Before joining
the Group, Mr. Lu worked as a director of the science and research
department of base station software development in a renowned
mobile communication equipment company in the PRC from April 2002
to August 2008, mainly responsible for the design, development and
implementation of solution of communication base station software. From
August 2009 to May 2012, Mr. Lu had served as the general manager of
TD-SCDMA/TD-LTE production line of another prestigious communication
equipment and technology firm, mainly in charge of the establishment
and research and development works for projects of wireless base
station and communication base station equipments. Mr. Lu obtained
his master degree of engineering from Xidian University (F% & 7 £
KE) majoring in information and communication engineering in March
2002. As an expert from TD-LTE workgroup of the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology of the People’s Republic of China (fF#E AR
HFE T (= 816 E6), Mr. Lu is the inventor of 7 patented technologies
in the communication sector over the last 15 years, and has published
several research papers on communication topics in various journals.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EEEE(E)

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. Wang Fang (“Ms. Wang"), aged 48, is an executive Director and
a vice CEO of the Company. Ms. Wang was appointed as Director and a
vice CEO of the Company on 23 December 2015.

Ms. Wang graduated from Nanjing University of Posts and
Telecommunications (formerly known as Nanjing College of Posts and
Telecommunications) (Radio Engineering Section) in July 1988, and
obtained a degree of master of Business Administration from the program
jointly organised by the Beijing University and Fordham University in May
2002.

Ms. Wang served as the president of Wafer Systems Limited since June
1995, wherein Ms. Wang was mainly responsible for daily business
operation, management and oversee of Wafer Systems Limited, including
decision making in corporate strategy, corporate policy review and internal
control. Ms. Wang has over 20 years of experience in the area of network
system integration. Wafer Systems Limited is an indirect subsidiary of the
Company since 13 November 2015.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Sek Keung, Ringo (“Mr. Chan”), aged 56, is the chairman
of the Board and a non-executive Director. Mr. Chan was appointed as
Director on 23 December 2015 and was appointed as the chairman of the
Board on 25 February 2016.

Mr. Chan has obtained a degree of Bachelor of Science in Engineering
from The University of Hong Kong in November 1981. Mr. Chan was a
fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and is currently
a member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
for Chengdu, Sichuan Province, the PRC. Mr. Chan has over 30 years
of experience in the IT and network industry. Mr. Chan has previously
worked for various multi-national corporations such as General Electric
Company, Case Communications Limited and Infa Telecom Limited and
served in senior executive positions in the Asia Pacific region. In November
1998, Mr. Chan founded Melcolot Limited (“MelcoLot”) (stock code:
8198), a company whose securities are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM") of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan was appointed as an
executive director and the chairman of MelcoLot from September 2001 to
December 2009. Mr. Chan was re-designated as its non-executive director
in December 2009 and resigned as its chairman with effect from February
2010. In March 2010, Mr. Chan was re-appointed as the chairman of
MelcoLot. Since then, Mr. Chan remained as a non-executive director and
the chairman of Melcolot until July 2013 when Mr. Chan resigned from
both positions. Mr. Chan is the sole director and a substantial shareholder
of each of Luster Wealth Limited and Woodstock Management Limited
since November 2012 and March 1997 respectively. Mr. Chan also served
as a non-executive director and the chairman of the board of directors
of Finsoft Financial Investment Holdings Limited (stock code: 8018)
(“Finsoft”), a company whose shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange from since September 2013 and is the substantial shareholder (as
defined in the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) of Finsoft.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EEEE(E)

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Chan also served as the chief executive officer of Wafer Systems
Limited and the sole director of Smoothly Global. Wafer Systems Limited is
an indirect subsidiary of the Company since 13 November 2015.

Mr. Wong Kui Shing, Danny (“Mr. Wong"), aged 57, is a non-
executive Director and the chairman of the nomination committee of the
Company (the “Nomination Committee”). Mr. Wong was appointed as
Director on 24 September 2015.

Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Wong has extensive exposure in the financial and investment
fields for over 20 years and is well experienced in the international
investment market.

Mr. Wong has been a vice CEO of the Company since 27 June 2015 and
due to change in work arrangement and his desire to devote more time
to his other business commitments, Mr. Wong has resigned from his
position as a vice CEO of the Company with effect from 24 September
2015 following his appointment as a non-executive Director. Mr. Wong
has been appointed as an executive director and an executive committee
member of Ceneric (Holdings) Limited (a company the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 542) since
August 2015. Mr. Wong is also an executive director of China Information
Technology Development Limited (“China Information”) (a company the
shares of which are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
8178) since March 2015. Mr. Wong was appointed as the chairman of
China Information in July 2015. Mr. Wong has been appointed as a non-
executive director of Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding)
Limited (a company the shares of which are listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 8181) since October 2015.

Mr. Wong was a former executive director and managing director of See
Corporation Limited (a company the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 491) from December 2009
to January 2015. In addition, Mr. Wong was a former executive director
of SMI Holdings Group Limited (Former name: SMI Corporation Limited)
(stock code: 198) from November 2011 to June 2014 and China Oil and
Gas Group Limited (stock code: 603) from September 2004 to August
2006, both companies the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Thomas Tam (“Mr. Tam”) (formerly known as Tam Kwok Hing),
aged 68, is an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of
the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”), and a
member of each of the Nomination Committee and the C&B Committee.
Mr. Tam was appointed as Director on 29 May 2013.

Mr. Tam is as a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (then known as the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants) and was admitted in 1995.

Mr. Tam was founder of Tam Kwok Hing & Co., Certified Accountants
(now under the name Wongs & Tam, Certified Public Accountants), a
certified public accountants firm in Hong Kong set up in 1972 and he is
now a consultant of Wongs & Tam. Mr. Tam was admitted as an associate
of the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants in 1972 and a
fellow member in 1980. Mr. Tam was also enrolled to practice before
the Internal Revenue Service of the United States of America since 1994.
Mr. Tam is currently an independent non-executive director of Sing Lee
Software (Group) Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock
code: 8076).

Mr. Pao Ping Wing (“Mr. Pao”), aged 68, is an independent non-
executive Director, a member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Pao was appointed as Director on 29 May
2013.

Mr. Pao obtained a master of science degree in human settlements
planning and development from Asian Institute of Technology in April
1980. Mr. Pao had been actively serving on government committees
and statutory bodies, including those relating to town planning, urban
renewal, public housing and environment matters over 20 years. Mr. Pao
was elected as one of the Ten Outstanding Young Persons of Hong Kong
in 1982 and one of the Ten Outstanding Young Persons of the World in
1983. Mr. Pao has been appointed as a Non-official Justice of the Peace
for Hong Kong in 1987.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

From 1987, Mr. Pao has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of various companies listed on the Stock Exchange
and has extensive experiences in corporate governance. In particular,
Mr. Pao has also been an independent non-executive director of Oriental
Press Group Limited (stock code: 18) since July 1987, DTXS Silk Road
Investment Holdings Company Limited (formerly known as UDL Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 620) from August 1997 to November 2015, Sing
Lee Software (Group) Limited (stock code: 8076) since December 2003,
Zhuzhou CSR Times Electric Co., Ltd. (stock code: 3898) since September
2005, New Environmental Energy Holdings Limited (stock code: 3989)
since June 2006, Maoye International Holdings Limited (stock code: 848)
since August 2007, Soundwill Holdings Limited (stock code: 878) since
November 2009 and JC Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8326) since
January 2015, all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Qu Wen Zhou (“Mr. Qu”), aged 43, is an independent non-
executive Director and a member of each of the C&B Committee,
Nomination Committee and Audit Committee. Mr. Qu was appointed as
Director on 25 June 2015.

Mr. Qu graduated from the Department of Applied Mathematics with
a Degree of Bachelor of Science in July 1995, and graduated from the
Department of Finance with a Degree of Master of Economics in June
1999, and graduated with a Degree of Master of Business Administration
in July 2001, all at EFIAE (Xiamen University*) in the PRC. Mr. Qu
obtained a PhD degree in Finance from Xiamen University in 2003 and
Mr. Qu was a Postdoctoral Fellow in Business Administration of Tsinghua
University in 2005. Furthermore, Mr. Qu has been a Chartered Financial
Analyst (CFA) charterholder since November 2004 and Mr. Qu has been
a certified public accountant (CPA) of FRE &6t & (Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants*) since November 2003.

Mr. Qu served as a professor of Business Management in Xiamen
University from August 2010 to July 2013.

Mr. Qu has more than 10 years of experience in securities investment and
management. Mr. Qu has been appointed as an independent director of
Geo-Jade Petroleum Corporation (stock code: 600759: Shanghai stock
exchange), Shenzhen Laibao Hi-Tech Co., Ltd. (stock code: 002106:
Shenzhen stock exchange), Shandong Airlines Co., Ltd. (stock code:
200152: Shenzhen stock exchange), Fujian Cosunter Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (stock code: 300436: Shenzhen stock exchange), Guangdong
Baolihua New Energy Stock Company Limited (stock code: 000690:
Shenzhen stock exchange), and an independent non-executive director of
Mingfa Group (International) Company Limited (stock code: 846: Hong
Kong Stock Exchange).

*  The English names are for identification purpose only
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Qu was appointed as an independent director of Xiamen International
Airport Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600897: Shanghai stock exchange) from
May 2007 to May 2014, and Xingye Leather Technology Co., Ltd. (stock
code: 002674: Shenzhen stock exchange) from December 2008 to
December 2013.

Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen, aged 52, is an independent non-executive
Director, the chairman of the C&B Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee. Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen was appointed as Director on 25
June 2015.

Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen graduated from the University of New South
Wales in Australia with a Degree of Master of Information Science in
October 1994.

Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen served as a Manager, Design/Architecture of
IBM Australia Limited from May 1995 to April 2001. Mr. Lu, Brian Yong
Chen then served as a Client Unit Executive in the IBM Global Technology
Services Department of IBM China/Hong Kong Limited from 2001 to
2012, and a partner of the Business Application Consulting Sector of IBM
(China) Company Limited from June 2012.

Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen is a successful corporate executive with excellent
business strategy capability and well established business connections
in the Asia Pacific region. Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen has over 20 years
of management experience in Fortune 100 companies in Australia,
Hong Kong and the PRC, assisting in enterprises with their business
transformation and growth.

Mr. Huang Liangkuai (“Mr. Huang”), aged 73, is an independent
non-executive Director and a member of each of the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the C&B Committee. Mr. Huang was
appointed as Director on 25 February 2016.

Mr. Huang graduated from the department of economics of Xiamen
University (Fujian, PRC) in August 1966 with major in statistics.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Huang has been the chief representative of the Shenzhen Research
Institute of Xiamen University (& PIAE R YIHFFTPT) and vice chairman of
Xiamen University Alumni General Association since August 1999. From
November 1984 to December 1998, Mr. Huang served as the chief of the
general affairs division, chief of the assets division and vice chairman of
the alumni association at Xiamen University. Mr. Huang was the secretary
to the party committee of the school of economics at Xiamen University
from September 1979 to October 1984.

Mr. Huang has been appointed as an external supervisor of Shengjing
Bank Co., Ltd. (stock code: 2066) since May 2014, and as an independent
non-executive director of China New Economy Fund Limited (stock code:
80) since February 2015 both the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Huang acted as the chairman of Beijing Kaixuan Investment
Management Co., Ltd. Jt REFEREEIEGR A F]) from 6 February
2007 to 17 December 2010. This company was established in China and
had no substantial business operations upon its establishment and its
business license was revoked by the relevant authority on 17 December
2010 due to the failure to conduct annual inspection. Mr. Huang
confirmed that he was not involved in the actual operation of the
company and has not assumed any contingent liabilities nor has he been
subject to any relevant claims as a result of the revocation of the business
license of the aforesaid company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHRE

The Directors are pleased to submit herewith this annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and its principal place of business in Hong Kong is 33rd Floor, Shui
On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is a services and products provider for the global
communication system and consumer electronics markets. For the year
ended 31 December 2015, the Group was mainly engaged in designs,
development and provision of communication system and manufacture
and sale of signal transmission and connectivity products.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business and its outlook are set out in the
sections of Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion & Analysis.
Certain financial key performance indicators are provided in the section of
Financial Summary.

On 24 March 2016, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Sina Trade Limited and Mr. Mao Hai Tao for the
acquisition of 100% of the issued share capital of Yao Neng at a total
cash consideration of HK$400.0 million. Save as the disclosed above, no
important event affecting the Group has occurred since the end of the
financial year under review up to the date of this report.

The Group complies with the requirements under the Companies
Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the SFO for the disclosure of
information and corporate governance. The Group also complies with
the requirements of Employment Ordinance and ordinances relating to
occupational safety for the interest of employees of the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group treasures the environment and is committed to minimising its
carbon footprints as a socially responsible enterprise. Carbon footprint
is defined as the total amount of direct and indirect emissions of green
house gases (GHGs) expressed in terms of the equivalent amount of
carbon dioxide of (CO2) emission. Non-hazardous wastes produced
from the Group mainly consist of used paper such as office papers and
marketing materials. To minimise the impact of carbon footprints on the
environment, the Group implements the following practices to use paper
efficiently:

o Duplex printing is set as the default mode for most network
printers;

o Employees are reminded to practice photocopying wisely;

o Employees are encouraged to use both sides of paper;

o Paper waste is recycled instead of being directly disposed of in
landfills;

o Paper is separated from other waste for easier recycling; and

o Boxes and trays are placed beside photocopiers as containers to

collect used single-sided paper for reuse purpose.

Electricity consumption is identified as having an adverse impact on the
environment and natural resources. A typical commercial building uses
more energy for lighting than for other electric equipment. The Group is
determined to reduce energy consumption and implement conservation
practices to reduce the effect of carbon footprint. “Air Conditioning
and Light Zone Arrangements” reduce unnecessary electricity usage;
employees enforce good practices in maintenance of lighting and electric
equipment to ensure they are kept in good and proper condition to
maximise efficiency.

KEY RISK FACTORS

The following lists out the key risks and uncertainties facing the Group.

Impact of Local and International Regulations

The business operation of the Group is subject to government policies,
relevant regulations and guidelines established by the regulatory
authorities. Failure to comply with applicable rules and requirements may
lead to penalties, amendments or suspension of the business operation
by the authorities. The Group closely monitors changes in government
policies, regulations and markets as well as conducting studies to assess
the impact of such changes.
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KEY RISK FACTORS (Continued)

Third-Party Risks

The Group has been relying on third-party service providers in parts of
business to improve performance and efficiency of the Group. While
gaining the benefits from external service providers, management realises
that such operational dependency may pose a threat of vulnerability
to unexpected poor or lapses in service including reputation damage,
business disruption and monetary losses. To address such uncertainties,
the Group only engages reputable third-party providers and closely
monitors their performance.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group recognises the accomplishment of the employees by providing
comprehensive benefit package, career development opportunities and
internal training appropriate to individual needs. The Group provides a
healthy and safe workplace for all employees. No strikes and cases of
fatality due to workplace accidents are found in the year under review.

The Group encompasses working relationships with suppliers to meet our
customers’ needs in an effective and efficient manner. Each department
works closely to make sure the tendering and procurement process is
conducted in an open, fair and just manner. The Group’s requirements
and standards are also well-communicated to suppliers before the
commencement of a project.

The Group values the views and opinions of all customers through
various means and channels, including usage of business intelligence to
understand customer trends and needs and regular analysis on customer
feedback. The Group also conducts comprehensive tests and checks
to ensure that only quality products and services are offered to the
customers.
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CORPORATE REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 16 November
2007 as an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. Pursuant to a group reorganisation to rationalise the structure of
the Group in preparation for the public listing of the Shares on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing”), the Company became the
holding company of the companies then comprising the Group on 30
January 2008.

Details of the corporate reorganisation are set out in the section headed
"History, Reorganisation and Group Structure” and in Appendix VI
“Statutory and General Information” to the prospectus of the Company
for the Listing. The Shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange since
16 November 2010.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 1 to the
financial statements.

DIVIDEND

The Directors consider that the declaration, payment and amount of the
dividend shall be subject to the status of the Group’s future development.
The Board does not recommend any final dividend for the financial year
ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil) and will consider to formulate a
dividend policy at an appropriate time in the future.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

The Company's reserves available for distribution, calculated in accordance
with the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately RMB656.8
million as at 31 December 2015. Such amount includes the Company’s
share premium and capital reserve accounts of approximately RMB631.8
million and retained profits of approximately RMB25.0 million in
aggregate as at 31 December 2015.

43

NEEMR

AARR_TELF+— A+ BEREFEHE QR
EE2B(1961FE3RED - BFERET)EMES
HEEMKLA—FTERRBREMRF - RIE—IA
RIBIEAEBERE - NBHERONERZMERARML
m( LW METHEESAE  ARFAR_FTTN\F
— A= TERAHERBERAEE 2 ARMIER AT

BERAREANFBHRREALTNARRHERER
RIS  BEEREERE |- RMEARDEER—
RER] - BMEBA T —FF+— A +NBERERE
LT

K AR
BRAARRIMIE R RN FERA I B REM T -

=)
EERA  TEREKARS LS BAZAEBRR

BRAA AR - EFFU TRERBE_T—1F
T A=t RLMBREFEEREMRBRE(=ZF
—mE - E) > BRSE RN BREEREEIRI R

s

KO

IR S

RZE—RF+_A=+—8  ZHEESHEREF
22Z (1961 FFE35AN - KERE RIEFEE - AR
RIMA D RFEE AN AREES6.8AE T - 208
BREARRNR-_ZE—AF+_A=+—BRHEEKR
BARBEBOANREEI SEE TR REENHARE
25.0B87T °



HL Technology Group Limited SL#RHE EBHR A 7
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

ExeRE (&

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The transfer books and register of members of the Company will be
closed from 20 May 2016 (Friday) to 27 May 2016 (Friday) (both dates
inclusive) during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered.
In order to qualify for attending and voting at the AGM, all transfers of
Shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on 19 May 2016 (Thursday).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed herein, no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company or its subsidiaries were entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the aggregate sales
attributable to the Group’s top five largest customers comprised
approximately 67.8% (2014: 73.5%) of the Group’s sales from continuing
operations and the sales attributable to the Group's largest customer were
approximately 31.0% of the Group’s sales from continuing operations.
The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s top five largest
suppliers comprised approximately 86.6% (2014: 73.7%) of the Group's
purchases from continuing operations for the year and the purchases
attributable to the Group's largest supplier were approximately 29.8% of
the Group's purchases from continuing operations for the year.

So far as is known to the Directors, none of the Directors, their close
associates or any Shareholders owning more than 5% of the Company’s
issued shares capital had any interest in the share capital of any of the top
five largest customers and suppliers of the Group.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 and the
Group's financial position at that date are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 75 to 78.

OPERATING RESULTS

The Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 75 of this report.

The Group's profit attributable to owners of the parent for the year ended
31 December 2015 was approximately RMB24.9 million.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in note 30 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the financial year ended 31 December 2015 and up
to the date of this report include:

@S

AARMNBE_T—AF+-_A=T—HILFENK

BEN RN IR M 30 -

=S

REBEE_Z-—AF+T_A=+T—HILMBRFEREE

AmERR  EFBE:

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Wu Chi Luen (CEO) REMEE(EHR)

(appointed on 25 June 2015)¢ (R=ZZE—RF A +EAERI)"
Mr. Lu Chengye (Vice CEO) R E LA (FIHEE)
Ms. Wang Fang (Vice CEO) FHELZT(EEZ)

(appointed on 23 December 2015) (RZE-—RF+_AZT=REZEMT)
Mr. Chi Shaolin (Chairman and CEO) B (EEHREE)

(resigned on 29 October 2015)* (R=ZZ—RF+A=+NBEEI)*
Mr. Cheng Wen (Vice CFO) B S (Fl#EEE)

(resigned on 23 December 2015)* (R—ZT—ARE+-_A-+=BFT)*

FHITES

BRE5 98 (F /)
(R=ZZE—RF+-_A=-+=-BEZT)*

FHEREE(RZE—RAFNAZTOAEEZT)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Sek Keung, Ringo (Chairman)
(appointed on 23 December 2015)*
Mr. Wong Kui Shing, Danny (appointed on 24 September 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHITES

Mr. Thomas Tam BB S

Mr. Pao Ping Wing THIRE A

Mr. Qu Wen Zhou (appointed on 25 June 2015) EXMEE(RZE—RAF A +HRHERT)
Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen (appointed on 25 June 2015) BEXBRAEE(RZE—RAFNA-+HHEZRT)
Mr. Huang Liangkuai (appointed on 25 February 2016) BRBALE(R-Z—E-_A-_+HBEZT)

Ms. Zheng Lin (resigned on 29 October 2015)* Bzt (R=ZE—RAF T+ A=+ BEE)*

BOMELBRENTES BEFSIRNEE - BEXE
EBERNTES - MEMRLLBHEBLIFRTES - A
RREZREREREART 2 BT -

* Mr. Chi Shaolin resigned as an executive Director, the chairman of the Board *
and CEO, Mr. Cheng Wen resigned as an executive Director and Ms. Zheng Lin
resigned as an independent non-executive Director in order to devote more time
on their other business commitments.

REMEER-_Z-AF+A-TARBAELARTL
B MRBALEEN _B—R"F_A_+HBEEZER
EEgIR -

# Mr. Wu Chi Luen was redesignated as CEO of the Company on 29 October #
2015 and Mr. Chan Sek Keung, Ringo was appointed as the chairman of the
Board on 25 February 2016.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of independence in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with
the Listing Rules.

Mr. Wu and Ms. Wang were appointed as executive Directors with effect
from 25 June 2015 and 23 December 2015 respectively. Mr. Wong and
Mr. Chan were appointed as non-executive Directors with effect from
24 September 2015 and 23 December 2015 respectively. Mr. Qu and
Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen were appointed as independent non-executive
Directors with effect from 25 June 2015. Mr. Huang was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 25 February 2016.
Pursuant to article 83(3) of the articles of association of the Company (the
"Articles of Association”), Mr. Wu, Ms. Wang, Mr. Wong, Mr. Chan, Mr.
Qu, Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen and Mr. Huang will hold office as Directors
until the AGM which will be held on 27 May 2016 (Friday) and subject to
re-election.

Pursuant to article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, at each annual
general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting
at least once every three years. Mr. Lu (executive Director), Mr. Tam
(independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Pao (independent non-
executive Director) will retire by rotation at the conclusion of the AGM
and be eligible to offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Wu (executive Director), Mr. Lu (executive Director), Ms. Wang
(executive Director), Mr. Chan (non-executive Director), Mr. Wong (non-
executive Director), Mr. Qu (independent non-executive Director), Mr. Lu,
Brian Yong Chen (independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Huang
(independent non-executive Director) will offer themselves for re-election
at the AGM. Mr. Tam (independent non-executive Director) and Mr.
Pao (independent non-executive Director) have informed the Company
that they will not offer themselves for re-election as Mr. Tam and Mr.
Pao would like to devote more time to pursue other career interests. Mr.
Tam and Mr. Pao have confirmed that they have no disagreements with
the Board and there are no matters which need to be brought to the
attention of the Shareholders.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has an
unexpired service contract which is not determinable by the Company or
any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The C&B Committee considers and recommends to the Board the
remuneration and other benefits paid by the Company to the Directors.
The remuneration of all Directors is subject to regular monitoring by
the C&B Committee to ensure that the levels of their remuneration and
compensation are appropriate. Details of Directors’ remuneration are set
out in note 8 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 33 to 39 of this
report.
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DISCLOSURE OF CHANGE IN INFORMATION ON
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change of information
on Directors is as follows:

Mr. Wong has been appointed as a non-executive director of Kong Shum
Union Property Management (Holding) Limited (a company the shares of
which are listed on the GEM of the stock Exchange, stock code: 8181)
since October 2015.

Mr. Wu has been redesignated as CEO of the Company since October
2015.

Mr. Pao has resigned as an independent non-executive director of DTXS
Silk Road Investment Holdings Company Limited (formerly known as
UDL Holdings Limited) (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock Code: 620) since November 2015.

Mr. Chan has been appointed as the chairman of the Board since February
2016.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers liability
insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the
Directors is currently in force and was in force throughout the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report, no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance to which the Company, or any of its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director and
a connected entity of a Director had a material interest, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

48

REEEEREBE

RE EMARAE1351B)E  ESERFENAT

IThER - T—HF T AREZTABRBAMES
I (420 AR A B (— R E MR B R BTAIZER £
BT - BRIDREE : 8181) ZIFHITES o

REEA-_FT-RF+AERHEARARE -

AR T AT+ AREBHTAEAMARE
BERERAR(FIEATSESERRAR) (—HER
MR ER EMAATF] - BRMDRSR - 620) 2B
IENITES -

REEA T RE_AREZERESTSLIE -

EENREE
FRFEREERTRABBEABETRERR
MRBRAD T EFOMETHE GRS
REEEER M -

EENRG  RHHENF 2 EE

BRAREMWEEEIN - ARBHEAIERRF] - K
BAREFRRAMERAREERKHFRTMER I
BIVEERER WEERNETEAEAERZ
BEARS - kA -



ANNUAL REPORT 2015 —Z—HFF#f
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the Shares and underlying Shares
and its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provision of the SFO)
or which were required to be recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as follows:

Name of Directors Capacity

E5HR 51

Mr. Chan® Interest of controlled corporation
BRSE 4D EENEl 2o
Ms. Wang®@ Interest of controlled corporation
T t@ LB R

(L):  Long position
Notes:

(1) Mr. Chan was deemed to be interested in 110,000,000 Shares held by Smoothly

Global by virtue of it being owned as to 70% by Mr. Chan.

2) Ms. Wang was deemed to be interested in 110,000,000 Shares held by

Smoothly Global by virtue of it being owned as to 20% by Ms. Wang.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company had or was deemed to have any
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which
had been recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO or which had been notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

ExeRE (&

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any Director of the Company or their respective
spouses or minor children, or were such rights exercised by them, or was
the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debt securities (including
debentures) of the Company or any other body corporate.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Details of the equity-linked agreement entered into during the year or
subsisting at the end of the year are set out below:

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 25 October 2010 (the
“Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of enabling the Company to
grant options to selected eligible participants as incentives or rewards
for their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit
and retain high caliber employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group and any invested entity.

Eligible participants include the Directors, any employee (whether full-time
or part-time) or Shareholder, and any customer, supplier, agent, business
or joint venture business partner, consultant, distributor, promoter, service
provider, adviser or contractor to any member of the Group.

The maximum number of Share which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
Shares in issued as at the Listing Date, i.e. 72,000,000 Shares. There are
72,000,000 ordinary Shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme, representing approximately 9.2% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of this report. No option may be granted to
any participant of the Share Option Scheme such that the total number of
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and
to be granted to that person in any 12-month period up to the date of
the latest grant exceeds 1% of the Company’s issued share capital from
time to time.

50

EEREROIESFNZH

B EXCRTRERE SN - AN R BRI AR G (A B
AARBUEAIES - FESBHEBIRB /5
FRBHER] - FEARE AR R R B S B
Mg - MEFETEITEEMZFEN AR - BHiE
B B S EAE AT P B X R R SLAE T & B - BUE AR
REEFEFEEARR RS EMEMEABBHRD
HEBE S (BIEESR) MERH R

i SR 89 170 o
FRNEI LR ERDAER 2 BB ZF BN
T

BT E

ARBRZE—ZEF+ AT HHEMNBEREE
(MEkERTE )  BRNRSARAMEERERSH
ATREBREERREHAREMERR 2 S
B - R RSAEERIEARBEESEEURR
SIHAKEMEMREERAREENANER -

EERSEALBEREES  EAER (TRE2BER
B SIIR - U R AREBEARK B RBRERES
gy - I - ERRE 2 RRIEBRMY - @A
DHE  BA IR - BRSO ER -

BRI E R A EEE M EMAE S T REN
FrE R REITE MR TH R RDBETE
MmN LT BB TR, #10% (E172,000,000
BERE 15 ) - IRBERE ST BTEBREE A
72,000,0008% 1A A E HEAIAR R BB BITIRAL
9.2% ° WME M & Mg RERT ZIN A2 EA LT
LHEREETFERSEREEO R 2B IEER
+ @A BEARZATEETREETHRDEH
BRARBRTREEBEITRANI% - AITBRZAL
B g -



ANNUAL REPORT 2015 —Z—HF 5

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EFERE(&

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT (Continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period as determined by the Board
and not exceeding 10 years from the date of the grant. There is no
minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised. Participants of the Share Option Scheme are required to pay the
Company HK$1.0 upon acceptance of the grant on the offer date. The
exercise price of the options is determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion and shall not be less than which ever is the highest of:

(@)  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets on the date of the grant, which must be a
business day;

(b) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five (5) trading days
immediately preceding the date of the grant; and

() the nominal value of a Share.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10

years from 15 November 2010 after which no further options will be

granted or offered.

There is no options outstanding, granted, exercised, cancelled and lapsed
during the year ended 31 December 2015.
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EEERE (&
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND TERERABROREERONESR LA
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES

So far as is known to any Directors or chief executives of the Company, as AR THEAEEFXZSTRAERH > R-Z—0
at 31 December 2015, the persons or corporations (other than Directors F+=-A=+—H  RAQ TRk H RIEERGF#ES
or chief executives of the Company) who had interest or short positions in  ##zs sk A B M/BIRIEE & KBS EHI EXVEFE2 &35
the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company which were required to  EHEXAIAR FIRE » kDN RIEEALPEE
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of  J|Z336(8BERE Y ZEMM AT ZE (KA G ES
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be  s{&ESITHAEBRINIOT :

kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Percentage of

Number of the issued

issued ordinary share capital of

Name of Substantial shares of the the Company

Shareholders Capacity Company held (approximate)
HAR AT E BT

AR E REBD L

FERRHES 54 ERTEEREE (E49)

Smoothly Global Holdings Limited  Beneficial owner®

(“Smoothly Global”) EmEAAD 110,000,000 (L) 14.1%
Asia Venture Holdings Corporation  Beneficial owner@

("AVHC") BRmEA A 97,000,839 (L) 12.4%
Liu Dafan (“Mr. Liu™) Interest of controlled corporation® 97,000,839 (L) 12.4%
ZIRAT2I5EED R EE RS
Castle Gate Ventures Limited Beneficial owner®

(“Castle Gate") 90,000,000 (L) 11.5%
BRAKARAR(2EEKR]) BERZERAO
Cheng Wen (“Mr. Cheng”) Interest of controlled corporation® 90,000,000 (L) 11.5%
X ([HREAE]) R EE e
Constant Courage Limited Person having a securities interest®@

("Constant Courage”) 90,000,000 (L) 11.5%
BEEERAR(EE] REESEm A L9
Lu Lihang (“Mr. Lu") Interest of controlled corporation®@ 90,000,000 (L) 11.5%
ER(TELE]D R B RO
Kingston Finance Limited Person having a securities interest®

("Kingston”) 90,000,000 (L) 11.5%
SHEFBERIR([SFE]) FEIFERALO
Ample Cheer Limited (“Ample”) Interest of controlled corporation® 90,000,000 (L) 11.5%

g NE D
Best Forth Limited (“Best Forth”) Interest of controlled corporation® 90,000,000 (L) 11.5%
AR
Chu Yuet Wah (“Miss Chu”) Interest of controlled corporation® 90,000,000 (L) 11.5%
FRZE(Z/E]) EEENE Tl
(L):  Long position Ln: T
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

(1) These 110,000,000 Shares are held by Smoothly Global, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability and is 70% and 20% owned by
Mr. Chan and Ms. Wang respectively.

2) These 97,000,839 Shares are held by AVHC, a company incorporated in the British
West Indies with limited liability and is wholly-owned by Mr. Liu.

3) Castle Gate, which entire issued share capital was owned by Mr. Cheng, held
11.5% interest in the Company. Mr. Cheng serves as the sole director of Castle
Gate. On 24 June 2015, Castle Gate (as pledgor) pledged 90,000,000 Shares in
favour of Constant Courage (as pledgee) as security for a loan provided to Castle
Gate.

4) These 90,000,000 Shares are held by Constant Courage (as pledgee), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability and is wholly-owned
by Mr. Lu.

(5) On 23 October 2015, for the pledged 90,000,000 Shares held by Constant
Courage in its capacity as pledgee, Constant Courage (as assignor) assigned
the same to Kingston (as assignee) as security for a loan provided by Kingston.
Kingston is 100% controlled by Ample, Ample is 80% controlled by Best Forth
which is in turn 100% controlled by Miss Chu. Miss Chu is deemed or taken to be
interested in the shares held by Kingston (as assignee) for the purpose of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, the Directors are not
aware of any other person or corporation (other than Directors or chief
executives of the Company) having an interest or short position in the
Shares and underlying Shares which would require to be recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this Report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float of not less than 25%
of the Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules during
the year ended 31 December 2015.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS
Save as disclosed in this report, no contract of significance has been
entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the then
controlling Shareholders or any of their subsidiaries, at any time during
the year ended 31 December 2015.
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ExeRE (&

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS
None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from
the Group’s business, that competes or competed or is or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to and including
the date of this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditors have issued a letter containing unqualified conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transactions as detailed in the section headed
“Management Discussion & Analysis” in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions, and confirmed that these transactions
have been entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group on normal commercial terms which are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the independent Shareholders as a whole, and in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing them.

Save for the connected transactions in the section headed “Management
Discussion & Analysis”, all related party transactions disclosed in note
40 to the financial statements did not constitute connected transaction
or continuing connected transaction of the Company subject to, among
other things, reporting, announcement or independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
related party transactions under the paragraph headed “Compensation
of key management personnel of the Group” in note 40(d) to the
financial statements were exempted from reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule
14A.73(6) of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2015, cash and bank balances (excluding pledged
deposits) of the Group amounted to approximately RMB192.1 million
(2014: approximately RMB170.0 million). Details of such are set out in
note 24 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had total interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings of approximately RMB41.3 million (2014: approximately
RMB489.4 million), among which approximately RMB4.7 million was
secured by the Group’s pledged deposit. Details of such are set out in
note 28 to the financial statements.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed 404 employees (2014:
971). The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is determined
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. The Company
adopted the Share Option Scheme to provide incentive to its senior
management and employees. Please refer to the paragraphs headed
“Share Option Scheme” in this report for details of such scheme.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the total staff costs from
continuing operations (including directors’ and the chief executive’s
remuneration) amounted to approximately RMB15.7 million (2014:
approximately RMB38.2 million). The Company maintains a Share Option
Scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to the eligible
participants for their contributions to the Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five financial years is set out in the financial summary section on
pages 10, 12 to 14 to this report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of employee retirement schemes of the Group are set out in
note 6 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company
to offer new Shares to existing Shareholders on a pro-rata basis.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company issued and
allotted 110,000,000 ordinary Shares to settle part of the consideration
of the sale and purchase agreement dated 6 November 2015 in relation
to the acquisition of 75% equity interest in Fortune Grace from Smoothly
Global. As Fortune Grace and its subsidiaries engaged in network
system integration and software solutions, the Directors believed that
the acquisition was in line with the overall strategy of the Company and
would enable the Company to broaden its revenue resource and enhance
profitability. Accordingly, the Directors considered that the entering of the
sale and purchase agreement was in the interests of the Company. Also,
as the terms of the sale and purchase agreement were determined after
arm’s length negotiations between the parties thereto, the Directors were
of the view that the terms of the sale and purchase agreement (including
the basis of consideration) were on normal commercial terms and were
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Group and the Shareholders
as a whole.

On 13 November 2015, all conditions under the sale and purchase
agreement were fulfilled, and 75% equity interest in Fortune Grace
was transferred to the Company and 110,000,000 ordinary Shares
of HK$2.36 each were issued and allotted to Smoothly Global. As
at the date of this report, the Company has settled part of the cash
consideration in the amount of HK$100.4 million. The relevant parties
to the agreement entered into supplemental agreements to the sale and
purchase agreement and further agreed to extend the payment date of
the remaining cash consideration of HK$90.0 million to 30 June 2016.

Details of the said acquisition have been set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 13 October 2015, 6 November 2015 and 13
November 2015.

In addition, during July 2015, the Company repurchased a total of
50,000,000 fully paid ordinary Shares at an aggregate consideration
of approximately HK$189.8 million on the Stock Exchange (the “Share
Repurchase”). All the repurchased ordinary Shares were subsequently
cancelled.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Particulars of the repurchases are as follows:

(CONTINUED)

BE  LEIEEEALQTN LETRE@)

BRFEHIIWT

Number of Price per share or Lowest Aggregate
ordinary Shares highest price paid price paid consideration
repurchased (GL€)) (GL€)) price (HK$)
BRERS
fHeEE HHBEE RERLE
BEEERHE (&) (&) (&)
July 2015 5,000,000 3.89 (N/A) 19,450,000
—F-hFtA (TER)
9,900,000 4.10 4.03 40,104,000
8,000,000 4.05 3.91 31,755,000
8,000,000 3.90 3.89 31,160,000
11,000,000 3.59 3.51 38,855,000
8,100,000 3.57 3.48 28,448,000
Details of the Share Repurchase have been set out in the announcements B EIRE DB O EHIINAA T A - T —HE+
of the Company dated 15 July 2015 and 24 July 2015. B+ERAR-—ZE—RAF+AE-+MBEHAL -
Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries g B L4 BE—E—FAE+—-A=+—8

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s securities during the
year ended 31 December 2015.

AGM
The AGM will be held on 27 May 2016 (Friday) and the notice of AGM
will be published and despatched to Shareholders in due course.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 have been audited by Ernst & Young.

Ernst & Young will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board
Wu Chi Luen
Executive Director and CEO

Hong Kong
30 March 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELIRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Directors recognise the importance of incorporating the elements of
good corporate governance into the management structures and internal
control procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective accountability
to the Shareholders as a whole. The Board strives to uphold good
corporate governance and adopt sound corporate governance practices
continuously in the interest of Shareholders to enhance the overall
performance of the Group. The principles and applicable code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in the
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules have been adopted by and complied
with the Group throughout the year except for the following deviation.

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairman and the chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. For the year ended 31 December 2015,
as the Board considered that vesting the roles of chairman and CEO in the
same individual was beneficial to the business prospects and management
of the Group, chairman of the Board and CEO were performed by Mr. Chi
until he tendered his resignation on 29 October 2015. Mr. Wu has been
appointed as the CEO since Mr. Chi’s resignation. Mr. Chan has been
appointed as the chairman of the Board with effect from 25 February
2016.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors. On specific enquiries made, all Directors confirmed that
they complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code and
its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions during the
year ended 31 December 2015.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

EER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

As at 31 December 2015, the Board comprises three executive Directors,
two non-executive Directors and four independent non-executive
Directors. The composition of the Board as at 31 December 2015 was as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Chi Luen (CEO)
Mr. Lu Chengye (Vice CEO)
Ms. Wang Fang (Vice CEO)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Sek Keung, Ringo
Mr. Wong Kui Shing, Danny

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Thomas Tam

Mr. Pao Ping Wing

Mr. Qu Wen Zhou

Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen

The biographical details of all Directors are set out in pages 33 to 39
of this report. Save as disclosed herein, to the best knowledge of the
Company, there is no other financial, business, family or other material or
relevant relationships among the members of the Board.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director having
sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and strategic planning
experience and/or expertise relevant to the business of the Group. The
Board brings a variety of experiences and expertise to the Company.

Functions of the Board

The Board takes overall responsibility to oversee all major matters of
the Group, including the formulation and approval of all policy matters,
considering and approving overall development strategies, financial
objectives, annual budget, investment proposals, monitoring and
controlling the operation and financial performance, internal control and
risk management systems of the Group and to assume the responsibilities
of corporate governance of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

EER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board meetings and Board practices

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board held 14 meetings,
among which, 4 meetings were regular Board meetings. The Directors
can attend meetings in person or through other means of electronic
communication in accordance with the Articles of Association. The
company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) will assist
the chairman of the Board, or executive Director when the position of the
chairman of the Board is vacant, to prepare the agenda of the meeting
and all Directors have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda
for the Board meetings. Notices of at least 14 days for regular Board
meetings are given to the Directors and Board procedures in compliance
with the Articles of Association, as well as relevant rules and regulations.
The Directors are provided with relevant materials relating to the matters
brought before the meetings. All Directors have separate and independent
access to the senior management and the Company Secretary at all time
and will be able to seek independent professional advice at the Company’s
expenses. The Company Secretary is also responsible for ensuring the
procedures of the Board meetings are observed and providing the
Board with opinions on matters in relation to the compliance with the
procedures of the Board meetings. All minutes of Board meetings were
recorded in sufficient details of the matters considered by the Board and
the decisions reached.

The numbers of the Board meetings held and the attendances of each
Director at the Board meetings for the year ended 31 December 2015
have been set out as follows:

& (&)

EEEm)

EZ2SENEEEER
BE-—T-—AG+_A-+-BLEE 583
THmkes MERNASSEATHESSSS -
BEBESI2ME  EETHSNEBEMETBRE
FREEEE - AQTHADWE(AFWE D) B
BEEEIHE(NAMNESS TR —BET - B ART
EE)EREEEE  FAEEHAKEBEASER
MAZBEREZRIEZN - AAFAELIRANI4BH
EEULTHESeeRRS  MESQRFYYT
MRS R R ARRIR R IR - EEBN e
2 IR BB IR R MR o BT B E AIRE
REREESNEEE N AR WMERE WA SSE L
BEES  BAMAATAE - ATWMENE ERE
REEETEECERRSF  TRATESe SRR
FHEENESSRESE c MAEESSR0LH
TR WEM S EEE D EENEEREL®

RTE e

BE_ZT-AF+-A=+—HLFE SARzE
FEER LB EFHREFEERZIBAMT :

No. of Board meetings held: EEHREESERAE 14
Name of the Director BEEHF
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lu Chengye BERK RSB 14/14

Mr. Wu Chi Luen (appointed on 25 June 2015)
Ms. Wang Fang (appointed on 23 December 2015)

REMAE(RZE—RFNAZTHBEEE)
EFrat(R=F-—AFt-_A-_t+=BREZE) 171

11/11

Mr. Chi Shaolin (resigned on 29 October 2015) (Note 1) BUMELE(R_E—RE+A -+ N BEHE)

(K1) 7/8
Mr. Cheng Wen (resigned on 23 December 2015) BXEE(R—E—RAF+-_A=-+=B&T) 12/12
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Wong Kui Shing, Danny FEER A
(appointed on 24 September 2015) (R=ZE—HFNA - THBEEEME) m7
Mr. Chan Sek Keung, Ringo BREZR ST E
(appointed on 23 December 2015) (R=T—RF+-_A=-+=RAEZMT) 171
Independent Non-executive Directors BUkHTES
Mr. Thomas Tam B S A 14/14
Mr. Pao Ping Wing IR SR A 14/14
Mr. Qu Wen Zhou (appointed on 25 June 2015) EXMHEE(R=ZZE—RAFA-tTHBEZTE) 11/11
Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen (appointed on 25 June 2015) BXxZFEEE(R_S—hENA -+ HHESET) 11/11
Ms. Zheng Lin (resigned on 29 October 2015) Bzt (R-_ZE—HF+A -+ L BEBEE) 8/8

Note 1. Mr. Chi abstained from 1 Board meeting due to conflict of interest.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
TREEHRSE (K)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) - E3-{C)

General meetings RERAE

The number of general meetings held and the attendance of each Director EHZE-ZT—FAF+_A=+—HItFE  CEBEZK
at the general meeting for the year ended 31 December 2015 have been  HAEXENEZSEFHEREAS ZFRMAT ¢

set out as follows:

No. of general meetings held: EBBRRAERE :
Name of the Director EEnE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lu Chengye D% $ivta 2/2
Mr. Wu Chi Luen (appointed on 25 June 2015) REMGEE(R_ZE—AFAA-_THBEEZT) 0/0
Ms. Wang Fang (appointed on 23 December 2015) IFErt+t(R—Z—RF+-_A-+=BHEZT) 0/0
Mr. Chi Shaolin (resigned on 29 October 2015) (Note 1) EADMEA(R=—E—FHF+ A -+ HEHT)
(K1) 172

Mr. Cheng Wen (resigned on 23 December 2015) BXEER=_E—AF+-_A=-+=H&ET) 0/2
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Wong Kui Shing, Danny FEER -

(appointed on 24 September 2015) (RZE—AFNAZTHREEME) 0/0
Mr. Chan Sek Keung, Ringo BRi5 8 &

(appointed on 23 December 2015) (R—E—RE+-_A-_+=BHEZE) 0/0
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Thomas Tam HEBIE A 1/2
Mr. Pao Ping Wing RS ST 1/2
Mr. Qu Wen Zhou (appointed on 25 June 2015) BXMEE(R_E—RFEA-_+HBEZRT) 0/0
Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen (appointed on 25 June 2015) Bk ZFHE(R-_ZE—HENA -+ HBEEZE) 0/0
Ms. Zheng Lin (resigned on 29 October 2015) gz t(R=F—AF+ A=+ NLBEFT) 172

Note 1: Mr. Chi abstained from 1 general meeting due to conflict of interest. Kizt1 : BEARNZFRMN —AREAS FBE -
Directors’ appointment, re-election and removal I ERREREE

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive Directors and the  &#778= « T ES N BT IEHNTESDEAD
independent non-executive Directors has entered into a service contract  FE[7 RRIEAH) - BHI=F  BIEIREAS HHIEX -

with the Company for a term of three years, all are subject to termination  FrE R A L AI4R I » siER—Hal A% HEHE
in accordance with the provisions of the service contract or by either party > =({A B #y= L EmEBA ML ©
giving the other not less than three months’ prior written notice.

By virtue of article 83(3) of the Articles of Association, Directors shall have  iRiE4R 44 Z=F24HR5833)1K « EE AT LEERKZ
the power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a  {F{I{f A+ A2 EERE BB RE
Director either to fill a casual vacancy of the Board or as an addition to & Ee A - (T EZE=e ST LA RS2
the existing Board. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual &EEWIHEEEHEZTENERERERS A
vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of Shareholders  RIRZ A e FIERE(T o (TS S R(TUER
after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and M EEe A SN EENTHEEEAN R NERE
any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board @& k@A | - EEEA ERERET -

shall hold office only until the next following AGM of the Company and

shall then be eligible for re-election.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

EER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ appointment, re-election and removal (Continued)
In compliance with the code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, all Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Furthermore, pursuant to article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Independent non-executive Directors have played a crucial role in the
Board by providing their independent judgment at the Board meeting
and scrutinizing the Group’s performance. Their views carry significant
weight in the Board's decision, in particular, they bring an impartial view
to bear on issues of the Group's strategy, performance and control.
All independent non-executive Directors possess extensive academic,
professional and industry expertise and management experience and have
provided their professional advices to the Board. The independent non-
executive Directors provide independent advice on the Group’s business
strategy, results and management so that all interests of the Shareholders
will be taken into account, and the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders can be protected.

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the Board
consists of five independent non-executive Directors, representing not less
than one-third of the Board, among the five independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Tam, possessing appropriate professional qualification in
accounting or related financial management expertise as required by Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received the annual written confirmation of
independence from each of its independent non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company, based on such
confirmations, considers that all the independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Tam, Mr. Pao, Mr. Qu, Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen and Mr.
Huang, are independent and they all meet the specific independence
guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

EER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Chairman and CEO

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairman and the chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. For the year ended 31 December 2015,
as the Board considered that vesting the roles of chairman and CEO in the
same individual was beneficial to the business prospects and management
of the Group, chairman of the Board and CEO were performed by Mr. Chi
until he tendered his resignation on 29 October 2015. Mr. Wu has been
appointed as the CEO since Mr. Chi’s resignation. Mr. Chan has been
appointed as the chairman of the Board with effect from 25 February
2016.

Delegation of powers

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for implementing
day-to-day operations, administration and management of the Group’s
businesses to the CEO, executive Directors, senior management and
certain specific responsibilities to the Board committees of the Company.
It is the job of the Board to determine the objectives of the Company
and it is the job of the executives and senior management to decide the
means by which those objectives are best achieved within rules of conduct
and limits of risk that are set by the Board. When the Board delegates
aspects of its management and administration functions to members
of the management team, it gives clear directions as to the powers of
management, in particular, with respect to the circumstances where the
management team needs to report back and obtain prior approval from
the Board before making decisions or entering into any commitments
on behalf of the Company. The delegated functions and work tasks are
regularly reviewed.

Continuous professional development

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors should
participate in a programme of continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company
should be responsible for arranging and funding training, placing an
appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of the Directors.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company had arranged to
provide to all Directors with the “Guidelines for Directors” and the “Guide
for Independent Non-executive Directors” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

¥EER
BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Continuous professional development (Continued)

The Company also updates the Directors and senior management on
the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices. In
particular, training sessions covering topics including the CG Code and
the disclosure of inside information had been held during the year ended
31 December 2015.

According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary of the
training received by the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2015 is

as follows:

& (&)

EEEm)

BFEEERR S
ARARNFEAEERSREIRE S MAER L TE
REMERAESHTHSNER  BREZYET R
BEIRTOEBAEE - ABlS  AATERE
FoT-RE+-A=+—BIHEEFETIEYIRRE
BERECETATURAEESHE

REERRHVLE  EERNBE_FT—AF+-A
=T RIEFENEIIERBANT

Attending
Reading training/briefing
Name of Directors materials sessions
HEEIIRE
BEpnE BBt I
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lu Chengye B 4 v
Mr. Wu Chi Luen REMmEE v 4
(appointed on 25 June 2015) (R=ZE—RFNA-+HBEZRT)
Ms. Wang Fang T+ v 4
(appointed on 23 December 2015) (R=E—RF+_A=_+=HEZXT)
Mr. Chi Shaolin EOMTEE v v
(resigned on 29 October 2015) (R=ZE—RF+A=-THLBET)
Mr. Cheng Wen B E v/ 4
(resigned on 23 December 2015) (R=ZZE—RF+=AZT=HFT)
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Wong Kui Shing, Danny FEERC & 4 v
(appointed on 24 September 2015) (R=ZZE—RFNAZTHEEZE)
Mr. Chan Sek Keung, Ringo FeR 8558 55 A 4 v
(appointed on 23 December 2015) (R=ZE—RF+-_A=-+=HEZMT)
Independent non-executive Directors BAFHTES
Mr. Thomas Tam HEE ST A 4 v
Mr. Pao Ping Wing SRR S A4 4 v
Mr. Qu Wen Zhou JESUM &= v 4
(appointed on 25 June 2015) (RZZE—RFAA-T+HBEEMT)
Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen =KERE A v 4
(appointed on 25 June 2015) (RZZE—RFAA-T+HBEEMT)
Ms. Zheng Lin 17 Y v v

(resigned on 29 October 2015)

Liability insurance for directors

(R=F—RFtA-TIBEE)

ESEERR

The Company has subscribed appropriate and sufficient insurance
coverage on directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions taken against
Directors arising out of corporate activities since 31 March 2015.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

EER

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established (i) the Audit Committee; (ii) the C&B
Committee; and (iii) the Nomination Committee, with defined terms
of reference. The latest versions of the terms of reference of the Board
committees which explain their respective role and the authority delegated
to them by the Board are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. The Board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice and other assistance in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Audit Committee

Composition

The Company established the Audit Committee pursuant to a resolution
of Directors passed on 25 October 2010 in compliance with Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee has set up the written terms of
reference which was revised on 22 March 2012 first and further revised on
26 November 2015. The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee
are to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment and
removal of external auditors, review the financial statements and material
advice in respect of financial reporting at least at half-year intervals, and
oversee the internal control procedures and risk management policies of
the Company constantly. The Audit Committee currently consists of five
members, namely, Mr. Tam, Mr. Pao, Mr. Qu, Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen
and Mr. Huang as at the date of this report, all of whom are independent
non-executive Directors. Mr. Tam currently serves as the chairman of
the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee has adopted the terms of
reference which are in line with the applicable code provisions in the CG
Code.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s annual results for the
year ended 31 December 2015, the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2015 and this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Audit Committee held 2
meetings to make recommendation on the re-appointment of external

auditors, review financial statements, financial reporting system, internal
control procedures and risk management policies of the Company. And
the attendance of each Audit Committee member for the year have been
set out as follows:
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EEEOKILNEZZES  (IFMEENZES
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“HRHABBMABRREILER EWRAEI21EMAK
Vo BEZEGCA AT EHBREE YN _F——
FZA-FT-BEERER] KR -_F—RF+—A
ZHRBEE-HER - EREBEENIZRA I
RERBURIMNERBA N ESSEHERRS 20
FHERMVBRRLBAVBRENERER - N
R EBARRNAIETEREF MEREIERR
RAREAH  ERLZBERATHMARKEAN 2
mHEE BELE  BELE aXRELERESEL
(ERBIUIFNTES)  MAKLERMETEREZR
IR BRZESCHEMELCEERTREM TR
ffR— BB S

ERZBRCBHASBEBRE_FT A 1T_A
=t RLEFENEFEE BE_T-AF1+-A
=T RLEFENGESWBERRIARE -

BE_Z-LF+_A=+—RHIFE EXZEe
BRMASHAZZBEINEZEE - BEARFN
MIFRRK - WIS RS - AREIEEF REREE
KR - AFEEBEZZBENBHEZBRNT

No. of Audit Committee meetings held: EEHEXZESERRY

Name of the Audit Committee members ERZEEREHE

Mr. Thomas Tam HEE LA 2/2
Mr. Pao Ping Wing HIRER S A 2/2
Mr. Qu Wen Zhou (appointed on 25 June 2015) BEXMEE(R=ZF—RAFAA=-THRBEEZT) 1”1
Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen (appointed on 25 June 2015) E:kZFHE(R-_E—RENA -+ HBEEZET) 11
Ms. Zheng Lin (resigned on 29 October 2015) BMaz+(R=ZE—RF+A=+NLEEHE) 212
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

C&B Committee

Composition

The Company established the C&B Committee pursuant to a resolution
of Directors passed on 25 October 2010 in compliance with Rule 3.25 of
the Listing Rules. The C&B Committee has set up with written terms of
reference which was revised on 22 March 2012. The primary duties of the
C&B Committee are to review and make recommendations to the Board
on the overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all Directors
and senior management of the Company. The compensation and
remuneration of all Directors and senior management of the Company
is subject to regular review by the C&B Committee to ensure that the
levels of their remuneration and compensation are appropriate and none
of the Directors determine their own remuneration. The C&B Committee
currently consists of five members, namely, Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen, Mr.
Tam, Mr. Qu, Mr. Huang (all are independent non-executive Directors)
and Mr. Wu (an executive Director) as at the date of this report. Mr. Lu,
Brian Yong Chen currently serves as the chairman of the C&B Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the C&B Committee held
5 meetings to review and make recommendation on the remuneration

policy and structure relating to Directors and senior management of the
Company. And the attendance of each C&B Committee member for the
year have been set out as follows:

[=] (nlE.)

Egéﬁa =)
FHRENEZEER
AR
Fi/N TE’J%@H&@%‘J?\EME%FE$EA —ZF
+AZ+HRABBRRERIE Lm%ﬁﬁll%nsﬂ%
ﬁ'ﬁﬁi %f@ﬂ&%aaﬂé:A‘“ﬁiﬁ%ﬁé%@lm_
—Z—FZAZ=+ZHEF]) - HFHEREANEESH
E%H;xﬁﬁﬁﬁm RITBESERSREEBZE
BHEMREREERNESSRHEES - ARRNAME
E%&%‘,ﬁ&%ﬁ@Eﬁ%l%&%ﬁ@ﬂf—m%@ﬂ&ﬁﬂéé
THER  UBRESOFHHEMSRITEE X
$ Hﬁﬁ%*ﬁ%ﬁé%E TETECHED - RARSE
HE - R EFZEQENBRAEKEHEN  BIF
BokBRELE AEE - Bh4E - 2EREBABIIE
%ﬂﬁ%%)&ﬁf‘ﬁi(%ﬂﬁé%) B KEREER A
EAFkENEZ8ex

BE_FT-AF+-A=1t—HLHFEE"
%8 Eﬁ-ﬂi‘i/’jgﬁuﬁﬁﬁﬁ ZEMARAESER
=AREEENFMBR RRE - AEEEHINREF
%B

EREHEZBRMT

B N AR A

E

No. of C&B Committee meetings held: EERFHMERNZE SR AE -

Name of C&B Committee members FHRENZEERER S

Mr. Thomas Tam BB 5/5
Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen (appointed on 25 June 2015) Ex k4 (R-—E—RESA -+ HAEZF) 3/3
Mr. Wu Chi Luen (appointed on 29 October 2015) RERAEENRZE—AF+A-TNLHEZT) 11
Mr. Qu Wen Zhou (appointed on 25 June 2015) EXNEE(R=E—RAFNA=-THAEZT) 3/3
Mr. Lu Chengye (resigned on 29 October 2015) BRELAE(R=_E—RF+A =+ NLBEE) 4/4
Ms. Zheng Lin (resigned on 29 October 2015) Bz (R —RAF T A=+ AEE) 4/4
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EER

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration policy for Directors and senior management
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is determined on
the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the C&B
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance, experience, responsibility, workload and time devoted to
the Company and comparable market statistics. Each of the executive
Directors is entitled to a basic salary which is reviewed annually. In
addition, each of the executive Directors may receive a discretionary bonus
as the Board may recommend. Such amount has to be approved by the
C&B Committee.

The Company has adopted a Share Option Scheme on 25 October 2010.
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to
grant options to selected eligible participants as incentives or rewards
for their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit
and retain high caliber employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group and any invested entity.

Nomination Committee

Composition

The Company established a nominating and corporate governance
committee pursuant to a resolution of Directors passed on 25 October
2010 (which was renamed as Nomination Committee on 22 March
2012). The Nomination Committee has set up the written terms of
reference which was revised on 22 March 2012. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size and composition
of the Board on a regular basis and to recommend to the Board the
suitable candidates for Directors after consideration of the nominees’
independence and quality in order to ensure fairness and transparency
of all nominations. The Nomination Committee currently consists of five
members, namely Mr. Wong (a non-executive Director), Mr. Tam, Mr.
Pao, Mr. Qu and Mr. Huang (all are independent non-executive Directors)
as at the date of this report. Mr. Wong currently serves as the chairman of
the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee adopted the board diversity policy in August
2013. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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EXER

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

Composition (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Nomination Committee
held 5 meetings to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board. And the attendance of each Nomination Committee member for
the year have been set out as follows:

No. of Nomination Committee meetings held:

& (&)

BEEZEE(H)

REZEE2(E)

AR ()
BE_T-R&+-_A=+-AIL&% ELEEe
BHEREE AR EEGHES - SHERAR - &
FERIRAEEERBLEZBROT -

CAMREZEESHRNE -

Name of the Nomination Committee members BREESHREHR
Mr. Thomas Tam HEE A& 5/5
Mr. Pao Ping Wing e pa 5/5
Mr. Qu Wen Zhou (appointed on 25 June 2015) BXNEER-_E—RENA - +HEHERT) 3/3
Mr. Wong Kui Shing, Danny FERR ST

(appointed on 29 October 2015) (RZZ—AFT+AZTNBEEM) 171
Mr. Chi Shaolin (resigned on 29 October 2015) BOMEE(RZE—RAE+A-+ALBET) 4/4

Corporate governance functions EERBAE

The Company’s corporate governance functions are carried out by the
Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference adopted by the
Board in compliance with code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, which
include (a) to develop and review the Company'’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board; (b) to
review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of the Directors and senior management of the Group; (c) to review and
monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees of the
Group and the Directors; and (e) to review the Company’s compliance
with the applicable CG Code and disclosure in the corporate governance
report.
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EEEREHE (B)

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board, supported by the finance department, is responsible for
the preparation of the Group’s financial statements for each financial
year which shall give a true and fair view of the financial position,
performance and cash flows of the Group for that year. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board
has selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and
prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis. The Directors
are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps to safeguard
the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities. The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The responsibilities of the Company’s external auditors, Ernst & Young, on
the financial statements are set out in the section headed “Independent
Auditors’ Report” in this report.

External auditors’ remuneration

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the fees paid or payable to
the Company’s external auditors in respect of their audit and non-audit
services were as follows:

g

EZEMBHPINH TARREASESEN K
FENFHRE - ZFMBREAEERALRBRA
SERNZFENMBERR REMRERE - REB
E-T-RFTA=1+—BLFENBMEEHRRE -
EFECRIERASHBRYERER  YHEE -2
S AR IE L HET R fAET - A RIRFHBICEEER
HPBHRK - EFFREMEIEH—EEMBEANT
B REAEENEE YA IERASHFFREM
EEBER c EFRU TR BT e REBIR
FEEREEBERENENBREARBHEFLBER
EEREATHARESE -

RRABESNSAZBEN LK 7T BN E ISP SRR 2
BESNARE B ZEBENRE |4 -

IERBETHE
REBEEZZT—RF+-A=1+—HBIEFE ' iixHK&
FERZBURTS B T ST AN A RSN A2 BAD &) & AR 40
™

RMB 000
Type of Services BRIE R AREETTT
Non-audit services IEAZE AR 1,117
Statutory audit services ETEZE RS 2,300
Total #ast 3,417
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EER

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged in a service contract with an external service
provider, Ms. Ho Wing Yan (“Ms. Ho"), who was appointed as the
Company Secretary. Mr. Wu, executive Director and CEO of the Company,
is the primary corporate contact person of the Company with Ms. Ho.

Being the Company Secretary, Ms. Ho plays an important role in
supporting the Board by ensuring effective exchange of information
within the Board and that Board policy and procedures are followed. Ms.
Ho is responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance matters
and should also facilitate induction and professional development of
Directors.

Ms. Ho is an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
Ms. Ho continues to study professional course of corporate governance
and has extensive experience in the company secretarial field for listed
companies. Ms. Ho is also a holder of the Practitioner’s Endorsement issued
by The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. According to Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Ho took more than 15 hours of relevant
professional training for the year ended 31 December 2015.

INVESTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there has been no significant
change in the Company’s constitutional documents.

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining clear, timely and
effective communication with Shareholders and investors of the Company.
The Board also recognises that effective communication with investors
is the key to establish investor confidence and to attract new investors.
Therefore, the Group is committed to maintaining a high degree of
transparency to ensure that the investors and the Shareholders receiving
accurate, clear, comprehensive and timely information of the Group by
the publication of annual reports, interim reports, announcements and
circulars. The Company also publishes all corporate correspondence on the
Company's website at http://www.hong-lin.com.cn. The Board continues
to maintain regular dialogues with institutional investors and analysts from
time to time to keep them informed of the Group’s strategy, operations,
management and plans. The Directors and the members of the Board
committees would attend and are available to answer questions at general
meetings of the Company. Separate resolutions would be proposed at
general meetings of the Company on each substantially separate issue.
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INVESTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS
(Continued)

Shareholders’ rights

In accordance with the Listing Rules, any vote of Shareholders at a general
meeting must be taken by poll except where the chairman, in good faith,
decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or
administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands. Therefore, all
votes of the Shareholders at general meetings shall be taken by poll. The
results of voting by poll will be published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company respectively.

How Shareholders can convene an extraordinary general meeting
and put forward proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary by
mail at 33rd Floor, Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board
Shareholders may put forward their proposals or inquiries to the Board by
sending their written request to the Company'’s correspondence address
in Hong Kong.
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EER

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year, the Board complied with the code provisions on risk
management and internal control as set out in the CG Code. The Board
has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the nature and
extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group's strategic
objectives, and maintaining appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems for the Group. The systems are designed
to manage the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The management of the Company has established a set of comprehensive
policies, standards and procedures in areas of operational, financial
and risk controls for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or
disposition; for maintaining proper accounting records; and for ensuring
the reliability of financial information to achieve a satisfactory level of
assurance against the likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

The Board has overseen the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems on an ongoing basis. A year end review of the
effectiveness of the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ risk management and
internal control systems has been conducted annually and the systems
are considered to be effective and adequate. The Company also has an
internal audit function to carry out the analysis and independent appraisal
of the adequacy and effectiveness of the systems, and has procedures in
place to keep information confidential and manage actual or potential
conflicts of interest. Stringent internal structures have been designed to
prevent the misuse of inside information and avoid conflicts of interest.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B BEH RS

E?Eik

To the shareholders of HL Technology Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of HL Technology
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set out on pages 75
to 184, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZBE®RE (F)

To the shareholders of HL Technology Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31
December 2015, and of their financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

30 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FERaER

Year ended 31 December 2015
BE —F—hF1-HA=+—HIFE

2015 2014
—E—A%F — U4
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARETTT
(Restated)
(&ED)

CONTINUING OPERATIONS BHERE
REVENUE Was 5 841,527 1,393,914
Cost of sales SHE A (717,939) (1,229,901)
Gross profit EF 123,588 164,013
Other income and gains E AU A R s 5 18,173 4,202
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEPEY (9,639) (14,702)
Administrative expenses ITHAX (39,018) (46,171)
Other expenses Hbx (33,569) (6,836)
Finance costs B & B AN 7 (8,025) (16,100)

PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING BESERBANER
OPERATIONS 6 51,510 84,406
Income tax expense FrisBimx 10 (13,780) (16,146)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING 34548 %& F B Fl

OPERATIONS 37,730 68,260
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRIEEE
Loss for the year from a discontinued operation = 4% |- 484 & [E E518 11 (12,537) (20,471)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERF 25,193 47,789
Attributable to: AT 75 A
Owners of the parent ISYNSIEZZEPN 24,851 49,382
Non-controlling interests JEIE I o 342 (1,593)
25,193 47,789

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLETO S AFEERER

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BEEAEMER
PARENT ZF 13
Basic and diluted ERKREE
— For profit for the year — FEEF RMIB3.48 cents RMB6.86 cents
AR¥3.48%0 AR¥6.86%
— For profit for the year from continuing — BELCEFE R RMB4.99 cents RMB9.48 cents
operations ARM4.995 ARB9.48%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FEEEmBRER

Year ended 31 December 2015
BE —F—hFf - HA=+—HIFE

2015 2014
—E-HE —T—MF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTFT
(Restated)
(g&=E7)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERA 25,193 47,789
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Htt 2 EEE
Other comprehensive loss to be reclassified to BREZSMETHEBEEN
profit or loss in subsequent periods: Efh2mEE -
Exchange differences on translation of foreign MBI TGV TE N
operations ZRA (436) (18)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR #E2HEWNSHEE 24,757 47,771
Attributable to: A&
Owners of the parent [SYNSIEZZ=PN 24,636 49,364
Non-controlling interests FEfE g 121 (1,593)
24,757 47,771
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

FReEMBIKRAR

31 December 2015
—F-AF+=A=+-A

2015 2014
—E—AF —E—UE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R K EE 14 1,497 315,009
Prepaid land lease payments TEfT LA EFIAE 16 - 101,447
Goodwill RS 17 268,726 61,146
Other intangible assets Hinmp&eE 18 209,656 130,734
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 19 15,000 15,000
Deferred tax assets FEERIBEE 20 5,362 7,249
Prepayments for acquiring property, B - BB K&
plant and equipment BABTERK = 593
Total non-current assets EMBEELRTE 500,241 631,178
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories e 21 13,975 145,382
Trade and bills receivables CEES AN 22 585,120 1,260,905
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — FEfI B - & M E A FEUF A 23 224,665 198,485
Pledged deposits BEMRFR 24 8,130 23,985
Cash and cash equivalents ReRIRESZEY 24 192,120 169,950
1,024,010 1,798,707
Assets classified as held for sale DEAFBIENEERE 25 196,140 -
Total current assets MEVEELREE 1,220,150 1,798,707
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and bills payables B 5 REREMNK 26 390,229 867,044
Other payables and accruals HibEN B R ERTER 27 152,777 147,876
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings STRRITRAMBEE 28 41,276 489,421
Tax payable FERTRR R 47,634 45,349
Total current liabilities MEEELREE 631,916 1,549,690
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 588,234 249,017
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EERRBEE 1,088,475 880,195
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBAE
Deferred tax liabilities FERIEEE 20 33,962 10,607
Government grants BT B 29 6,588 14,200
Total non-current liabilities MBI BERTE 40,550 24,807
Net assets BEE 1,047,925 855,388
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
e MR R ()

31 December 2015
—E—AFF=A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-IF —Z—OF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT

EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of the parent HATHES ARG ER
Issued capital EEITRRA 30 104,732 97,401
Reserves G 317 874,345 749,593
979,077 846,994
Non-controlling interests FEPE | RERS 68,848 8,394
Total equity R iaER 1,047,925 855,388
Chan Sek Keung, Ringo Wu Chi Luen
FR 8538 CES
Director Director
BE BE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES

Year ended 31 December 2015
BE —F—hF1-HA=+—HIFE

A1 January 2015 RZE-1%5-F-A
Profit for the year EREN
Other comprehensive loss EREf2EER:
for the year:
Bichange diferences on translation of &5 £H2EX
foreign operations ]
Total comprehensive income ERRElGER
for the year
Shares repurchased BERA
Cancellation of shares repurchased AR (H
(note 30) (hi0)
Acquisiion of a subsidiary (note 33)  WE-FEHEAR
(W333)
Share ssue expenses BIRHFER
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 34b) ~ HE-EHBAF
()
Transfer from retained earnings ERERARTH
At 31 December 2015 R-%-1%
+ZA=1-H

IN EQUITY
FeEREDR

Attributable to owners of the parent

BOIRAARE
Foreign
Share Statutory  currency Non-
lsued ~ Share Treasury  Special  award  Other  surplus translation Retained controlling Total
capital premium  shares® reserve®  reserve reserve reserve®  reserve profits Total interests  equity
B&fr Bi%E EERS i
Bk ROWE BRRG0 HEBEY  BE REEEY  BRe ENSE RSN &% BE EREy
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'0O0  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTr ARETR ARMTR ARETZ ARBTR ARMTR ARMTZ ARETR
(note 30)
(W)
97401 429549 - 61064 203 (7473) 49,066 (270) 215584 846994 8394 855388
- - - - - - - - U8 24851 M} 2519
- - - - - - - (215) - (215) (221) (436)
- - - - - - - (215) 24851 24,636 o U5
- - (149,203) - - - - - - (149203) - (149,203)
(6,763) (142440 149,203 - - - - - - - - -
1409 231979 - - - - - - - 20 6690 319033
- (25) - - - - - - - (25) - (25)
- - - - - - (3358 4602 33528 4602 (6627)  (2029)
- - - - - - 5% - (5% - - -
104732 525,063 - 61064 2073 (7AT3)r 21484 4MT* 268017* 979077 68,848 1,047925
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
REREEER(E)

Year ended 31 December 2015
BE—F—AFf-—A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the parent
AEfh
Foreign
Share Statutory ~ currency Non-
Issued Share Specil award Other suplus  translation ~ Retained controlling
capital ~ premium  reserve reserve  resenvel  reserveld reserve profits Totd  interests
BT S
RE AR BRI i #ho  ERRE  REEH i Ea
RMB'000  RVB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB000  RMB'OO0  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
Sy T ARMTT ARBTR ARMTR A ARETT ARETR ARBTR ARBTT ARETR

)

(note 30)

)

At 1 January 2014 R-F-IE-A-H 97,401 429,549 61,004 2073 (9,.245) 45832 25) 16943 795858 (241) 795617
Profitfor the year EREH - - - - - - - AW e (19 4
Other comprehensive loss FREM2EER:
for the year:
Eichange differences on ranlation of  #&&5 2% [E}
foreign operations 28 - - - - - - (18) : (18 - (18
Total comprehensive income ERrElGEs
for the year - - - - - - (18 49382 49364 (1593) am
Disposalof interests in a E-ANELTER
subsiciary (note () below) (TX ) - - - - 1m - - - 1m 828 10000
Contrioution from non-controlling~~ EERIER B
interests (note (¢) below) (TR - - - - - - - - - 2,000 2000
Transfer from retained eamings ERaRIR - - - - - 323 - BB - - -
At31 December 2014 i3
T-F=t+-H 97401 429549¢ 61,064 2,073 (1473 49,066* Q70 215584 846,99 8394 855,388

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of approximately — * ZERBREFEGEMBRARANGEREEAREL
RMB874,345,000 (2014: RMB749,593,000) in the consolidated statement of 874,345,00070(=Z—P4F : AR#749,593,0007T) °
financial position.

Notes: rza
(a) Special reserve (a) Rl #E
The balances as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 mainly represent: RIE—AFR-ZZF—NF+_A=+—HZHEHREE
18
i) the difference between the nominal amount of the shares issued by the (i) BARMBITRONEAEERERRATR_ZZZT
parent and the aggregate amount of paid-in capital of the subsidiaries NEETEBEEMPERB AR EHERES
acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation of the Company in 2008; HHERE &
and
(i) the excess, amounting to RMB13,330,000, of the consideration paid by (ii) B ARG ERRIEERR AR ([ERR]) IR
the parent for the acquisition of Rosy Sun Investments Limited (“Rosy BERADNAERNITERRFEDMKREE([EBE
Sun”) over the consideration paid by Mr. Chi Shaolin (“Mr. Chi”), the then EDRE=ZFWBBERRNREZLZEBA
controlling shareholder of the Company, for the acquisition of Rosy Sun R #13,330,0007T °

from a third party.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
REREEER(E)

Year ended 31 December 2015

#

EE-AF - A=1—HIFE

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(0

(d)

(e)

(f)

*

Other reserve
Other reserve arose from acquisitions of non-controlling interests in subsidiaries or
disposals of interests in subsidiaries.

Statutory surplus reserve

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for enterprises in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required
to maintain a statutory surplus reserve fund which is non-distributable. The
appropriations to such reserve are made out of the net profit after tax of the
statutory financial statements of the relevant PRC subsidiaries. The statutory
surplus reserve fund can be used to make up prior year losses, if any, and can be
applied in conversion into capital by means of capitalisation issue.

Disposal of interests in a subsidiary

The amounts represented the disposal of 20% equity interests in 12| $53{ & %
BBR/A 7] (Dezhou lJincheng Electronic Co., Ltd.*, “Dezhou Jincheng”), a then
subsidiary of the Company, to B8 Kk 48 E (= S4B R A 7 (Weihai Tiancheng
Economic Information Consultancy Co., Limited*, “Weihai Tiancheng”), which
was ultimately controlled and wholly owned by a then senior management of the
Company and his family member, for a consideration of RMB10,000,000.

Contribution from non-controlling interests

The amount represented the capital contribution of RMB2,000,000 from the
non-controlling interests of K ZRM AT /TEEEBR A (Tianjin Jincheng
Hanisi Automotive Electronics Co., Ltd.*, “Tianjin Hanisi”), a then subsidiary of the
Company in which the Company owned an 80% equity interest.

Treasury shares

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company repurchased 50,000,000
shares of its own ordinary shares for an aggregate cost of approximately
HK$189,772,000 (equivalent to RMB149,203,000), which were cancelled by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2015. Upon the cancellation of the
shares repurchased, the issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the
par value of US$1,000,000 (equivalent to RMB6,763,000) and the premium paid
for the repurchase of these cancelled shares of approximately HK$181,169,000
(equivalent to RMB142,440,000), was deducted from the share premium amount
of the Company. As at 31 December 2015, there were no repurchased shares
which have not yet been cancelled by the Company.

Particulars of the share repurchase are as follows:

Number of ordinary

shares repurchased
BEEERHE

July 2015
—T-hHFtA

50,000,000

Wit

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

(f)

(&)

HAt
Hin R RIEMH B AR M IFES R R ENB AR
W ©

EEBRRE

ﬁP%/\E SAER ([h B ) EMBRERRERRE » KN
REFERBRRERFTADIRAEERBFEERES -

ZEFBOBBORE T BN E A RAER B IRR N

BgMR  ZEBHRAES AR BHBEFERER

(A)  WAIAB KRBT T XERRER -

HE—EHE QRS

ZECHERRABERRLHEE %E”é’ﬁ’ﬁﬂ RARN(TEER
RIBARRERFNSRERAS R B%}?ZEEE%%E%U
&EQT%EB’J’AT)uﬂ%ﬁ)\\ﬁ%ﬁéaﬁ’"‘*ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ(H%J‘Mi%
W RARRERNMERR)M20%KE  KESAR
#10,000,0007T ©

RIS E
ZEBEREREBRBEATTESRARAT([KERE
W IABRDREEERIB AR - AANA FHEAS0%MRAE)
el i+ & AR %2,000,0007T ©

EERA

HE-T-—RAF+-_A=1t—BILFE - AT ALK
#9189,772,0007%8 7T (18E M A R % 149,203,0007T ) f& 5]
$50,000,000/&f& 10 - RBE_T—AF+_A=+—
AIEFEEHARRZHE  NEEzEBERME - &
ARBBTRAE REER 21,000,000 T (FHER A
R¥6,763,0007T) * MAZECEHRMHOEMEELD
181,169,0007% 7T (#8 & 7 A R #142,440,0007T) B B &
ATRDHERPIHR - R =T—AF+=-A=+—8 -
AN R AR S AR B AR o

BRI BT

Price per share

BIRER

Aggregate

Highest Lowest consideration price
B& RIE BRE
HKS HK$'000
BT Viop FHAT

4.10 189,772

The English names are for identification purpose only.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ﬁ = iﬂﬁlllbgi

Year ended 31 December 2015
BE —F—hFf - HA=+—HIFE
2015 2014
—E-hfF —Z—OF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

KiaE AR¥ET T AREFTT
(Restated)
€ s==7p)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REKEEHRERE

Profit before tax: BRAEZADER) :
From continuing operations REFESE 51,510 84,406
From a discontinued operation REBKIFEE 11 (12,537) (20,500)
Adjustments for: BT BIE 2 HE
Finance costs Eﬂ§ﬁ$ 7,11 24,185 52,665
Bank and other interest income RAT R E AT S WA (5.188) (2,888)
(Gains)/loss on disposal of items of property, Hj’%%¥ B k& EIEE
plant and equipment 25),/ k518 (3,880) 1,056
Net gains on disposals of subsidiaries Hj%ﬁﬁ% A EF R (22,257) (1,813)
Depreciation e 14 13,770 32,041
Recognition of prepaid land lease payments RIEF LA EFKIE 1,522 2,134
Government grants released to the statement 2 ABZEER 2 B3N
of profit or loss BT Eh 29 (7,948) (4,916)
Amortisation of other intangible assets HiEEMELEE 18 30,358 21,809
Impairment loss recognised on prepaid WREN TR ERE 2
land lease payments AR 9,317 -
Impairment of trade receivables & RN IERIE 2,625 3,820
Impairment of other receivables and H ) FECRIE S TR AN
prepayments SIBRE 2,473 62
(Write back)/write-down of provision for (BEE) Mo SR
inventories, net R (2,371) 8,514
Impairment of property, plant and equipment  #1% - &= M&ERE 14 5,102 15,732
Impairment of other intangible assets HivmEEERE 18 18,083 1,905
Foreign exchange difference, net M 2= EF R 331 271
105,095 194,298
Increase in inventories FEEN (37,034) (28,114)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills receivables & 5 & Z#E U O A (18h0) 566,448 (112,949)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, AR -« e REMEREIR
deposits and other receivables (#24n) Ei (180,222) 14,722
(Decrease)/increase in trade and bills payables B 5 RZEEEMNZCRL) &N (357,791) 167,502
(Decrease)/Increase in other payables and H A RS B R ERHE A
accruals CR), /s m (10,540) 70,020
Increase in government grants IEg R S 336 4,389
Cash generated from operations KEFTSIE 4 86,292 309,868
Interest paid EASFE (24,185) (52,665)
Income taxes paid EASFTSH (21,274) (6,929)
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEBMEReREFE 40,833 250,274
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
RERERER(E)

Year ended 31 December 2015
BE - F—hFf+-—HA=1—HIFFEZE

2015 2014
—E-AHF —T—mE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
bzt AR¥T T ARBTFT
(Restated)
(#==751)
Net cash flows from operating activities REEBMBIRG NS T 40,833 250,274
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REREZDHELRS
Interest received AL EPS) 5,188 2,888
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEWE  BEIXBER
equipment (22,132) (64,432)
Purchases of prepaid land lease payments EEEMN T HERE - (6,518)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEME - BENREER
plant and equipment Fri5s0E 14,561 2,901
Disposal of interests in a subsidiary HE— M E QAR - 10,000
Additions to other intangible assets AREHMBLEE (1,209) (4,175)
Disposals of subsidiaries HEHTE A A 34 254,491 59,286
Acquisition of a subsidiary Ui — IR BB A &) 33 (46,534) -
Decrease in pledged deposits BEEMFTRD (49,618) (7,921)

Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities & &;&EFS,(FTR)IRESRE

FRE 154,747 (7,971)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REBMEZDHRENE
New bank and other borrowings HIRIT R EMEE 420,279 724,617
Repayments of bank and other borrowings BRRITRAMEER (441,704) (860,600)
Share issue expense AN BT (25) -
Shares repurchased A0 (149,203) -
Capital contribution from non-controlling B A RIEIE SR 2

interests of a subsidiary FE - 1,000
Net cash flows used in financing activities BB EEFTRIR S IRFEE (170,653) (134,983)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH Re RN EEWILINFE

EQUIVALENTS 24,927 107,320
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F ¥R & MRS EEY 169,950 62,721
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net HINE FI R B s 2R 5 (2,757) (91)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRRSRRESEEY

AT END OF YEAR 192,120 169,950
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND ReRREEEBMERINT

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the REIEARRER IR 2 RS R
statement of financial position REeEEY 24 192,120 169,950
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NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 53R R aE

31 December 2015
—E—AFF=A=+—H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

HL Technology Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands on 16 November 2007 as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of the registered office and principal place
of business in Hong Kong of the Company are disclosed in the
Corporate Profile and Corporate Information section of the annual
report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
are mainly engaged in designs, development and provision of
communication system, and manufacture and sale of signal
transmission and connectivity products.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

RAREEER

AR EARAR ([ARR D AR -FF
+tFE+—ATRBERSEEEMKINER
REREBEERR  ERORBBBEIIME
BRAB([BRFT ) ERET - KRR EMME
B R BB T B EE MR A N F RN R B
T RARER—EPRE -

ARBRREERARTF - ARRLEWMEB AR
([ AKE]) TENFRGT  FRIERE

EEF UWREENHEEREHLEREM -
i) PSS

ARBMBRAR ZFHELT

Percentage of equity
interest attributable to
the Company
ANREERER DL
Issued ordinary/
Place of incorporation/ registered
registration and business share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
AL/ BRTEE/
RIS AR A i  EEER
Rosy Sun* British Virgin Islands (“BVI") Uss$2 100 - Investment holding
B EEHERARNE 2ETT RERR
Fortune Grace Management Limited BVI Us$10 75 - Investment holding
(“Fortune Grace") KBRS 10%7T RERR
Wafer System Limited Hong Kong HK$67,269,905 - 75 Investment holding
BERGBRAR 0 67,269,905 RERR
Chunlin International Limited BVI US$1 100 - Investment holding
("Chunlin International ")*
EREBRBRAR(ERER]) REBRERRNS (E RERR
Wafer Systems (China) Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 - 75 Investment holding
and network system
integration
B E5(RE)ER AT B 3,000,0007% ¢ REZRRBREZGER
* The Chinese name is for identification purpose only S AR TBE SR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B RS SRR Y RE (AR

31 December 2015
—FE—AFF+=A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued) 1. 2AaIREBEER (H)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) B RFEE)

Place of incorporation/
registration and business
AR & E i

Issued ordinary/
registered
share capital
BRIEE/
EMRA

Percentage of equity
interest attributable to
the Company
FAREERERDLL

Direct Indirect

i

Principal activities

FEEK

Wafer Systems (Macau) Limited" Macau MOP$100,000 - 75 Dormant

RE (R AR AR iy 100,0002F% ks 34

Chunlin Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.*  PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
("Chunlin Shenzhen")"# electronic components

and communications
equipment

ERe (RN ERAR E/EN ARH5,000,00070 BERHES AN RA
(TERAN]) ki

Chunlin Group Limited ("Chunlin Group”) Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding

EREEERAR(ERER]) 0 TET REER

Beijing Wafer New Century Information ~ PRC/Mainland China US$15,000,000 - 75 Network system
Technology Co., Ltd.* integration
("Beijing Wafer")*#

EREERT LR RITERA R RE/RER 15,000,00057¢ BipzmeEs
(MHEmEE )

Wafer Network Systems (Shanghai) PRC/Mainland China US$1,000,000 - 75 Network system
Co., Ltd.*"# integration

HERRRERRERAR HE/RENH 1,000,000 7T RipzmeEs

Wafer (Xi'an) Software Co., Ltd.* PRC/Mainland China US$700,000 - 75 Research and development
("Xi'an Wafer")#

BE(ER)EHARAA E/HER 700,000t a

([ARpE )
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
St s S B o (4D

31 December 2015
—E-—AFF+=A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued) 1. A TIREEEER %)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued) NG E 16D
Percentage of equity
interest attributable to
the Company
FAREERERDL
Issued ordinary/
Place of incorporation/ registered
registration and business share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
B BERTER/
SR EE EftRA B ExE
New Postcom Technology Company Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
Limited ("New Postcom Technology”) and sale of
telecommunications
products
HBRERNERAR(HBRERM]) B4 BT REBRIHEREER
Shenyang New Postcom Co., Ltd. * PRC/Mainland China RMB233,000,000 - 100 Manufacture of
("Shenyang New Postcom”)# telecommunications
products and provision
of service for base
station construction
AEHBBEREERAT RE/RER ARE HEENERR AR
(EE5HE ) 233,000,0007T BRI AR
2 Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the . IR BB LK G 5T AD B 15 FT ok ok BIBR B4R H
Ernst & Young global network [ 9=VNGIE- 3
# Wholly foreign-owned limited liability enterprises # INEBERRAT
* The English names are for identification purpose only S E A TEEHRER
During the year, the Group acquired Fortune Grace from an FERN - AEBEERRANBLE =7 Wi
independent third party of the Company. Further details of this Fortune Grace ° #— S EEHAMB@EM
acquisition are included in note 33 to the financial statements. FF331A ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B RS SRR Y RE (AR

31 December 2015
—F-AaF1=-A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 2.1 RBEE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention. Assets classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amounts
and fair values less costs to sell. These financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(¢)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described in the accounting policy
for subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair
value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group'’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards for the first
time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The nature and the impact of each amendment is described below:

(@ Amendments to IAS 19 apply to contributions from
employees or third parties to defined benefit plans. The
amendments simplify the accounting for contributions that
are independent of the number of years of employee service,
for example, employee contributions that are calculated
according to a fixed percentage of salary. If the amount of
the contributions is independent of the number of years of
service, an entity is permitted to recognise such contributions
as a reduction of service cost in the period in which the
related service is rendered. The amendments have had no
impact on the Group as the Group does not have defined
benefit plans.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle issued in
December 2013 sets out amendments to a number of IFRSs.
Details of the amendments that are effective for the current
year are as follows:

o IFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that an entity
must disclose the judgements made by management
in applying the aggregation criteria in IFRS 8, including
a brief description of operating segments that have
been aggregated and the economic characteristics
used to assess whether the segments are similar.
The amendments also clarify that a reconciliation of
segment assets to total assets is only required to be
disclosed if the reconciliation is reported to the chief
operating decision maker. The amendments have had
no impact on the Group.

o IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38
Intangible Assets: Clarifies the treatment of gross
carrying amount and accumulated depreciation or
amortisation of revalued items of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets. The amendments
have had no impact on the Group as the Group does
not apply the revaluation model for the measurement
of these assets.

o IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures: Clarifies that a
management entity (i.e., an entity that provides key
management personnel services) is a related party
subject to related party disclosure requirements. In
addition, an entity that uses a management entity
is required to disclose the expenses incurred for
management services. The amendment has had no
impact on the Group as the Group does not receive
any management services from other entities.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(0

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle issued in
December 2013 sets out amendments to a number of IFRSs.
Details of the amendments that are effective for the current
year are as follows:

o IFRS 3 Business Combinations: Clarifies that joint
arrangements but not joint ventures are outside the
scope of IFRS 3 and the scope exception applies only
to the accounting in the financial statements of the
joint arrangement itself. The amendment is applied
prospectively. The amendment has had no impact on
the Group as the Company is not a joint arrangement
and the Group did not form any joint arrangement
during the year.

o IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement: Clarifies that the
portfolio exception in IFRS 13 can be applied not only
to financial assets and financial liabilities, but also to
other contracts within the scope of IFRS 9 or IAS 39
as applicable. The amendment is applied prospectively
from the beginning of the annual period in which IFRS
13 was initially applied. The amendment has had no
impact on the Group as the Group does not apply the
portfolio exception in IFRS 13.

o IAS 40 Investment Property: Clarifies that IFRS 3,
instead of the description of ancillary services in IAS
40 which differentiates between investment property
and owner-occupied property, is used to determine if
the transaction is a purchase of an asset or a business
combination. The amendment is applied prospectively
for acquisitions of investment properties. The
amendment has had no impact on the Group as there
was no acquisition of investment properties during the
year and so this amendment is not applicable.

In addition, the Company has adopted the amendments to
the Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
relating to the disclosure of financial information with
reference to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) during the current financial year. The main impact to the
financial statements is on the presentation and disclosure of
certain information in the financial statements.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,

which have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

IFRS 9
Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 12 and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 11

IFRS 14
IFRS 15

IFRS 16

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 38

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 41
Amendments to IAS 27

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle
Amendments to IAS 7
Amendments to IAS 12

Financial Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception'

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations'

Regulatory Deferral Accounts?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Leases®

Disclosure Initiative!

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants’

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements’

Amendments to a number of
IFRSs!

Disclosure Initiatives

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for unrealised Lossess

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
3 Effective for an entity that first adopts IFRSs for its annual financial

statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and therefore is not

applicable to the Group

4 No mandatory effective date is determined but available for early adoption
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9, bringing
together all phases of the financial instruments project to replace
IAS 39 and all previous versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting. The Group expects to adopt IFRS 9 from 1
January 2018. The Group is currently assessing the impact of the
standard.

The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full
recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised
in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor's interest in that associate or joint venture.

The amendments to IFRS 11 require that an acquirer of an interest
in a joint operation in which the activity of the joint operation
constitutes a business must apply the relevant principles for
business combinations in IFRS 3. The amendments also clarify that
a previously held interest in a joint operation is not remeasured on
the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint operation
while joint control is retained. In addition, a scope exclusion clause
has been added to IFRS 11 to specify that the amendments do
not apply when the parties sharing joint control, including the
reporting entity, are under common control of the same ultimate
controlling party. The amendments apply to both the acquisition
of the initial interest in a joint operation and the acquisition of any
additional interests in the same joint operation. The amendments
are not expected to have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group upon adoption on 1 January 2016.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

IFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is
recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
or services to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The
standard also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all current
revenue recognition requirements under IFRSs. In July 2015, the
IASB issued an amendment to IFRS 15 regarding a one-year deferral
of the mandatory effective date of IFRS 15 to 1 January 2018. The
Group expects to adopt IFRS 15 on 1 January 2018 and is currently
assessing the impact of IFRS 15 upon adoption.

Amendments to IAS 1 include narrow-focus improvements in
respect of the presentation and disclosure in financial statements.
The amendments clarify:

(i) the materiality requirements in I1AS 1;

(i) that specific line items in the statement of profit or loss and
the statement of financial position may be disaggregated;

(i) that entities have flexibility as to the order in which they
present the notes to financial statements; and

(iv)  that the share of other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method
must be presented in aggregate as a single line item, and
classified between those items that will or will not be
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements that apply
when additional subtotals are presented in the statement of
financial position and the statement of profit or loss. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2016. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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2.3

24

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 clarify the principle in IAS 16
and IAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of economic benefits
that are generated from operating a business (of which the asset is
part) rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through
the use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-based method cannot
be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may only
be used in very limited circumstances to amortise intangible assets.
The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The amendments
are not expected to have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group upon adoption on 1 January 2016 as the
Group has not used a revenue-based method for the calculation of
depreciation of its non-current assets.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes
the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwiill (Continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, derivative financial
instruments and equity investments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EREHTHEREH)

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
financial assets, goodwill, investment properties and non-current
assets/a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

24 EXRETHERBME )

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

(i

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence

over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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24 EXRETHERBME )

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and equipment
is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a disposal group
classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for
in accordance with IFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting
policy for “Non-current assets held for sale”. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 4.75%
Leasehold improvements 33.3%
Plant and equipment 9.5% t0 33.3%
Motor vehicles 19% t0 33.3%
Others 19% t0 33.3%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment, including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property)
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions
at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year
in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year
of the retirement or disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under “Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” up to the date of change in
use, and any difference at that date between the carrying amount
and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” above.
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24 EXRETHERBME )

POLICIES (Continued)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amounts will be recovered principally through a sales transaction
rather than through continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset
must be available for immediate sale in its present condition subject
only to terms that are usual and customary for the sale of such assets
and its sale must be highly probable.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the
lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell.
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets classified as
held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Software

Software is stated at cost less any impairment losses and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of
10 years.

Trademarks

Trademarks are stated at cost less any impairment losses and are
amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives
of 2 years.

Licences

Purchased licences are stated at cost less any impairment losses and
are amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives of 5 to 10 years.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EREHTHEREH)

POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill) (Continued)
Customer relationships

Contractual customer relationships are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives.

Technology know-how

Technology know-how is stated at cost less any impairment losses
and are amortised on the straight-live basis over its estimated useful
life of 10 to 15 years.

Unfinished sales contracts

Unfinished sales contracts are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of 1 to 2 years.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does not
meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are charged
to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially

stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.
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24 EXRETHERBME )

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives designated
as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded
at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in other
expenses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and debt securities.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are those which
are neither classified as held for trading nor designated as at fair
value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are
those which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of
time and which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in
response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in other income, or until the investment
is determined to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss
is reclassified from the available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve to the statement of profit or loss in other gains or losses.
Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale
financial investments are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively, and are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss as other income in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment or (b)
the probabilities of the various estimates within the range cannot
be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value, such
investments are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable
to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group
may elect to reclassify these financial assets if management has the
ability and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification
becomes its new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on
that asset that has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit
or loss over the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised cost and
the maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the
asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation
and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account.
If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other
expenses in the statement of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at
fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on
a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery
of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of an investment below its cost. “Significant”
is evaluated against the original cost of the investment and
“prolonged” against the period in which the fair value has been
below its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that investment previously recognised in the statement of
profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on
equity instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value
after impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among
other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables and
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:
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POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EREHTHEREH)

POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on certain
products are recognised based on sales volume and past experience
of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to their present values
as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

112

FriS®i(®)
ERBIRR ERATA BRI = 2R -
{BTHIEERRSD -

o EAXRHS(ZRRBAFSEBAH)ET
KRN B ENEENBBELNE
EHRBRER Y S0 N ERD
BaBREENBR &

o BRMIBARINR AR AR 2
R QIEEE LR 2 R ISR AT F A
BEHEERTE SR ALTEHED

BEERBEEDABAHNREREZR - XF
AREE R ARG BN AR R
EFHRIBEE BRI e A AR EEA B AR R
MEREZENAPAHRBEE L LA AHIEE

BRESERTSEN BR T AR - BT
BIERRI

o EIARS(ZRRBAFSEBAH)ET
B YRTER N B E S R EEEM A HIH
ENZEAMNELHEREE  BTHE
AHAEE T HERTERBRTE &

o BRWEBARMKREELNTHIRERE
£ ORERAEERRNERZEFNA
8 A5 SR8 [m 1 A i sR A A T A AR AT
HS = R IREER o

RERESHREMELHBEENREE - I
MRETERIER B HEATAEHER2E
HAEERIREERLL - REREHAREH
AHARERHEERIAEE - WA B RS
ERBRANERERAZMRBOREERBEER
Rugm -

BEEHBREERABNEERSRAABERE
ENHEBEHERNRERTE - WRERSHR
EEM A ERBHAOB R (RBUR)FE -



ANNUAL REPORT 2015 —Z—H F 53

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B RS SRR Y RE (AR

31 December 2015
—F-AaF1=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EREHTHEREH)

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to the statement of profit
or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and released to the statement of profit or loss by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@)  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided
that the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

(b) from the rendering of services, on the percentage of
completion basis, as further explained in the accounting
policy for “Contracts for services” below;

(©) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;
and

(d) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Contracts for services

Contract revenue on the rendering of services comprises the agreed
contract amount. Costs of rendering services comprise labour and
other costs of personnel directly engaged in providing the services
and attributable overheads.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised based on the
percentage of completion of the transaction, provided that the
revenue, the costs incurred and the estimated costs to completion
can be measured reliably. The percentage of completion is
established by reference to the costs incurred to date as compared
to the total costs to be incurred under the transaction. Where the
outcome of a contract cannot be measured reliably for fixed price
telecommunication system contracts, revenue is recognised only to
the extent that the expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are
anticipated by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is treated as
an amount due from contract customers. Where progress billings
exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an amount due to
contract customers.

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

For the defined contribution schemes of the Group, the forfeited
contributions (by employers on behalf of employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in such contributions) would not be
used by the employer to reduce the existing level of contribution.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EREHTHEREH)

POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. In prior years,
final dividends proposed by the directors were classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section
of the statement of financial position, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Following the
implementation of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB which is the
Company’s presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

HL Technology Group Limited BLH#RHE EEAER A &

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BA RS SRR BT EE (AR)

24 EXRETHERBME )

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item
whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of
the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Transfer of financial assets

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, and
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset
is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
in the asset. Significant judgement is often required when the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, and
estimates the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the
asset.

Recognition of deferred tax liability for withholding taxes
Deferred tax liability should be recognised for withholding tax
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax liabilities that can be recognised, based upon the
probability that dividends would be declared. The Group is of the
view that it is able to fully control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference arising from dividend distribution of these
subsidiaries and it is not probable that these subsidiaries will make
such profit distribution in the foreseeable future. Therefore, the
Group has not recognised any deferred tax liability for withholding
taxes.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Revenue recognition

For contracts involving multiple deliverables, the Group generally
evaluates each deliverable to determine whether it represents
a separate unit based on the following criteria: (i) whether the
delivered item has value to the customer on a stand-alone basis,
and (ii) whether the completion of the contract (that includes a
general right of return), delivery or performance of the undelivered
item(s) is considered probable and substantially in the control of the
Group.

The Group'’s determination of whether deliverables within a
multiple element arrangement can be treated separately for
revenue recognition purposes involves significant estimates and
judgements, such as whether delivered elements have stand-alone
value to the customer. Changes to the Group’s assessment of the
accounting units in an arrangement and/or its ability to establish fair
values could significantly change the timing and value of revenue
recognition.

Arrangement consideration shall be allocated at the inception of the
arrangement to all deliverables on the basis of their relative selling
price (the relative selling price method). When applying the relative
selling price method, the selling price for each deliverable shall be
determined using vendor-specific objective evidence (“VSOE") of
selling price, if it exists; otherwise, third-party evidence of selling
price. If neither vendor-specific objective evidence nor third-party
evidence of selling price exists for a deliverable, the vendor shall
use its best estimate of the selling price for that deliverable when
applying the relative selling price method.

The Group's assessment of which revenue recognition guidance is
appropriate for accounting for a deliverable also involves significant
judgement. This assessment could significantly impact the amount
and timing of revenue recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also
a suitable discount rate to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2015 was
approximately RMB268,726,000 (2014: RMB61,146,000). Further
details are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period. Non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair
value less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm'’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimates the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and chooses a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present values of those cash flows.

Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that a loan/receivable is impaired.
To determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment,
the Group considers factors such as the probability of insolvency
or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and default or
significant delay in payments. Where there is objective evidence
of impairment, the amount and timing of future cash flows are
estimated based on historical loss experience for assets with similar
credit risk characteristics. Further details are set out in notes 22 and
23 to the financial statements.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment

The management determines the residual values, useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual
residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions and may vary significantly as a result
of technical innovation and keen competition from competitors,
resulting in higher depreciation charge and/or write-off or write-
down of technically obsolete assets when residual values or useful
lives are less than previously estimated. As at 31 December 2015,
the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment of the Group
was approximately RMB1,497,000 (2014: RMB315,009,000).

Net realisable value of inventories

The Group performs regular review of the carrying amounts of
its inventories with reference to ageing analyses of the Group’s
inventories and projections of expected future saleability of goods,
and also based on management’s experience and judgement.
Based on this review, write-down of inventories is made when the
estimated net realisable values of inventories decline below their
carrying amounts. Due to changes in the technological, market
and economic environment and customers’ preference, actual
saleability of goods may be different from estimation and profit or
loss could be affected by differences in this estimation. As at 31
December 2015, reversals of impairment losses of approximately
RMB2,371,000 (2014: impairment loss of RMB8,514,000) for
inventories were recognised.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses can be utilised.
Significant management’s judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. Further details are set out in note 20
to the financial statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services. During the current year,
the Group underwent a business restructuring and gradually shifted
towards business of network system integration. As at 31 December
2015, the Group substantially completed the business restructuring
and changed its internal organisation structure that changed the
composition of its reportable segments. Based on the new internal
organisation structure, the Group has two reportable operating
segments and the corresponding segment information for the year
ended 31 December 2014 have been restated for presentation on
the same basis. The two reportable segments are set out as follows:

(@  The communication system segment, which designs, develops
and provides of network communication devices and systems,
network system integration of Enterprise Private Network and
mobile internet office software solutions.

(b)  The “others” segment, which leases plants and properties
owned by the Group.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segmental profit,
which is a measurement of adjusted profit before tax from
continuing operations. The adjusted profit before tax from
continuing operations is measured consistently with the Group’s
profit before tax from continuing operations except that interest
income, other income and gains, finance costs, as well as other
unallocated head office and corporate expenses are excluded from
such measurement.

Segment assets exclude available-for-sale investments, deferred tax
assets, cash and cash equivalents and other unallocated head office
and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude deferred tax liabilities, interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings, tax payable and other unallocated head
office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a
group basis.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. R&HIBER (&)
Year ended 31 December 2015 E-E-RF+-A=1+—HLEEE

Communication

system Others Total
BERLG Hity @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETR AR¥TT
Segment revenue paR 6
Sales to external customers BRI EY=E === 840,443 1,084 841,527
Sales to a discontinued operation MERIFEEHE - 1,626 1,626
840,443 2,710 843,153
Reconciliation: FEEX
Elimination of sales to a discontinued operation 15 $8[r) & 4% | FAC & H $H & (1,626)
Revenue from continuing operations 2 4 4 A |y 841,527
Segment results DEPEE 81,703 (14,814) 66,889
Reconciliation: R
Elimination of sales to a discontinued operation & $8[A) B 4% | FAR & H $H & (1,626)
Interest income FBIA 941
Unallocated income and gains RO B A KUz 5,315
Finance costs BB AR (8,025)
Corporate and other unallocated expenses NElREMARS B (11,984)
Profit before tax from BESERBIANER
continuing operations 51,510
Segment assets DEEE 1,507,596 - 1,507,596
Reconciliation: R
Corporate and other unallocated assets NRAIREMADBLEE 212,795
Total assets HwEE 1,720,391
Segment liabilities PHERE 513,214 - 513,214
Reconciliation: SR
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities NRAIREMASEEE 159,252
Total liabilities wasE 672,466
Other segment information: HihpHEHR -
Impairment losses recognised in PEmEAPRERZ
the statement of profit or loss BB R 19,150 14,419 33,569
Depreciation and amortisation PTE B 32,457 2,190 34,647
Capital expenditure* BARFAL* 242,794 - 242,794
2 Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment, & BARAZBIEREDE  BEREE  HEthER

other intangible assets including assets from the acquisition of a subsidiary.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. R&HIBER(#)

Year ended 31 December 2014

Segment revenue B
Sales to external customers RSNEEF $5E 1,393,914 - 1,393,914
Sales to a discontinued operation RE KT EHE - 4,463 4,463
1,393,914 4,463 1,398,377

Reconciliation: G
Elimination of sales to a discontinued operation &2 4% |HE & Kt (4,463)
Revenue from continuing operations BELE N 1,393,914
Segment results DEELE 108,304 (771) 107,533
Reconciliation: ST
Elimination of sales to a discontinued operation #5242 S & HISHE (4,463)
Interest income FEUA 300
Unallocated income and gains RAFMA R 368
Finance costs MERKA (16,100)
Corporate and other unallocated expenses NElREMADEFRE (3,232)
Profit before tax from BHESERBIAIRA

continuing operations 84,406
Segment assets AHEE 1,400,174 136,638 1,536,812
Reconciliation: it
Corporate and other unallocated assets RAREMADEEE 192,614
Assets related to a discontinued operation BB AR EE 700,459
Total assets WEE 2,429,885
Segment liabilities PHEE 866,788 - 866,788
Reconciliation: SR
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities NAREMRSEEE 506,447
Liabilities related to a discontinued operation  EEE &% F &4 1ERIM B & 201,262
Total liabilities “weg 1,574,497
Other segment information: BipTas
Impairment losses recognised in iSelarbakialy

the statement of profit or loss AEEE 7,081 - 7,081
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH 25,042 4,357 29,399
Capital expenditure BARY 11,891 - 11,891

BE-Z-OF+-A=T—-HLEE

Communication

system Others

BEZRG Hit
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETTT
((ENEIE)
(&%)

AREBTTT
(Restated)
(&571))

Total

Feh
RMB’000
ARETTT
(Restated)
(4 E51)
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. K& DIRER ()

Geographical information ¥R & R
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) RBEIMFEFEZWA
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETTT
(Restated)
(=7)
Mainland China R R P 633,108 545,944
Taiwan G - 721,907
Hong Kong B 205,744 126,063
United States of America E3E 2,675 -
841,527 1,393,914
The revenue information of continuing operations above is B LE 2 IRAE R AR P 2 FRfE
based on the locations of the customers. B AAKET o
(b) Non-current assets (b) FREBEE

2015 2014
—E-8F —T—mF

RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT

Mainland China AR A 479,697 608,691
Hong Kong B 182 238
479,879 608,929
The non-current assets information of continuing operations FRERE 2 B AEAR TIAAE
above is based on the locations of the assets and excludes R RS - HP T eEREemTA
financial instruments and deferred tax assets. MBEEFRIEEE -
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31 December 2015

=

4.

F—aFEf+—A=1—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Information about major customers

Revenue from continuing operations of approximately
RMB466,341,000 (2014: RMB721,907,000) for the current year
was derived from sales by the communication system segment to
two (2014: one) major external customers from whom the revenue
individually derived has exceeded 10% of the revenue of the Group.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods and software
products sold, after allowances for returns and trade discounts, the
value of services rendered and gross rental income received during
the year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains from continuing

4,

REFBER @)
AREEEFZER
REERFELE 2 WAL AREE466,341,0007T
(ZZ—P4F : AR¥721,907,0007T) Jh2k G358
ERESSBEMEEBINSEL(ZE—F
—R)HE  MEZRERFPIEZ WA
HERBAEERANI0% °

BA ~ B AR Kza

WARE & HENRRHER 2 ERFEAR
BERBESFMAR - FRAREREOEER
FIHCREBT S ©

REFBELE BN - BMRARKEZ DT

operations is as follows:

s

2015 2014
—E-RF —FT-HF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT
(Restated)
(g&=%1))
Revenue PN
Sales of goods and software products HEEmERHER 635,087 1,114,982
Rendering of services R AR TS 205,356 278,932
Gross rental income LES WA 1,084 -
841,527 1,393,914
Other income and gains HAibWA K s
Bank and other interest income HRIT R E M B WA 941 300
Government grants released BB IR AT ARG 7,612 3,527
Net gains on disposals of subsidiaries HEWB ARz Wz 758 4,471 -
Foreign exchange differences, net & 5 =B ERE 734 368
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE - REREEIEE
plant and equipment W as 4,264 -
Others EAh 151 7
18,173 4,202
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31 December 2015
—E—AFF=A=+—H
6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. KRBIATER
The Group's profit before tax from continuing operations is arrived AREBBEERLL ZBRBEMSMNE G, (GTA)
at after charging/(crediting): PATR%IA -
2015 2014
—E-AF —ZT—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
et AR¥T T AREETTT
(Restated)
(& =%1)
Cost of inventories sold* BEFERA* 715,908 1,225,168
Depreciation e 5,299 9,847
Recognition of prepaid land HRIBA LA EFRE
lease payments 1,415 1,797
Amortisation of other intangible assets** &4 = fib 8 Ji7 & e * * 27,933 17,755
Impairment of prepaid land lease T T b & IR E
payments 9,317 -
Impairment of property, W - WEREERE
plant and equipment 14 5,102 1,685
Impairment of other intangible assets Hih\mI & ER(E 18 18,083 1,905
Impairment of trade receivables 2 5 EIGRIERE 678 3,184
Impairment of other receivables and Hofth B YRR IA K FEA 5108
prepayments THE 23 389 62
Minimum lease payments under KEHE 7 REENR
operating leases 2,492 2,296
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN S 2,300 2,200
Research and development costs TSR AN 2,722 7,881
Government grants released BB BT AL (7,612) (3,527)
Foreign exchange differences, net ME = R (734) (368)
Employee benefit expenses (including EERMNAZ(BREESR
directors’ and a chief executive's Ee1TBAEME)
remuneration)
— Wages and salaries —TEEF® 16,245 22,345
— Pension scheme contributions —RRSFTEIHR 976 3,263
- Termination benefit —BEREH - 12,621
— True up of termination benefit — IZAEBHRE A (1,493) -
15,728 38,229
Write-down of inventories to MomfF E= ] 5 FE
net realisable value 106 246
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME - BEMZEER
plant and equipment pal & (4,264) -
Bank and other interest income $R1T R ELAF 2 HA (941) (300)
Net gains on disposals of subsidiaries HENTE R A2 W F 58 (4.471) -
@ Inclusive of write-down of inventories to net realisable value. = BB 7 SR E AT EEHE
**  Amortisation of other intangible assets is included in “Cost of sales” and > BEHMEREEMAGEBRROMEERA]
“ Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. MIfTBAZ JIHE A -
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. ®EHREK
An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is as K EFEKEHRERNNDTOT
follows:
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T ARETT
(Restated)
(5 =71))
Interest on bank and other borrowings RITREMEER S 6,934 14,240
Others Hih 1,091 1,860
8,025 16,100
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EEBERESTHRASHM
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is

BE EMRA - BACRRHERYEE383(1)@)
b) * OBROEURAR(BEEESFIZER) R
BISE2EF LA T 2 FRES RE=TTEA BB
W

as follows:
2015 2014
—E-RF —TpmE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Fees: we
Executive directors and non-executive directors HITEERIENITES 351 180
Independent non-executive directors BUIEHITES 549 358
900 538
Other emoluments of executive directors and HITEENIERITES
non-executive directors: R E MBS
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYER 2,157 1,511
Pension scheme contributions RIREFTBIHER 74 61
2,231 1,572
3,131 2,110
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERESTHAEHM®)
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIAFHTEE
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors of the FANTARBE I FNTESHNES W
Company during the year were as follows: T
2015 2014
—E-AfF —E—E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBETTT
Ms. Zheng Lin' 57 ol 33 40
Mr. Pao Ping Wing THIRER A 170 159
Mr. Thomas Tam KB ST 170 159
Mr. Qu Wen Zhou? fB UM S A2 88 -
Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen? = KBRS 2 88 -
549 358
1 This director resigned as a director of the Company on 29 October L ZEER-_ZT—RAFTA=-t+HABBEL
2015. AREE -
2 These directors were appointed as directors of the Company on 25 2 ZEBEEN_T—REA-+HBEZ
June 2015. EREARESE -
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent FAWEENSRARBIIIERTESHHE
non-executive directors of the Company during the year ENS (ZZT—PO4E : &) o
(2014: Nil).
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERESTTHRAEFM®
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors (b) HITEE - FHTEERESTH
and the chief executive ABE

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration

e 2R BINE
ik BUER ATEIfR FMARE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®TR AR®TRT ARETR

2015 —E-IF
Executive directors: HITES :
Mr. Cheng Wen! @i 59 499 15 573
Mr. Lu Chengye BRERE 60 730 44 834
Ms. Wang Fang? EFE L2 4 99 6 109
Mr. Chi Shaolin3 B M S 50 185 7 242
Mr. Wu Chi Luen? REMmoEs 88 369 - 457
261 1,882 72 2,215
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Mr. Wong Kui Shing, Danny? EEA S 82 - - 82
Mr. Chan Sek Keung, Ringo? PR #5558 5 A2 8 275 2 285
90 275 2 367
351 2,157 74 2,582
! This director resigned as a director of the Company on 23 1 ZEEN_T—RAFT-_A=-+=H&F
December 2015. RRARESE o
2 These directors were appointed as directors of the Company on 23 2 ZEEEN_T—RF+A=+=A%
December 2015. RIARRRESE -
3 This director resigned as a director of the Company on 29 October 3 ZEEN-_Z—RAFTA-tHLBABEXR
2015. NAIESE -
4 This director was appointed as a director of the Company on 25 4 ZEERN_T—RAF A THAEER
June 2015. BRRABES -
5 This director was appointed as a director of the Company on 24 5 ZEEN T AFNA-+UAEEE
September 2015. BARRNEES -
Mr. Wu Chi Luen, as an executive director of the Company, AABRNTEERE=MAEEN - —HF
assumes the role of chief executive of the Company on 29 TAZ TN RAEERRA G HERITHRAESN
October 2015 and his emolument for services rendered by Biee - MIEREREMEEZMESE BIE
him was included in the above. RERZEEE -

129



HL Technology Group Limited BLRI K EE AR A A
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

St s S B o (4D

31 December 2015
—E-—AFF+=A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EEBERESTHAEFM®
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors (b) FITES - kHTEERESTH
and the chief executive (Continued) ABE (&)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  remuneration
e EUR RiRE
e EYEF FTEIfHIR HENEEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARET T AREF T AREFTT
2014 —E-mF
Executive directors: HITES .
Mr. Cheng Wen BXEE 60 478 13 551
Mr. Lu Chengye BRERE 60 811 40 911
Mr. Chi Shaolin EOMEE 60 222 8 290
180 1,511 61 1,752
There is no arrangement under which a director of the FARRREFIEZSTHRABBE L
Company or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive ARl L HEREE Sk R BT B o
any remuneration during the year.
9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. EuBSHFEE

The five highest paid employees during the year included three
executive directors of the Company, Mr. Cheng Wen and Mr. Lu
Chengye and the chief executive, Mr. Wu Chi Luen (2014: two
executive directors). Details of the remuneration for the year of
the remaining two (2014: three) highest paid employees who are
neither director nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

e RMREVMER
RIREFHEIHR

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Pension scheme contributions

FRARURSHEEREARA=ZUHITES
BX Gk BRELEEURESTRAERE
REE(ZZE—F : MURTESE) - FAW
HSMA(ZF—ME =)W FARRES
HEBTHRABNRSHEENFMFHENT

2015 2014
—E-HF —TmF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBTTT
747 1,124

87 102

834 1,226
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued) 9. IURSHES @
The number of non-director and non-chief executive of the FMENTEENAR G FEELRIIERSTHR
Company highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within AERGZSFHEEASLT :
the following band is as follows:
Number of employees
EEAE
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z 21,000,000 7T 2 3
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FREBIAIX
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2014: FAEIRI16.5%HE(ZZE—MUF : 16.5%) 5
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong RE B BT ERPAFFHREBFEHE
during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been & o EfhivRMERTEFNMBEDIZASEE
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the REMERRNE RN ETH -

Group operates.

2015 2014
—E-AF —TmE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETFT
(Restated)
(&571)
Current — Hong Kong BNEf— &
Charge for the year FRFIE 3,079 11,555
Overprovision in prior years B FEBERE (114) -
Current — Mainland China BVER— A3
Charge for the year FRFIE 11,280 5,956
Deferred income tax BRI (6,403) (1,365)
Withholding tax FEIN 5,938 -
Total tax expense for the year FABHF S BT 13,780 16,146
The Group is subject to income tax on an individual legal entity REBRBIEA KB AR R AR R AS & )
basis on profits arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in MG a EAERERELESIRBMIE - REE
which companies within the Group are domiciled and operate. NEBEEELANFTIS T o
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10. Fr8FiBX(®)
Except for the following companies, the subsidiaries of the BUAT AR - AR B AR B AL 2 H B
Company established in Mainland China were subject to corporate NEIR A RN FEEBIZ25% 5 EM REMERT
income tax (“CIT") at the statutory tax rate of 25% in the following BE([EMmRER] :

years:

Beijing Wafer b AR B 15.0% 15.0%
Shenyang New Postcom L FSETE 15.0% 15.0%
N/A
Xi'an Wafer* PR - i A
S The entity has been recognised as a software enterprise and is exempted * ZERDERASRELE  WEREEMEEZ
from CIT for the year ended 31 December 2015 and the year ending 31 T—AF+_A=+—HALFEREE-ZT—X
December 2016, and is entitled to a 50% reduction in the applicable tax FHZA=T—BUEFENGEMSH - WRE
rate for CIT for the subsequent three years ending 31 December 2019. BT NFTA=+—ALBEE=EAFE=E

Profit before tax from

B R50%EMEEMSHRE 2 EE -

2015 2014
—E-HF —TmF
RMB000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARETTT
(GESEIE))
(=751)

KEFBELENGRTATRRN

continuing operations 51,510 84,406
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% 1#16.5%(ZZF—WF : 16.5%)

(2014: 16.5%) EEM R EHTIR 8,499 13,927
Different tax rates enacted by local authority 175 S R E e ) TR 2 313 144
Effect of withholding tax at 10% on the E10% 2 XN E

gains of disposal of a subsidiary in R A — B A A E

Mainland China WELz TaB 2 2 5,938 -
Adjustments in respect of B B A BN ERT TE B

current tax of previous periods (114) -
Expenses not deductible for tax RO 2 144 37
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AR Z RIS E IR RS & 549 1,208
Effect on opening deferred tax of TR NN B VIELERITE 2

increase in rates 7 (1.343) 1,243
Tax losses utilised from previous periods ERBTHMECHIBEE (206) (413)
Tax expense at the Group's effective rate BRAEEERRETEBIERSE 13,780 16,146
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11.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 28 April 2015, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with a company owned by Mr. Chi, a director and
substantial shareholder of the Company by then, for the disposal of
the entire equity interest in Honglin International Limited (together
with its subsidiaries referred to as “Honglin International”) at a cash
consideration of approximately HK$232,805,000 (equivalent to
RMB187,059,000). Honglin International is engaged in manufacture
and sale of traditional signal transmission and connectivity
products. The board of directors of the Company decided to cease
its signal transmission and connectivity business for the purpose
of restructuring and Honglin International was classified as a
discontinued operation. With Honglin International classified as a
discontinued operation, the signal transmission and connectivity
business is no longer included in the note for operating segment
information. The transaction was completed on 30 June 2015.
Further details of the transaction are included in note 34(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated results of Honglin International for the period/year
are presented below:

11.

Revenue Wz

Other income and gains E A A Rz

Expenses and costs F sz R AR

Finance costs R IDIN

Loss from the discontinued operation BRI EEE

Gain on disposal of the discontinued operation HEB R I E S
(note 34(b)) (H17%34(b))

Loss before tax from the discontinued operation B2 42| F&&RBR T RTE 1B

Income tax expense FriSHifsZ

Loss for the year from the discontinued operation 2 4% |F4&% 2 FEE1E

Attributable to: AT &5 RS
Owners of the parent [SVNSIEZZEPN
Non-controlling interests B liligrE

BRI

R_FE—RAFMNA=+NB ' AQFHEEARFA
ENNEEREZERIELEEHEFTN—HAA
FIAIR &R E#9232,805,000/8 L (FEERAR
#5 187,059,000 7T ) tH & SAMEBIPR B BR A &) (&
FEWBRRREAGUHREE ) 2 BRE L E
F i o OB EESE R SR EEE
MHEERBEE - ARRESERESREAM
EIEE SR AR R ETS - mAWE RS
BHABKRILKZE  BERIL - 5[ F6H RiEsE
E¥BTEMALEDBERWTE - RGN
—AFXNA=ZTHTK - RHIME—FFHBE
ARSI SRR TE34D)A ©

INHEIR A, F RS EEZ2TIIT

Period from
ANELTTETRYA )
30 June
2015
H=Z—HF
—A—HZ
NA=+H
LEHAR —T—JuF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETFT
305,983 702,854
6,911 19,379
(327,057) (707,321)
(16,160) (35,412)
(30,323) (20,500)
17,786 -
(12,537) (20,500)
- 29
(12,537) (20,471)
(10,770) (18,878)
(1,767) (1,593)
(12,537) (20,471)
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 11. 241

The net cash flows incurred by Honglin International are as follows:

Operating activities
Investing activities
Financing activities

Net cash inflow

Loss per share:

Basic, from the discontinued operation

HL Technology Group Limited BLRI K EE AR A A
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R
BRELH
BMELY

HE RN

BRUEE

AR RESKRIEES

KRe&um)

SORBIREL IR REFFRMT

2015 2014
—EB-FF —T—mE
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
46,938 69,173
125,938 (2,554)
(19,925) (54,009)
152,951 12,610

(RMB1.51 cents)
(AE¥1.51%)

(RMB2.62 cents)
(ANRH#E2.625)

The calculation of basic loss per share from the discontinued
operation is based on:

Loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent from the discontinued operation

FAREARERFAA
EIEERIEEZER

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in ~ FAR st E HIRN G E A EIE

issue during the period used in the basic loss
per share calculation ("000) (note 13)

B BT R BN
BT (Hi213)

2015
—E-REF

RMB’000
AR¥TT

(10,770)

713,333

ERUIRE 2 BRERBERIRTHIEESE

2014
—T—mF

RMB’000
ARETIT

(18,878)

720,000
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—E-aFf+=-A=1—H

12. DIVIDEND
No dividend have been paid or proposed by the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2015 and subsequent to the end of
the reporting period (2014: Nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
713,333,333 (2014: 720,000,000) in issue during the year.

13.

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on:

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent, used in the basic earnings

per share calculation: BRzHE
From continuing operations REFHELE
From a discontinued operation REDKRIEKEE

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue ("000) during the year used in the basic
earnings per share calculation

Earnings per share: BRERN
Basic ES 2N
— For continuing operations —BERE
— For a discontinued operation —BRIEEE

12. RE
REBEE_ZTE—RAF+_A=1+—HILFERK
BEAIRE AR SR SRR R
B(ZZ—1mF &) -
BAREEREREFEAEBGLEESR
2R

ERERABANDIREAFES AR L BIRE
ERFBARMGES  URFREETLER
713,333,333 (== —PH4 : 720,000,0004% )
ZINBETFIOEETE o

13.

BREARNZABEATAEBRKE -

2014
—ZE—OF
RMB’000
AREETIT
(Restated)
(ggE51)

2015
—Z-HF
RMB*000

ARETT

BRAREARERFAA
RN - ARNSRER

FARDEITEBRINE
FHEH(TE) - BRER
ERBNZFE

35,621 68,260
(10,770) (18,878)
24,851 49,382
713,333 720,000

RMB9.48 cents
ARHE9 485

RMB4.99 cents
AR¥4.995

(RMB1.51 cents)
(AE¥1.519)

(RMB2.62 cents)
(AR#2.629)

RMB6.86 cents
ARH6.865

RMB3.48 cents
AEK#3.48%

Diluted earnings per share amounts were the same as the basic
earnings per share amounts as there were no potentially dilutive
shares in existence during the years ended 31 December 2015 and
31 December 2014.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BENRZE

Leasehold Plant and Motor Construction
31 December 2015 Buildings  Improvements equipment vehicles Others in progress Total

“R-EFt-AZ1-H g7 HENREE  ERRRR nE it ERIR it
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARRTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR

Cost: A

At 31 December 2014 and RZE-MF+-F=1-H

at 1 January 2015 R -Z-1F-F-H 251,313 - 140,263 3,525 19,170 12,128 426,399
Additions NE - - 10,091 2 404 9,908 20,435
Transfers el - - 276 - 37 (313) -
Acquisition of a subsiciary Y -TERA

(note 33) (H#33) - 351 807 - 29 - 1,450
Disposals RE - - (25431) - (129) - (25,560)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-BHBAR

(note 34) (Wri34) (67,437) - (121,434) (2,901) (18,602) (1,640) (212,014
Transfer to assets classified as BREHBABIELELE

held for sale (note 25) (Hi23) (51,418) - (1,751) (370) (191) (20,083) (73,813)
Transfers to investment properties  HEZHEN%E

(note 13) (it 15) (132,458) - (1,79) - - - (134,254)
Exchange realignment X% - - - 1 56 - 68
At 31 December 2015 RE-RFT-A=1-H - 351 1,025 298 1,037 - 2,1

Accumulated depreciationand  ZHTE R -

impairment:
At 31 December 2014 and R-ZE-MET-F=1-A

at 1 January 2015 kR-E-1f-A-A 32,302 - 66,464 1,602 11,022 - 111,390
Depreciation provided during ERiRonE

the year 6,202 8 5,369 969 1222 - 13,710
Impairment during the year EREE 5,102 - - - - - 5,102
Disposals RE - - (14,853) - (26) - (14,:879)
Disposal o a subsicary (note 34)  HE—-TRHBARHZ34) (18,644) - (55,114) (2.254) (11,438) - (87,450)
Transfer to assets classified as held  EAZHEAR{ELELE

for sale (note 25) (it23) (10,794) - (1,116) (169) (110) - (12,189)
Transfers to investment properties  EEERENE

(note 1) (Hst13) (14,168) - (430) - - - (14,59)
Exchange realignment ERAE - - - 12 56 - 68
At 31 December 2015 RoE-RET-B=T-H - 8 320 160 726 - 1214

Net carrying amoun; BEFE:

At 31 December 2015 RZE-RETZA=T-H - 33 705 138 31 - 1,497
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14. Y% - - BERKRE®)

Plant and
31 December 2014 Buildings equipment
“F-MET-AZH-A #5  BEREA

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETT

Motor Construction

vehicles Others in progress

"E Hith FEETE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETT  AR%TR

Cost: A
At 1 January 2014 RZE-NE—-A—H 285,381 132,056 2,890 22,496 60,683 503,506
Additions NE 251 10,478 1,071 1,478 12,183 25,461
Disposals RE (123) (4,893) (317) (5,369) - (10,702)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-RNBLA
(note 34) (Hi#34) (37,968) (162) (119) (88) (53,529) (91,866)
Transfers 23 3,772 2,784 - 653 (7,209) -
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-ME+ZA
=t+-H 251,313 140,263 3,525 19,170 12,128 426,399
Accumulated depreciation  ZEHHTE RFfE -
and impairment:
At 1 January 2014 RZE-NF—-A—H 20,735 41,130 1,032 11,389 - 74,286
Depreciation provided FRFHRZE
during the year 10,347 18,617 752 2,325 - 32,041
Impairment during the year  FRJR{E 1,685 10,589 6 62 3,390 15,732
Disposals RE (6) (3,855) (138) (2,746) - (6,745)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-HEHELR
(note 34) (Hit34) (459) (17) (50) ® (3,390 (3,924)
At 31 December 2014 RZE—IF
+-A=1+—H 32,302 66,464 1,602 11,022 - 111,390
Net carrying amount: REFE -
At 31 December 2014 i e il
+ZA=+—H 219,011 73,799 1,923 8,148 12,128 315,009

At 31 December 2014, certain of the Group’s buildings with a net
carrying amount of approximately RMB174,695,000 were pledged
to secure bank loans (note 28) and general banking facilities
granted to the Group. At 31 December 2015, no buildings and
plant and equipment were pledged.
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HL Technology Group Limited BLH#RHE EEAER A &

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BA RS SRR BT EE (AR)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Impairment testing of property, plant and
equipment

An impairment loss on property, plant and equipment amounting
to approximately RMB5,102,000 was recognised in the current year
in relation to a building of the “others”segment, to the extent that
the carrying amounts exceeded their recoverable amounts based on
the best estimate by the directors of the Company. The impairment
loss has been included in the line item of other expenses in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2015.

The recoverable amount of the buildings was approximately
RMB119,656,000 as at 22 July 2015, which was determined based
on the fair value less costs of disposal. The fair value measurement
of the buildings was categorised within the level 3 hierarchy as cost
approach was used in the valuation of the buildings which was
performed by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory
Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers. Under
the cost approach, depreciated replacement cost was used as a
reference which was based on an estimate of the market value for
the existing use of the land, plus the current cost of replacement of
the improvements, less deduction for physical deterioration and all
relevant forms of obsolescence and optimisation.

An impairment loss on property, plant and equipment amounting
to RMB 10,367,000 was recognised in the year ended 31 December
2014 in relation to a production line for special cables used for
protecting installation of railway transportation in a discontinued
operation, which was mainly due to the lowering profitability.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the production line

for special cables can be identified as a cash-generating unit as an
active market exists for the output produced by this production line.
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31 December 2015
—F-AF+=A=+-A

14.

15.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Impairment testing of property, plant and
equipment (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the special cables cash-generating unit
was approximately RMB16,086,000 which was determined based
on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on
the financial budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior
management. The discount rate before tax applied to the cash flow
projections was 21% and cash flows beyond the five-year period
were extrapolated using a growth rate of 3%, which was the same
as the long term average growth rate of the signal transmission and
connectivity product industry.

Besides, an aggregate impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment amounting to RMB5,365,000 was recognised in the year
ended 31 December 2014 due to the following reasons:

(1) certain decoration amounting to RMB1,685,000 was useless
in the current stage and there was no future plan to use it in
the foreseeable future; and

(2)  certain equipment and construction in progress amounting
to RMB290,000 and RMB3,390,000, respectively, were
damaged in daily operation and construction.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

14. V¥ - BERRZRE®E)

Y~ BERREZBERNR @)

HEGERCESEMZRESEHARE
16,086,0007T * IiIRENSRERBRZ 2T
FHERBEEL 2B RBAE ZERE
EMET - EARRSRIEE 2 B ATITIRER
521%  MBHEAFHZRESRUI% ZERR
HH SERERERERTEZRATY
#EEHER o

N BE—F-MFE+_A=+—RLFE
WRAME BEARBREBERABBARE
5,365,0007T * IREALAT :

(1) REBEET£EAARE,685,0007TH
AR - B ARV ER BT
LAER : &

) HTHRAAREE290,0007T M AR
3,390,000 THIREMNEEZTIEENAE
BIENRERIB -

15. REYXE

2015 2014

—E-EF —T—pmE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREETTT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BRERAEE = -
Transfer from owner-occupied property (note 14) 8% E QR (H:714) 119,656 -
Transfer from prepaid land lease payments EEEIEN L HE A 10,300 -
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 34(a)) HE—RWB AR (MiE34) (129,956) -

Carrying amount at 31 December

Wt ZA=1+—BrikEE = ~
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31 December 2015
—E—AFF=A=+—H

16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 16. FA{T LB EFE

IERBEE
Current assets MENEE

Non-current assets

2015 2014
—E-IF —ZE—OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTFT
= 101,447
= 2,117
= 103,564

The current portion of prepaid land lease payments as at
31 December 2014 was included in other receivables under
prepayments, deposits and other receivables.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group pledged its land use right
with a carrying value of approximately RMB39,774,000 to banks to
secure bank loans of the Group (note 28).

Impairment testing of prepaid land lease payments

An impairment loss on prepaid land lease payments of the
“others” segment amounting to approximately RMB9,317,000
was recognised in the current year to the extent that the carrying
amounts exceeded their recoverable amounts based on the best
estimate by the directors of the Company. The impairment loss has
been included in the line item of other expenses in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The recoverable amount of the prepaid land lease payments was
approximately RMB34,500,000 as at 28 May 2015, which was
determined based on the fair value less costs of disposal. The
fair value measurement of the prepaid land lease payments was
categorised within the level 3 hierarchy as market comparable
method was used in the valuation of the buildings which was
performed by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory
Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers. Under the
market comparable method, fair value is estimated referring to
comparable properties with similar locations and characteristics
whose transaction date was close to 28 May 2015, adjusting the
differences on factors the market participant buyers may concern
such as building location, orientation, areas and floors, decoration
level, ancillary facilities, infrastructure and environment around. This
method involves evaluating the conditions in respective aspects of
the targeted prepaid land lease payments, and getting adjustment
ratios to the comparable price.
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B R R R ML (48)
31 December 2015
—F—RFE+-A=+—A
17. GOODWILL 17. HE
2015 2014
—B-HF —T—mE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTFT
Cost: B
At 1 January n—A—H 61,146 62,710
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 33) U iE — M B R Bl (#33) 207,580 -
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 34) HE—FM B AR (M 234) - (1,564)
At 31 December Hn+=—A=+—H 268,726 61,146
Accumulated impairment: 2EHRIE
At 1 January m—HA—8 = (1,564)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 34) & - B AR (M 234) - 1,564
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H - -
Net carrying amount: REHE -
At 31 December R+ A=+—H 268,726 61,146

Impairment testing of goodwill
Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to
the following cash-generating units for impairment testing:

o Network system integration cash-generating unit; and
° Terminal and network product cash-generating unit.

Network system integration cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the Network system integration cash-
generating unit has been determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by senior management. The
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 32%. The
growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the industrial
products unit beyond the five-year period is 3%, which is consistent
with the industry growth estimate. The goodwill was not impaired
based on the result of the above impairment testing.
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31 December 2015
—FE-AFI=—A=+—H

17.

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

Terminal and network product cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the Terminal and network product
cash-generating unit has been determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering the foreseeable operating periods including the operating
income and gains on disposal of related assets approved by senior
management. During the year, the discount rate applied to the
cash flow projections is 18% (2014: 20%). The goodwill was not
impaired based on the result of the above impairment testing.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation for 31
December 2015 and 31 December 2014. The following describes
each key assumption on which management has based its cash
flow projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross
margins achieved in the year immediately before the budget year,
increased for expected market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant units.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on market development
and discount rates are consistent with external information sources.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2015
—F-AaF1=-A=+—H

18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

31 December 2015
“E-IE+-A=1-H

Cost: WA
At 1 January 2015 R=Z-1F-A-R
Acquisition of a subsiciary B AT
(note 33) (Hi#33)
Additions hE

HE-RNBLAHZM)
BRARORASEREAE
(Wri25)

Disposal of a subsidiary (note 34)
Transfer to assets classified as
held for sale (note 25)

At 31 December 2015 R-E-RE+-B=1-R

Accumulated amortisation and ~ Z5TEHRAA -
impairment;
At 1 January 2015 R-Z-1F-A-A
Amortsation provided EMEHEE
during the year
Impairment during the year ERAE

HE-RNBLAH:2)
BARORAAEREAE
(Wi25)

Disposal of a subsidiary (note 34)
Transfer to assets classified as
held for sale (note 25)

At 31 December 2015 RZE-RF+ZA=+-4

Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2015 RIE-RE+-A=+-H

B RS SRR Y RE (AR

18. HELEE

Customer  Technology Unfinished

Software  Trademarks Licences  relationships know-how  sales contracts Total
E -3 EiE EFBE BEHfT ARHEERN At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARETR
2,622 6,724 25411 41,339 114,495 - 190,591

- - - - 202,445 22,690 225,135

24 - 1,185 - - - 1,209
(2,603) (1,134) (19,613) - - - (23,350)
- (5,590) (6,983) - (114312) - (126,885)

3 - - 41,339 202,628 22,690 266,700

1,618 5975 13,733 19,139 19,392 - 59,857
102 107 293 4117 10,137 12,972 30,358

- - - 18,083 - - 18,083
(1,697) (492) (14,185) - - - (16,374)

- (5,590) (241) - (26,819) - (34,880)

3 - - 41,339 2,710 12972 57,044

2 - - - 199,918 9,18 209,656
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31 December 2015
—E-—AFF+=A=+—H

18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

18. HtWEEEE )

Customer Technology Unfinished
31 December 2014 Software Trademarks Licences  relationships know-how  Sales contracts Total
ZE-METZA=1-A ks i BOE ZPBR ZERM hy
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBTT  ARETR  ARETT  ARBTT  ARETR
Cost: A
At 1 January 2014 RZZ-m5-A-A 2583 5724 21,645 56,416 118,785 2871 232,984
Additions RE 26 1,000 3913 - - - 5,175
Disposal of a subsidiary (rote 24)  HE—FIMBLRH/i34) (183) - (147) (5,270) 4,290) - (9,890)
Written-off st - - - (9,807) - (27871) (37678)
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-ME
+ZF=1+-H 2,622 6,724 25411 41339 114,495 - 190,591
Accumulated amortisationand &t R -
impairment:
At 1 January 2014 AZE-ME-A-A 1628 5,662 9,725 21,503 1497 21811 81,360
Amortsation provided Engaas
during the year 173 313 4,156 9,512 7,655 - 21,809
Disposal of a subsidiary (rote 24)  HE—FIMBLR H/i34) (183) - (148) (3,974) (3,234) - (75539)
Written-off His# - - - (9,807) - (27871) (37678)
Impairment during the year ERHE - - - 1,905 - - 1,905
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-MF
+-F=1+-H 1618 5975 13,733 19,139 19,392 - 59,857
Net carrying amount: REFE
At 31 December 2014 RZE-MF
+-A=f-H 1,004 749 11,678 22,200 95,103 - 130,734

H{th S & B 0 REDRI R
AFEEEREEIANARMERLEENSIEL
A ARME18,083,000T (ZE—MNF : AR
1,905,0007T) B FEAERERE  £ZFRA
RAEEHEECHARBREZARECER
ERIDETHREEFPHNEY SHHENT
FPRAGRREINEENZED

Impairment testing of other intangible assets

An impairment loss on customer relationships included in other
intangible assets amounting to approximatley RMB18,083,000
(2014: RMB1,905,000) was fully recognised in the current year,
which was mainly due to that the Group gradually shifted its
focus towards the development of the business of network
system integration and decreased its business with certain
existing customers, resulting in little economic benefit from the
corresponding customer relationships.
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31 December 2015
—F-AF+=A=+—H

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. AEHERE

Unlisted equity investments, at cost

2015 2014
—E—hH%F

—T—JuF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFTT

IEEMRAKE + LA 15,000 15,000

Unlisted equity investment represents the cost of the 10% interest
in JERE Ik Ik E RATEEIRITAR B R A (Shenyang Shenbei Fumin
Village and Town Bank Corporation Limited*, “Shenbei Bank")
with no fixed maturity date. Shenbei Bank was established in the
PRC where it operates. It is a financial entity approved by the China
Bank Regulatory Commission in the PRC and a private entity which is
not listed on any public exchange.

The above unlisted equity investment was stated at cost because
the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so wide that the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that its fair value
cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not intend to dispose
of this unlisted equity investment in the near future.

* The English name is for identification purpose only.
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B R R R MY EE (48)
31 December 2015
—EF—AaFf+=-A=+—H
20. DEFERRED TAX 20. EEBIIE
Deferred tax assets FIEHIEEE
31 December 2015 —E—R&%+=-H=+—H

Unrealised
gain on

Impairment  government

loss of assets grants Others Total
EERIE REH
53] BUF#E Hts st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTET AR¥TT AR%®Tx AR®ET T

At 1 January 2015 RZZE—HRF—H—H 2,150 3,550 1,549 7,249
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—FEME R
(note 33) (H17£33) 1,851 - 274 2,125
Charged to profit or loss FRREZMBR
during the year (336) (2,562) (1,114) (4,012)
At 31 December 2015 ATE—RF
+=-A=+—H 3,665 988 709 5,362
31 December 2014 —E-NE+=-A=+—H
Unrealised
gain on
Impairment government
loss of assets grants Others Total
BERE RET
B BTHERG HAth mast
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREF T ARBTF T ARETT ARBT T
At 1 January 2014 NZE—WFE—H—H 227 2,209 838 3,274
Credited to profit or loss FRRBRFTA
during the year 1,923 1,341 71 3,975
At 31 December 2014 RZE—WF
+=-A=+—H 2,150 3,550 1,549 7,249

146



ANNUAL REPORT 2015 —Z—H F 53
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B R R R EE (4)
31 December 2015
—FE—AFF+=A=+—H
20. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 20. IEFEBIIE (@)
Deferred tax liabilities FEEHIEEE
31 December 2015 —E-R&E+=-A=+—H

Deferred tax Fair value
liabilities in adjustment on
excess of acquisition

related of a
depreciation subsidiary

BHAERTE Wi —

ZIETE MEXRZ
BEAE AAEESER et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETF T ARMTF T

At 1 January 2015 RZZE—RF—A—H - 10,607 10,607
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 33) & —REM B AR (475733) - 33,770 33,770
Charged/(credited) to profit or FRPEZEHRR (GTA)
loss during the year 7 (10,422) (10,415)
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RF+-_A=1—H 7 33,955 33,962
31 December 2014 —ZE-mFE+=-HA=+—H

Fair value
adjustment on
acquisition of a

subsidiary

J‘I&E%_Fﬂﬁ

MBARZ

AR BEFE

RMB’000

ARETTT

At 1 January 2014 RZZE—MNF—H—H 8,614

Charged to profit or loss during the year FRREZER 2,581
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 34(e)) HE—RMWB AR (HiE34)) (588)
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—F+=A=+—H 10,607
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of tax losses BT IEE L ARKS,357,000T (=%
of approximately RMB8,357,000 (2014: RMB157,139,000) as the —PO4F : AR¥157,139,0007T) R IELER B
losses have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for BE  AAZSEEELEE@FRNESER
years and it is not probable that taxable profits will be available RIMT B AR - E LN K AT RE A FE SR F i A AT gt

against which the tax losses can be utilised. TIBEIEEAERH -
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31 December 2015
—E—AFF=A=+—H

20.

21.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the
applicable rate is 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008.

At 31 December 2015, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group's
subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute
such earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised totalled approximately RMB232 million at 31 December
2015 (2014: RMB257 million).

INVENTORIES

Raw materials ERE
Work in progress TR
Finished goods SRk M

20.

21.

IRIEBIE (@)

FiEHESE®)

AR 35 R B POt (> 2 PR S RES% - 72 R B AR T
BN EMINEREESRRS - BHRE
ERMI0% MBI - LWETE _TENF
— B BRRERTEAR —_EE+E+ A
S+—B2HBHMBF - fERE R EZE
B& 8 & B Rl =R ST ARG « BIFE
BEESAMBE  SRAEE - BAKREA
10% o B + 7N 2 B A T 72 o B P A o 0
BRARMR-ZEZNF— A —HIAERRNE
I AAEERMARS  AEEARLEANTE
R -

R-TE—FAE+-_A=1+—8 TERLEEH
fE 7R B Ak S RO B B A R BB TR 2 R
SIRAFEMZENRERECHE - EFR
B REWB AR ER A BARKDIRA R
B - RZE—AFFTZA=1+—H ' MK
RELERBAGBZATEANMWHBRARZEE
HENRFEEZEERRNAARE22HEET(Z
T—NF : ARB257EETT) ©

wE
2015 2014
—E-EF —T—pmE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTT
= 39,626
= 26,318
13,975 79,438
13,975 145,382
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31 December 2015
—F-AF+=A=+-A

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

22. EEREBEWRR

2015 2014

—E-HE —T—5F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AREFTT

Trade receivables = e 586,115 1,243,309
Impairment RIE (6,957) (6,945)
Trade receivables, net B REWHIE - FEE 579,158 1,236,364
Bills receivable S 5,962 24,541
585,120 1,260,905

Trade receivables of the Group represented proceeds receivable
from the sale of goods and rendering of services. The Group’s
trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit, except for
new customers where payment in advance is normally required. The
credit term generally ranges from 30 to 90 days, and a longer credit
term will be granted to certain major customers. Each customer
has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control
management system to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned, as at 31 December 2015, except for the amounts
due from three (31 December 2014: one) customers exceeding
10% of the Group’s total trade and bills receivables, the remaining
balances of the trade receivables related to a large number of
diversified customers. Trade receivables are interest-free and
unsecured as at 31 December 2015.
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31 December 2015
—F-AFt+=A=+—H
22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22. EFREBRER @)
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables of the Group as at the TRETIAREEE 5 WA T @S HRA R
end of the reporting period, based on the transaction date and net BN BRASTTAR S BB AMKE - e
of provision, is as follows: MR

2015 2014
—E-HEF —T—F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

Within 3 months =EAR 79,602 800,592
3 to 6 months =FXfEA 261,472 176,257
6 to 12 months RETZ{EA 114,180 38,541
110 2 years —Z2MF 110,470 98,612
Over 2 years FBIB R 13,434 122,362
579,158 1,236,364
The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are E S RBGIER R EREZEHIT
as follows:

2015 2014
—E-HF —TmF

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARMETTT

At beginning of year FREEER 6,945 3,125
Provided in the current year RAFEREE 6,534 4,588
Impairment losses reversed BE 2R EEE (3.909) (768)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHNE AT (2,583) -
Exchange realignment PE A% (30) -
6,957 6,945
Included in the above provision for impairment of trade receivables Fii B S EWSIEREREREERNEMES
is a provision for individually impaired trade receivables of B 5 IEZ BiE A ANRE7,754,000T (=
approximately RMB7,754,000 (2014: RMB6,945,000) with a T —mF - NE#¥6,945,0007T) - BERIRE
carrying amount before provision of RMB6,957,000 (2014: BAh ANR¥eE,957,000T( ZFE—MM4E : AR
RMB6,945,000). 6,945,0007T) ©
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the recoverable ARBEERE  RZE—RAF+=ZA=+—
amount of the impaired assets as at 31 December 2015 was H  REEBEZAKREEREL A ARET797,000
approximately RMB797,000. JT °©
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22. EFREBERER @)
The ageing analysis of the trade receivables that are not individually A IR R 3k = B v 4R A R E Y B 5 FE ISR IE Y
nor collectively considered to be impaired is as follows: BRESDHTIO R -

2015 2014

—E-HF —ZT—F

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR%T T AREETTT

Neither past due nor impaired 360 HY TN R (B 79,933 900,745
Within 3 months =EARN 247,662 127,666
4 to 6 months past due wMEINENEA 28,894 23,231
7 to 12 months past due MEEE+ @A 195,489 59,959
Over 1 year past due BHREE A — 27,180 124,763
579,158 1,236,364

The maturity profile of the bills receivable of the Group as at the

end of the reporting period is as follows:

TR AKERERBEN RS HRNE B

Within 3 months =@AA

3 to 6 months —Z=REA

e
2015 2014
—E-HE —T—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T AREET T
= 12,069
5,962 12,472
5,962 24,541

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

At 31 December 2015, no amounts due from related parties of the
Group were included in the trade receivables (31 December 2014:
RMB64,798,000), which are repayable on credit terms similar to
those offered to the major customers of the Group.
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T—AF+—A=+—H

22,

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

At 31 December 2014, the Group endorsed certain bills receivable
accepted by banks in Mainland China (the “Endorsed Bills”) with
a carrying amount of RMB1,020,000 to certain of its suppliers
in order to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers (the
“Endorsement”). In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Group had retained the substantial risks and rewards,
which include default risks relating to such Endorsed Bills, and
accordingly, it continued to recognise the full carrying amounts of
the Endorsed Bills and recognised the associated trade payables
settled. Subsequent to the Endorsement, the Group did not retain
any rights on the use of the Endorsed Bills, including the sale,
transfer or pledge of the Endorsed Bills to any other third parties.
The aggregate carrying amount of the trade payables settled
by the Endorsed Bills to which the suppliers have recourse were
RMB1,020,000 as at 31 December 2014. As at 31 December 2015,
no bills receivable was endorsed with full recourse.

At 31 December 2014, the Group discounted certain bills receivable
to banks and endorsed certain bills receivable accepted by banks
in Mainland China to certain of its suppliers in order to settle the
trade payables due to such suppliers (the “Derecognised Bills”)
with a carrying amount in aggregate of RMB15,133,000. The
Derecognised Bills had a maturity of one to three months at the end
of the reporting period. In accordance with the Law of Negotiable
Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills have
a right of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks default
(the “Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the Group had transferred substantially all risks
and rewards relating to the Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it
had derecognised the full carrying amounts of the Derecognised
Bills and the associated secured bank loans and trade payables.
The maximum exposure to loss from the Group’s Continuing
Involvement in the Derecognised Bills and the undiscounted cash
flows to repurchase these Derecognised Bills was equal to their
carrying amounts. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the fair values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the
Derecognised Bills were not significant. During the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014, the Group has not recognised any gain
or loss on the date of transfer of the Derecognised Bills. No gains
or losses were recognised form the Continuing Involvement, both
during the year or cumulatively. The discounting and endorsement
have been made evenly throughout the year.
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31 December 2015

—F-EFt=A=+—A
23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

The balance of prepayments, deposits and other receivables
mainly included advances to suppliers and other third parties of
approximately RMB196,489,000 (2014: RMB166,227,000).

Included in the Group’'s prepayments, deposits and other
receivables are amounts due from related parties of approximately
RMB10,681,000 as at 31 December 2014, which are repayable on
credit terms similar to those offered to the major customers of the
Group.

The Group did not provide any allowance on the advances to other
third parties as, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
there has not been any significant change in credit quality and the
amounts are still considered recoverable.

Movements in the provision for impairment of other receivables are

as follows:

At beginning of year FAEER
Provided in the current year RAFEEE
Impairment losses reversed 2B REY o=

Disposal of a subsidiary

23.

HE—RHREQR

BNRIE - RERAEMERRE

BAFHE - e R EMERRIBN S EE 0T
MEEEREMEZFBRHOARE
196,489,000 7T ( — T — U &F : A R ¥
166,227,0007T) °

MN-ZE—NE+-A=+—0  AEEHNFEN
A - R REAMBRFIEREE K EES R
THA) A R#10,681,0007C © 2S5 HIBBEBIE
AEEREERFPREMNBELEEGRNERE -

AEE AW EBL M E A S =T7 (FH B FIRHE
M AREARREERREEERLEL
MEREE) - WRAFEBAWE o

HAit WSR2 R EREEBIT

2015 2014
—E-EF —T—pmE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTT
3,073 3,0M11
2,499 413

(26) (351)
(3,252) -
2,294 3,073

153



HL Technology Group Limited BLRI K EE AR A A
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

St s S B o (4D

31 December 2015

—F-AFt+=A=+—H

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED 24.
DEPOSITS

ReRREEEUREEFTER

2015 2014
—E-EF —T—mE

RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETT

Cash and bank balances e RIRTTAEER

Pledged deposits [REFEEIESN

Less: Pledged deposits: A BT
Pledged for bills payable BT IR AR
Pledged for letters of credit LS A (EHE R
Pledged for bank borrowings BERTTIEEFET
Pledged for contract bidding MBS HEE R

Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY

192,120 169,950
8,130 23,985
200,250 193,935
- (15,859)

- (8,126)
(2,631) -
(5,499) -
(8,130) (23,985)
192,120 169,950

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
RMB121,928,000 (2014: RMB153,424,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily

bank deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
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25. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 25. PERBEHEEE
RMB’000
ARETFT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2014, RZZ—NE—A—RH - ZZ—MF
31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 +ZA=+—HERZZE—RF—HA—H -
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (note 74) EEEYE - BRENRE WL 14) 61,624
Transfer from prepaid land lease payments EERAEMN LA ERIE 42,511
Transfer from other intangible assets (note 18) ERAHMELEE(WT18) 92,005
Carrying amount at 31 December 2015 REZE—RF+-A=1+—BHEEE 196,140
26. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 26. EEREEEAR
An ageing analysis of the trade payables of the Group, based on TREIIREEE F N FIEN WS AREE
the invoice date, as at the end of the reporting period is as follows: ZHBEH AR DT

2015 2014
—E-RF —TpmE

RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT

Within 3 months =@ARA 55,343 513,181
3 to 12 months =Z+—{@A 209,853 146,682
1 to 2 years —EMF 105,225 143,355
Over 2 years BB F 19,808 17,423
390,229 820,641
The Group normally obtains credit terms ranging from 1 to 3 AEE—REREEATNT —E2=@EANE
months from its suppliers. Trade payables are unsecured and EH - BHENFBAEERR RS

interest-free.

At 31 December 2015, no amounts due to related parties of the RZBE—RAF+-A=+—H BSENK

Group were included in the trade payables (31 December 2014: WA BIEAE B R R E T K IE(_f—E¢
RMB16,586,000) which were repayable on credit terms similar to +=—A=+—8: AR¥16,586,0007T) ' %%
those offered by related parties to their major customers. REERBEFRHTEFERFPZEUEE
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26. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Continued) 26. B REBEAR @
An ageing analysis of the bills payable of the Group, based on the TRETIRNEEENRBAEREARIZETH
issuance date, as at the end of the reporting period is as follows: HEH BERIR D HT -

2015 2014
—E-RfF —T—mF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT

Within 3 months ={EAR - 30,065
3 to 6 months ==~ @A - 16,338
- 46,403
As at 31 December 2014, the bills payable were secured by pledged RZZE—MF+_A=+—0  BENEEHE
deposits of RMB15,859,000. AR TR AREE15,859,000 T 1EIEH o
27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 27. HitfENFREREHER

2015 2014
=F-1F —T—mF

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT

Advances from customers TEWE P RIE 16,594 39,738
Accruals FEETE A 11,215 36,169
Other taxes payable H e HiIE 40,464 40,973
Payable for acquisition of a subsidiary e iE — P B A B FE A 3E 76,271 -
Others Hib 8,233 30,996
152,777 147,876
Other payables and accruals are interest-free and have an average HENREREAERAREE - FHERN
term of three months. R=1EA -
Included in the Group's other payables and accruals are amounts RZZE—MF+—A=+—H  K~EBHEHME
due to related parties of RMB14,023,000 as at 31 December 2014, NFRIBRE B RO EREMN ST RIEARKE
which are repayable on credit terms similar to those offered by 14,023,0007C © ZEFIAELRBETRETE
related parties to third parties. =HZEUMEERER -
As at 31 December 2015, payable for acquisition of a subsidiary RZZB-—AF+-HA=+—H WE—FHE
of HK$90,000,000 (equivalent to RMB76,271,000) represented X A FE A 5RIE 90,000,000 7T (FHE X AR ¥
an amount due to a company controlled by two directors of the 76,271,00070) 5 e —FH R B (R A AR A
Company, which is unsecured, interest-free and will be repayable EEEHRIE - ZFEREER  REWKEA
on 30 June 2016. REZB—RFARA=THEER -
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 28. FTERITRHEMEE
BORROWINGS
2015
—EB-FE
Contractual Contractual
interest rate Maturity interest rate Maturity
=Y Spp: ki BHIFIE 5
RMB'000 RMB'000
(%) AR¥TR (%) AREFT
Current b
Bank loans - unsecured  SR{TE N — EIEIR 2.70~7.80 2016 32370 4.03~7.54 2015 254,423
“Z-RE “E-RF
Bank loans - secured RITER — BER 2.70~3.10 2016 4,669  3.84~6.30 2015 134,946
“E-RE “E-AF
Other loans - unsecured ~ Efh &5 — &K 6.59 2016 4,237 7.70~8.00 2015 100,052
ZE-RE —T-hE
Total HeE 41,276 489,421
Notes: HizE -
(@) A director of the Company has guaranteed certain of the Group’s bank (@ RZTE—RAF+-A=1+—80 XRREZEE

loans up to approximately RMB30,193,000 as at 31 December 2015.
As at 31 December 2014, certain of the Group’s bank loans up to
RMB132,850,000 were guaranteed by the Group’s related parties.

Certain of the Group’s bank loans as at 31 December 2014 were secured
by:

Mortgages over the Group's property, plant and equipment, which
had an aggregate carrying value at the end of the reporting period of
approximately RMB174,695,000 and mortgages over the Group's leased
land situated in Mainland China, which had a carrying value at the end of
the reporting period of approximately RMB39,774,000.

Except for the unsecured bank loans of approximately HK$3,976,000
and secured bank loan of HK$5,509,000 and unsecured other borrowing
of HK$5,000,000, which are denominated in Hong Kong dollar as at
31 December 2015, all borrowings were denominated in RMB. As at 31
December 2014 the secured bank loans of US$560,000 and unsecured
bank loans of US$5,026,000, which are denominated in United States
dollar, all borrowings were denominated in RMB.
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29. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 29. BUFERL
The movements of government grants are as follows: BT
2015 2014
—EB-Rf —T—mE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTFT
At 1 January n—HA—H 14,200 14,727
Received during the year A AUER 336 4,389
Released to the statement of profit or loss RERFTAZREBESE
during the year (7,948) (4,916)
At 31 December Rt+—-_A=+—H 6,588 14,200
Non-current JERNHA 6,588 14,200
There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached to BB Rt ARaR & 2 7RG B FT 5 R A ek
these grants for those released to the statement of profit or loss. ks B FF - 81 TR K AK#56,588,0007T
The remaining grants of approximately RMB6,588,000 (2014: ZF 4+ AKM14,200,0007T) B R RE
RMB14,200,000) are special funds subject to verification by the SRR BT EILTT AT B -

local government.

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. B
Shares i dvin

Issued and fully paid: BEITREE
780,000,000 (2014: 720,000,000) 780,000,000%
ordinary shares of US$0.02 each (ZZ—PU4F : 720,000,0004%)
HARMEE0.023E T2 E AR US$15,600,000 7t  US$14,400,000% 7T
Equivalent to HER ARY AR

RMB104,732,000t RMB97,401,0007T
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 30. BA& (@)
Shares (Continued) R (&)
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as AARIRAEHHEZ T :

31.

follows:
Number of

shares in issue

BRTRH

At 1January 2014, 31 December R=Z—MF—F—H -

Share capital

A

Equivalent to

HER

USD'000
=

Share Treasury
premium shares

Rira® ERRS

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARMTR  ARBTT  ARETR

2014 and 1 January 2015 ZE-MEFZA=T-H
k=Z-1%-A-H 720,000,000 14,400 97,401 429,549 - 526,950
Share repurchased (note a) BRRD(Wia) - - - - (149,203) (149,203)
Cancellation of shares SHBRRG
repurchased (50,000,000) (1,000) (6,763) (142,440) 149,203 -
Issue of shares (note b) %1iRin (Wzb) 110,000,000 2,200 14,094 237,979 - 252,073
Share issue expense ESDIET - - - (25) - (25)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RE+ZA=1T-8 780,000,000 15,600 104,732 525,063 - 629,795

Notes: Kt -

(@) The Company repurchased 50,000,000 of its shares on the Hong Kong (@  ADARBEBRFGOIES7THEZEURERN
Stock Exchange at a total consideration of HK$189,772,000 (equivalent 7 78 B 32 BT B [2] H 50,000,000 A% A& 1+ B (E
to RMB149,203,000) which was paid wholly by cash in accordance with /%189,772,0005% 7T (48 & 7 A R # 149,203,000
section 257 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The repurchased 7T) - BERGOBENFNGTEH o
shares were cancelled during the year.

(b) 110,000,000 new shares were issued at contractual price of HK$2.36 per (b) 110,000,000 f& #T & A = B & 236 B T &
share to settle part of the consideration of the acquisition of a subsidiary RBBRET USDEMNKE -—FHER
amounting to HK$259,600,000 (equivalent to RMB213,225,000). The Al 9 X {8 259,600,000 /& 7T (1 & RN AR ¥
fair value of the new issued shares of the Company was amounting to 213,225,0007T) ° RARIEBEITHRZ AN EE
HK$306,900,000 (equivalent to RMB252,073,000), which was determined 74306,900,0007%8 7T (18 & M A R # 252,073,000
based on the market price of the shares on 13 November 2015 of HK$2.79 7T)  BRIOREROR -_F-—RAF+—AT=H
per share. WIS ERER2. 798 TTMET -

RESERVES 31. &

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 79 to 80 of the financial
statements.
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—E—AFF=A=+—H

32. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL 32. HEE AEIERER >R EEMH

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS BAT
Details of the Group's subsidiary that has material non-controlling EBEEEAFIERER 2 AEEN B AR
interests are set out below: HIEEHY T -

2015
—g-nf

Percentage of equity interest held by non-controlling SRR EEEA DT
interests:
Fortune Grace Fortune Grace 25%

2015
—B—HF

RMB’000
AR®T T

Profit for the year allocated to non-controlling interests: S ff T 3E1E Mt ss ~ £ F) -

Fortune Grace Fortune Grace 2,109
Accumulated balances of non-controlling interests RIRE A EAFEIE s 2 Rt

at the reporting date
Fortune Grace Fortune Grace 68,848

160



ANNUAL REPORT 2015 =2 —HFF#H{
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B RS SRR Y RE (AR

31 December 2015

—E-aFf+=-A=1—H

32. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information
of the above subsidiary. The amounts disclosed are before any inter-

company eliminations:

32.

BEEAERERZT D HEEH
BavE)

TRHP LM BRARAFEEROHE « ik
BESEN AR 228

2015

—E-fE

RMB’000

ARET

Revenue Wz 66,986
Total expenses 1Ap% (58,549)
Profit for the year FE R 8,437
Total comprehensive income for the year FEEEN SR 7,773
Current assets mBNEE 240,876
Non-current assets JEMBEE 213,019
Current liabilities mEBE (147,057)
Non-current liabilities FERBERE (31,445)
Net cash flows from operating activities R E TSR R R 17,336
Net cash flows from investing activities BEESMERe ™ FE 32
Net cash flows from financing activities BEEEBIRE R FRE 1,513
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Re RBSFEYILINFE 18,881

33. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 13 November 2015, the Group acquired a 75% interest
in Fortune Grace from Smoothly Global Holdings Limited (the
“Vendor”), an independent third party of the Company. Fortune
Grace and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the business
of network system integration, including provision of network
infrastructure solutions and network professional services as
well as internet related software solutions. The acquisition was
made as part of the Group’s strategy to expand its market
share of communication system in the Mainland China. The
purchase consideration for the acquisition was HK$450,000,000
(equivalent to RMB369,610,000), of which HK$190,400,000
(equivalent to RMB156,387,000) was settled by cash and of which
HK$259,600,000 (equivalent to RMB213,223,000) was settled by
way of issuance of new shares at a contractual price of HK$2.36
per share. HK$100,400,000 (equivalent to RMB82,465,000) of the
cash settlement was paid in the current year and the remaining
consideration of HK$90,000,000 (equivalent to RMB76,271,000)
will be settled on 30 June 2016. 110,000,000 new shares of the
Company were also issued to the Vendor on 13 November 2015 to
settle the consideration for this acquisition.
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33.

¥Kest

RZE—RAF+—A+=8 AEERBIL
7 A &) K % = A Smoothly Global Holdings
Limited([ &7 |) Yti&Fortune Grace 75%7#Ezs ©
Fortune Grace X EMfB AR EZR EHE X
REBELAER  BRERHEABERESRBATR
T 48 4% =5 3 AR 76 DA I B2 5 B AR AR A B 1 R R
FER - B IEAAEEENERFE AL
BIERHEMISHEAREN—HD - ZRED
8 B X {8 5450,000,000/& T (HHERARE
369,610,000 7T ) * & 1 190,400,000 /% 7T ( 48
BN AR 156,387,0007T) BB - M
259,600,000 7t (48 & 7 A R % 213,223,000
L) DEBBETHREN  BRAENER
2.3678 7T ° 100,400,000 7T (8 N A R
82,465,0007T) E M AFELAIR SR - AT
(890,000,000 7T (HHE R AR 76,271,000
BN _E—R"ENA=TH&EM - AR A
110,000,000 MR =T —RAF+—A+=
AEITTE A UERRRKEZRE -
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B R ()
31 December 2015
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33. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 33. ¥Babtuw)
The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling interest in N BIE 2 L EE IR 2 M Fortune Grace F] &
Fortune Grace at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share = B1E & B R IS AR B ) 5 2 FAFortune Grace
of Fortune Grace's identifiable net assets. B FEFER R 2 o
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Fortune Fortune Grace R B I Z AT E BRI EE KA
Grace as at the date of acquisition were as follows: EARLEBENOT :
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
L R B T RR
DA EE
RMB'000
ARETFT
Property, plant and equipment M - BB KR 1,450
Other intangible assets HibmpEE 225,135
Deferred tax assets RIERIBE E 2,125
Inventories FE 15,676
Trade and bills receivables B 5 M EEREWER 142,310
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BRI - 2e REMEIFIAE 24,307
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBSEBY 35,931
Trade and bills payables 5 REBERK (65,554)
Other payables and accruals H e R0E K ERT & A (37,271)
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings STERITREAEE (39,123)
Tax payable FERTFRER (3,376)
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHIEAE (33,770)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BARBEYEZEBNFEEMLRE 267,840
Non-controlling interests FEPERR M A (66,960)
Goodwill on acquisition R EE 2B 207,580
Satisfied by: FRTIFRER
Cash BTk 156,387
Issuance of shares* BITRR M * 252,073
408,460
e The fair value of the 110,000,000 new shares issued by the Company was e ARAR)ZEFTHI 110,000,000 8 FTAR A A 7t BE TR
determined based on the market price of the shares on 13 November 2015 BR-ZE—AF+—A+=ARMNTISERE
of HK$2.79 per share. f%2.79B TERE °
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33. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)
The fair values of the trade receivables as at the date of
acquisition amounted to approximately RMB142,310,000. The
gross contractual amount of trade receivables was approximately
RMB151,189,000 of which approximately RMB8,879,000 was
expected to be uncollectible.

The Group incurred transaction costs of approximately
HK$1,992,000 (equivalent to RMB1,620,000) for this acquisition.
These transaction costs have been expensed and are included in
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows:

33.

¥Kke6tm
BoRRZBEBNREBRNAABEIAAR
#142,310,0007C - B 5 REIHIENEBEE T
FA A ANRB151,189,0007T * EFHHARE
8,879,0007LTEHA A T Y [E] ©

REERARKBEBBEORIKNAN AR
1,992,000 7T (#H & I AR #1,620,0007T) °
ZERXBGKRAE X - WEFALE BRI
THAX -

HEC R BRMSR A E A SHE T IAN

FRUNBENBRARNREMREEZEMRLF
BOMT

2015
—E-RfF
RMB’000
ARBT
Cash paid [=EDEEE A (82,465)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired WEMNEE KRS EEY 35,931
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included FAREZHAERSRNES R
in cash flows from investing activities ReEERLFE (46,534)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included in FEAKE EB TR SRS
cash flows from operating activities R (1,620)
(48,154)

Since the acquisition, Fortune Grace contributed approximately
RMB66,986,000 to the Group's revenue and approximately
RMB8,437,000 to the consolidated profit for the year ended 31
December 2015.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year,
the revenue from continuing operations of the Group and the
profit of the Group for the year would have been approximately
RMB314,932,000 and approximately RMB 10,222,000, respectively.
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B % U BE#E - Fortune Grace i E —ZE — 1 4
T A=+ BLFEAREBEBMOARE
66,986,0007T A fzx K 49 A R #68,437,0007T £

AR

A FFRENETT  REBFESCEREZRA
SENFE BB D BIK A ARE314,932,000
TR HI AR #10,222,0007T °
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31 December 2015
—F-aFt=A=+—H
34. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES 34. HEHBRF
(a) Disposal of entire equity interest ing&/8mH 14 1& (a) HERSHHREBEEREERAT
SER AR AT (Weihaishi Yubo Wire & Cable (B E%E 1) N2 IR
Technology Co., Ltd.*, “Weihai Yubo")
On 27 October 2015, the Group disposed of the entire RZE—RF+A=-++tH AEBHE
equity interest in Weihai Yubo at a cash consideration of BUSHRIENEHRE BeREAARKE
RMB65,000,000. Further details of the disposal were set out 65,000,0007T ° HER#E—FFIFEIN
in the Company’s announcements dated 8 July 2015 and 27 ARRBAZS—RAFLANBR=ZE
October 2015. —HFETA-TLEBENARE -
27 October
2015
—T—FHF
+A=++H
RMB’000
ARBFIT
Net assets disposed of: HEZFEE
Investment property BEME 129,956
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERFIE - e RHE A R RIE 30,246
Cash and cash equivalents RekBRSEED 83
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTRRITREMEE (94,400)
Other payables and accruals HAbERRIE R ERTE A (1,539)
64,346
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HB ARz WE 654
65,000
Satisfied by: IATEIERE
Cash Be 65,000
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34. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34. HEMBRT @)

(b) Disposal of entire equity interest in Honglin (b) HEBUKBEIRR 22 E

International
On 30 June 2015, the Group disposed of its entire equity RZZE—RFNA=Z+H  AEEH
interest in Honglin International at a cash consideration ERMBER 2 25 E  REREYD
of approximately HK$232,805,000 (equivalent to #3232,805000 B T (HER AR
RMB187,059,000) (the “Disposal”). Further details of the 187,059,000 ) ([ HE=EE]) - HES
Disposal were set out in the Company’s announcements B - S EEHIN AR B AT
dated 28 April 2015 and 30 June 2015 and the circular of the —REMA-Z+N\BR-ZE—RFA
Company dated 10 June 2015. ZTHENRAERAQRBHAZS—RF

Net assets disposed of:

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid land lease payments

Other intangible assets

Prepayment for purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment

Derivative financial instruments

Inventories

Trade and bills receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Pledged bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and bills payables

Other payables and accruals

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

Non-controlling interests

Reclassification of foreign currency translation
reserve

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Satisfied by:
Cash

NATHEBK -

30 June
2015
—T—hHF
NA=1H
RMB’000
AREETIT
HEZFEE !
W - BB KRB 118,679
TEf AR EFIE 8,870
Hit L EE 6,976
HBEWZE  BREREEEE 2
TERR 281
PTESBTA 75
Ea=} 186,488
B 5 MEEERER 249,022
FERRE -« e REAMERGRIA 143,652
DIIRIRITIER 65,473
Re RBSEEY 16,979
B 5 MEEEN R (184,578)
HAb R AR ERTE A (71,166)
FHERITREMEE (369,453)
IR (6,627)
[N i B8
4,602
169,273
& —FRINE AT 2 s 17,786
187,059
TR AR &
Be 187,059
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34. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34. HEMBAR @)
(c) Disposal of entire equity interest in & &% () HEREBHRREXEHERZER
¥ =it ER AR T (Weihai Jinyuan Mingye AT BESRRE]) 222 HE
Property Development Co., Ltd.*, “Weihai
Jinyuan”)
On 29 May 2015, the Group disposed of its entire equity R-ZE—RAFRA-THE  AEBHE
interest in Weihai Jinyuan to B8 KA KM EIBIRAR] at a BUSIRIR 2 IPARIE T B RE A MBS
consideration of RMB19,500,000. Rarl - REAAR19,500,0007T °

29 May
2015
—ZT—RF
AA=t+1H
RMB’000
ARBFIT
Net assets disposed of: HEZFEE
Prepaid land lease payments TafS 4108 & R IE 30,830
Property, plant and equipment YE - BB KRB 5,885
Cash and cash equivalents RekBRSEED 6
Other payables and accruals HAb R RIE R ERT B (21,038)
15,683
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & —RNE AR 2 ks 3,817
19,500
Satisfied by: AT BN R
Cash Be 19,500
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34. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(d) Disposal of entire equity interest in EZE 50

B AR 2 7 (Wuhan Honglin Technology Co.,
Ltd.*, "Wuhan Honglin")
On 10 January 2014, the Group disposed of its 90% and
10% equity interests in Wuhan Honglin to 4t 5 & 2 58 &
RHRBER AT and FUED LR A MM ARAF at
cash considerations of approximately RMB46,815,000 and
RMB5,202,000, respectively (the “Wuhan Honglin Disposal”).
Further details of the Wuhan Honglin Disposal were set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 10 January 2014.

10 January
2014
—E—UFE
—A+8B
RMB’000
ARBTT
Net assets disposed of: HEZFEE !

Prepayments for acquiring land use rights Wi + b b FR 2 TR RRIE 10,087
Trade and bills receivables O ESE Y e 39,017
49,104
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HMB ARz WE 2,913
52,017

Satisfied by: IATEERE
Cash Be 52,017

34. HEMB AT ()

(d)

HERET MBI RARD
([ ECEBLM ) 23R A R

RZZE—NF—F+H  AEESFIHE
BUE LN 2 90% K 10% A% 4 T AL B &
HrEemEplr AR AR REZEX TR A
EHMMBRERAR - BEREDFIHA
R #46,815,0007T & A R ¥5,202,0007T
([EVEGRLM I EEIE]) - EZHREVERL
MEESHEZFBEIRNARATHRA=T
—mFE-—A+EMHAS -
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34. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34. HEMBAR (@)
(e) Disposal of entire equity interest in Rituo (e) HEBHRSRFEZIBIE
Technology
On 25 April 2014, Dezhou Jincheng disposed of its entire RZZE—NFMNA=+HA @ EMNREE
equity interest in Rituo Technology to (/& 3 228 B #THT# BHEERBRaREZ 23 RETEE
ABRAA] (Weihai Dongchen Plastic New Materials Co., Ltd.*) TMREBBHME AR AR °

at a nil consideration.

2014
—T—F
RMB’000
ARBFIT
Net assets disposed of: HEZFEE :
Property, plant and equipment Wz BB REE 57
Other intangible assets HitmpEE 2,351
Trade and bills receivables EONSESE Y T 10,637
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERRIE « e REA RN FRIE 8
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEFE 3
Trade and bills payables B 5 MEEENR (4,634)
Other payables and accruals H bR ROE K EET B A (6,069)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERRIBAE (588)
1,765
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—MHB ARz &R (1,765)
Satisfied by: ATRF R
Cash R&e -
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34. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

()

Disposal of entire equity interest in /| (f)
M ELMIE RN B R 2 7 (Huizhou Honglin
Communication Technology Co., Ltd.*)

On 27 May 2014, the Group disposed of its entire equity

interest in Huizhou Honglin Communication Technology Co.,

Ltd. to EU/EMEE 4515 kE AR A Al (Weihai Pengwei Labor

Dispatch Co., Ltd.*) at a consideration of RMB8,009,000.

2014
—T—mF
RMB’000
ARBTT
Net assets disposed of: HEZFEE !

Property, plant and equipment W - BB R 87,885
Prepaid land lease payments TEAS 1 AE & FRIE 13,666
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TARFIE - e R E M B FIE 17,048
Cash and cash equivalents Re RBSFEY 737
Other payables and accruals H b AT RUE K EEH B A (111,992)
7,344
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & —FRINE A F 2 s 665
8,009

Satisfied by: TR AR
Cash Re 8,009

34. HEMB AT ()

HEEMHEMERRRAERAF
il

RZT—NERA=-++H  AEBHE
H BN malmaA e B R ARz 25
f&#E T EUEIS B S ISRERR AT - R(E
A AR 8,009,000 °

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows:

BFRLENBARNRE RESEEBYR
HFEAMNAT

2015 2014
—E—HEF —E—pugE

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREET T

Cash received WER & 271,559 60,026
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEZIRERIRESEY (17,068) (740)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalentsin ~ BREEHERBEARNEENESSE
respect of the disposal of subsidiaries BY R FRE 254,491 59,286
* The English names are for identification purpose only. o EXABEMHER -
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35. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transaction

On 13 November 2015, the Company acquired a 75% interest
in Fortune Grace at a consideration of HK$450,000,000
(equivalent to RMB369,610,000), of which HK$259,600,000
(equivalent to RMB213,223,000) was settled by way of
issuance of new shares of the Company at a contractual price
of HK$2.36 per share and the remaining consideration will be
settled in cash. Further details of the acquisition are included
in note 33 to the financial statements.

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

Guarantees on banking facilities provided to
related companies

T B
SRITRAE P {F 2 B IR

35. MEBEERERMNE

(a) EEHREXRZ

RZZT—RAF+—A+=H  &A2AF
U & Fortune Grace 75% # 25 © £ B
7/ 450,000,000 & 7T (FE & N A R
369,610,0007T) * & 259,600,000/ 7T
(HERAREM213,223,0007T) A& LB
B EAR2 36 TTEATA R RIEARAE -
B INREFURSEN - BEZKERNE
—HHEBE AN ERERM L3S -

36. AEME

Bz

(a)

RBEIR - WENTHHRER T BEEHNOK
REEWT

2015
—E-HfF

2014
—T—mF

RMB’000
AR¥ETIT

RMB’000
ARBET T

- 385,500

A subsidiary of the Group is currently a defendant in a
lawsuit brought by a supplier alleging that the subsidiary
breached and repudiated a commissioned development
contract on software of handsets. At the same time, the
Group instituted a counter-claim against the supplier for the
compensation for the loss on default in a contract with one
of the Group’s customers. The litigation is likely to continue
for a considerable amount of time, and the directors of
the Company, based on the advice from the Group’s legal
counsel, believe that the outcome of this claim cannot be
reliably estimated. Therefore, the Group has not provided for
any claim arising from the litigation, other than the related
legal and other costs incurred.
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(b)

BRIASE—EMNB AR AP R TH
U ZBRABENIHFRZIRE - REA
(ftrER) 1EEZ M B R R MR TR M
RERBANBEORBENITR - R -
AEEHZHEHRERARSRUAAE
B2 BFRNBRMEIE - FARATRE
SHERRER  ARRIEFREASHE
FEBRNER  BEZRRZEREN
A SEflET - B - BRBLARRE R R EMAK
AEHRR SN - NEE EH AR AAE £
EfT R RFTHRREA -



ANNUAL REPORT 2015 =2 —HFF#H{
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B RS SRR Y RE (AR

31 December 2015

—F
==

36.

37.

38.

—AF+-HA=1—H

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

(0 The Group underwent several reorganisations, including
disposals of the entire interest in Honglin International and
Weihai Yubo during the year and the transfers of several
subsidiaries within the Group. The Group has conducted
filings of the reorganisations, if required, with the relevant tax
authorities. However, those reorganisations may be subject to
further investigations if initiated and requested by the relevant
tax authorities. The directors of the Company believe that the
taxes arising from those reorganisations have been properly
dealt with and provided for in the financial statements.
Given the complexity of relevant tax laws and regulations
and the diversified practice of respective tax authorities in
the PRC, the directors of the Company consider that the
existence of any additional tax obligation arising from those
reorganisations cannot be confirmed until completion of such
further investigation, if any, and/or issuance of any written
notice by the relevant tax authorities. Therefore, the possible
obligation of such additional tax has not been provided for.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group’s bank loans and bills payable, which are
secured by the assets of the Group, are included in notes 14, 16,
and 24 to the financial statements.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of offices and buildings falling due as follows:

36.

37.

38.

FAREE®E)

(O AEBRAFEEETTHREL  BEL
MBI R B SR SRS R AN
EENL BT o AEED MiamH
BER2RBM(WERT) - R - W
RERBE RIRABES: - REH5ET
SETE—HMBE - ARTESIBEL
EEEEEMBIED ER S RENE AR
13 REHRERUE o MRS R R
wE N EEREBBEROMESET
A AR TEERATEETLEFER
ZESEEEMTMBIGEELT B5E
e — 5B (A )R R SRR
BERELIMEmEMNAL - Al - IF
KA AR BNRE B (TS HE
e

BEEKH
DUAREEEEERTE 2 ASBRTERREN
ZRFBHNIEIRERMTE14 - 161224 -

REERR AR
RZF-—HAFER-ZF-—NF+ZA=+—8H "
AKBFPAE REFRIRT A HEHEEM0
ARREERSABLIHAWT -

2015 2014
—E-—hE —E—JUE

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AREET T

Within one year —F R 5,508 1,897
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_EERAFN(RIEEREWF) 6,495 238
12,003 2,135

As at 31 December 2014, included in the Group’s commitments of
RMB755,000 were provided to a related party, with similar terms
offered by the related party to third parties.
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39. COMMITMENTS 39. &IE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note B B FE38F i 2 A A HH XA SN - AREE
38 above, the Group’s capital commitments as at the end of the RREHIR 7 BAELENT

reporting period were as follows:

2015 2014
—E-HEF —T—F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

Contracted, but not provided for: BRI B AR B
Property, plant and equipment ME - R KERE - 7,900
40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 20. BESREREERS
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions disclosed elsewhere in the financial BBt TSRS SR TR B S - ERA
statements, the Group had the following transactions with its EEEEEETET RS

related parties during the year:

2015 2014
—E-HF —ZE—OF

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT

Related parties: RE)
Sales of products HEEm (i) 56,942 166,653
Purchases of products BEEM (i) 16,049 80,477
Commission fee paid BEfEE (iif) 667 1,874
Rental and utility services fee paid ENHEERKER (iv) 2,031 3,785
Rental received B E (iv) 1,084 -
Fee for use of supplier codes paid D EAREERE v) 196 725
Fee for use of supplier codes received B ER RIS G R E v) 162 805
Guarantee fees paid ERERE (vi) 3,232 8,003
Guarantee fees received BUIERE (vii) 3,784 10,180
Interest expense paid AR ERS (viif) 2,159 -
Notes: Hat
(i) The sales to the related parties were made according to the (i) MEAETETHEEES - DURHTA
published prices and conditions offered to the major customers of SEEEXFHE DHERRIGGRIKE
the Group.
(i) The purchases from the related parties were made according to the (i) MRS EITHREES - TIUNEER M
published prices and conditions offered by the related parties to HIXrZRFREMNE AMER RIFHREK
their major customers. 15 -
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(9]

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(iii) The commission fee arose from the sale of power cord assemblies
arranged by a related party in Taipei, which in return paid a
commission based on the net profit of the transactions at rates
ranging from 3% to 17% arranged by other related parties
by reference to the terms by the related parties offered to an
independent third party.

(iv) The rental and service fees were charged based on the direct costs
incurred. The charges are substantially in line with the fees paid by
the related party to independent third parties. Further details of the
operating lease commitments are included in note 38.

(v) The fee for use of supplier codes was charged based on 1% of the
sales/purchase amount for the purpose of using the supplier code
to sell the relevant products to the ultimate customers. The charges
are substantially in line with comparable transactions in the market.

(vi)  The guarantee fees were based on 1.92% of the guaranteed
amounts on an annual basis for the guarantee services provided by
the related parties with reference to comparable transactions in the
market.

(vi)  The guarantee fees were based on 2.4% of the guaranteed
amounts on an annual basis for the guarantee services to the
related parties with reference to comparable transactions in the
market.

(viii)  In 2015, the related parties provided to the Group an entrustment
loan on banking facilities of RMB94,400,000 obtained by the
Group in the current year at an annual interest rate of 6.72%
and the Group recorded an interest expense of approximately
RMB2,159,000.

Other transactions with related parties:

In 2015, the Group disposed of a subsidiary, Honglin
International, to Jia Ya Developments Limited, a company
incorporated in the BVI and wholly owned by Mr. Chi, a
director and substantial shareholder of the Company by
then, at a consideration of approximately HK$232,805,000
(equivalent to RMB187,059,000). Further details of the
transaction are included in note 34(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Outstanding balances with related parties:
Details of the Group’s outstanding balances with its related
parties as at the end of the reporting period are disclosed
in notes 22, 23, 26, 27, 28, 36, 37 and 38 to the financial
statements.
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 40. BEAIRZRBERS (5
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(d) Compensation of key management personnel d) XEEFTESEASHH :

of the Group:

2015 2014
—E-RF —T-HF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

Salaries and other benefits e hEMET = 926
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes — RRIEFIET &40 = 45
- 971
During the year, the Company did not identify any FR - BRANDRESIN 0 NRABWESR
personnel as key management other than the directors of FAALTREZEERRE - EERERTH
the Company. Further details of directors’ and the chief ANBEHN 2 i — ISR B IS TR R =E
executive’s emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial 8o
statements.
The related party transactions in respect of items (a)(i) to (viii) above EXEQOE V) BzEEARGAERLES
are those transactions with the subsidiaries of Sumptuous Wealth IBEHSHR B ATHEITIZIRS - 2EX 5
after the Disposal. They also constitute connected transactions or MEKAER S HIFERERS(FERLETR
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the AIZE14AE)
Listing Rules.
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 4. BERESEHMITA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial WEARSEN SR TANREERT

instruments as at the end of the reporting period were as follows:

2015 ey -
Financial assets ERMEE

Available
for-sale
Loans and financial

receivables assets Total

EMK AHEEZ
PEW R IR THMEE #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARBT T

Available-for-sale investments AP ERE - 15,000 15,000
Financial assets included in FPATERFIR - e REA
prepayments, deposits and JEWGRIER & BhE B
other receivables 72,817 - 72,817
Trade and bills receivables B 5 REBRIGK 585,120 = 585,120
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRSEEY 192,120 - 192,120
Pledged deposits [REEEEEN 8,130 - 8,130
858,187 15,000 873,187
Financial liabilities SREE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
R AR
SR Z
ol iR
RMB’000
AR®T R
Trade and bills payables B 5 NEE RN 390,229
Financial liabilities included in FTAHEAMENRIERER B A
other payables and accruals ZeHBE 84,411
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTRRITREMEE 41,276
515,916
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 41. RERE 2SI A
(Continued)
2014 —E—-NE
Financial assets ERMEE

Available
Loans and for-sale

receivables  financial assets

ERE AHHE
R SEAE +
RMB‘000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ~ ARMTE  ARMTR

Available-for-sale investments AR ERE - 15,000 15,000
Financial assets included in FFATERRUE - Be &
prepayments, deposits and HAbERRIEN SR E E
other receivables 131,023 - 131,023
Trade and bills receivables EENES Y TGN 1,260,905 - 1,260,905
Cash and cash equivalents ReLHREEEY 169,950 - 169,950
Pledged deposits BTN 23,985 - 23,985
1,585,863 15,000 1,600,863
Financial liabilities SREE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
REESHA AN
R 2
CHAE
RMB’000
ARETIT
Trade and bills payables B 5 MREBEEMNR 867,044
Financial liabilities included in T AE MR RIB KRBT E A
other payables and accruals ZeBBE 30,918
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTRRITRAMEBEER 489,421
1,387,383
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42.

43.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables, financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits and other receivables, pledged deposits,
trade and bills payables, financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term
maturities of these instruments.

The Group's corporate finance team headed by the finance manager
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the
fair value measurement of financial instruments. The corporate
finance team reports directly to the chief executive officer. At each
reporting date, the corporate finance team analyses the movements
in the values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation, if any. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the chief executive officer.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings and cash and cash equivalents.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the
Group's operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade and bills receivables, trade and bills
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

It is, and has been throughout the year under review, the Group’s
policy that trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken with
due care.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s United States dollar and RMB debt
obligations with floating interest rates.

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest costs using a mix of
fixed and floating rate debts with respect to the prevailing interest
rate environment. The Group mitigates the risk by monitoring
closely the movements in interest rates and reviewing its banking
facilities regularly. The Group has not used any interest rate swap to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 43. BIEEREEBERBER #)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued) R == b ()
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group's TR E B B RDG R A = 8 AR EDF
profit before tax and equity in response to changes in interest rates BETMAREEBOF RE)(Fre L
of the Group’s floating rate United States dollar and RMB debts (with M) NBRVE -

all other variables held constant).

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in profit (decrease)
interest rate  before tax in equity*

MEEH/  BRBIADEF En

(Fk) i,/ CRd) #i, CRd)*
basis points RMB’'000 RMB’'000
EE ARBTR AR®TxR

2015 —E-HF

HK$ debts BILER 100 (123) =
RMB debts ARBEER 100 (290) =
HK$ debts BILER (100) 123 =
RMB debts AREEET (100) 290 =
2014 —E_mE

US$ debts ELEE 100 (342) -
RMB debts ARBEET 100 (3,522) -
US$ debts EILEE (100) 342 -
RMB debts ARBEER (100) 3,522 -

* Excluding retained profits S TEt RARBHF
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other
than the units’ functional currencies. The Group assesses the
respective exposures of each of its operating units.

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the holding of monetary assets
and liabilities and entering into transactions denominated in foreign
currencies which will affect the Group’s financial position and
performance as a result of a change in foreign currency exchange
rates. At the end of the reporting period, certain trade receivables,
pledged deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables
and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of the Group
denominated in or linked to foreign currencies, details of which
are set out in the respective notes, exposing the Group to foreign
currency risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s
profit before tax and equity in response to changes in exchange
rates (with all other variables held constant) to which the Group
had significant exposure.

2015 —E-Ff
If HK$ weakens against RMB MEBATH ARKEHES
If HK$ strengthens against RMB B 7S H A R o208
2014 —=-mg

If US$ weakens against RMB MEEITHEAREHEIS
If US$ strengthens against RMB (HEZESM N3 LT

hd Excluding retained profits
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3. IEREERERBE®)

SN LB

AEEERD L FEEBRR - ZFERKE
REBMAZEMNNIEEB NI TR ETT
HIHE SRS - AREFEBLLEMARER

SNERBRAFBEEREERAR - WASNESH
B RZHRAR - BRINSEXZEHTER
SEMMBIRRERR - RMEHMK - AKE
AETESRKEA CEAER R kB
EEY  BHENRBN R BRITREM
fEEAEINE R - ZFRBGUINEHER
EHNE RN - FFBEARRMEE o

T 5% 03117852 AT A S
BEAELSDER (A LB UG TE
FOBURE o

Increase/
increase in (decrease)
exchange in profit
rate  before tax

ME  BREADEF s
(F¥R)/LF % Cr) #i CEd)*

% RMB’000 RMB’000

Aok AR¥ETR ARETR

(Decrease)/

Increase/
(decrease)
in equity*

(10%) 2,582 =
10% (2,582) =
(10%) (598) =
10% 598 =

© THRRBUHF
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43.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. For
transactions that are not denominated in the functional currency of
the relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer credit terms
without the specific approval of the head of credit control.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise
cash and cash equivalents, available-for-sale investments, certain
other receivables, arises from default of the counterparties with
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties, collateral is usually not required. Concentrations of credit
risk are managed by customer/counterparty, by geographical region
and by industry sector. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group had certain concentrations of credit risk as 67% (2014: 33%)
of the Group’s trade receivables were due from three customers
(2014: one), within the communication system segment.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are set out in note 22 to
the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables)
and projected cash flows from operations.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk rests with the board of
directors of the Company, which has built an appropriate liquidity
risk management framework for the management of the Group'’s
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. Having considered the forthcoming business plan,
the Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate banking
facilities and continuously monitoring working capital forecast
and actual cash flows. Should there be any significant change in
banking facilities available, the Group will adjust the working capital
forecast and business plan accordingly to maintain its liquidity.
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 43. MIBREREEEERBR @)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) TEN MRS ()
Other than endorsed bills with full recourse which were BREWAEER IERARMSEETHBHRRE
derecognised by the Group and discussed elsewhere in these il EEEZER (WA 2REEBRE)
consolidated financial statements, the following tables detail the G FRFMBIEHBEEXBRER 2 AEFIE
Group's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative PTESRBBEZHR TALEIEA -

financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms.

The maturity profile of the Group'’s financial liabilities as at the end BBESHARTERNK  AEESRABEERS
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted HIRMEI BT
payments, was as follows:

Less than 3to0 12
On demand 3 months months Total
REXEE =@EANT =Z+={8A Foh

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR

Trade and bills payables BHRERENT 25,260 67,623 297,346 390,229

Finandial liabilities included in other STAEMERNTIER
payables and accruals EtERzeRARE 5,010 1,607 77,79 84,411
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings HERTRAMEE - 7,233 35,129 42,362
30,270 76,463 410,269 517,002

Less than 31012
On demand 3 months months Total

REREE =EART  =ET @A 5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTT ARETT

Trade and bills payables BHREBENK 157,441 307,684 401,919 867,044

Financial liabilities included in other STAEMEAFER
payables and accruals EAEBRAZEREE 7,687 23,231 - 30,918
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings HERTREMEE - 252,750 260,494 513,244
165,128 583,665 662,413 1,411,206
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43.

44,

45.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its businesses and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2015 and
31 December 2014.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings divided by the total assets.
The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as
follows:

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

Total assets BEE

Gearing ratio BAREEHE

AHESRITRAEMEE

43,

BEEREERERBE®)

EXxERE
AEEEAERENTEARRREAEE AR
BREFNAEBELEUNRBHRRENERY
R PXFEEBNERBREBRAL

7 52 (5] (A i A A 5 O B A4 R 4B R A O L P
REREBEENEEUWHHEL TR - B
HAREALEE  AEETARMKRRIRERN
BRE - MBRRREBRALBEITHRGD - AEE
WHESZ B E NN ERERKFRR - B
HEZZ—hAF+-A=+—RHK=Z—NF
+TZA=+—RHLFE WEHEEEANE
1 - BURSEFER (k) -

AREBERAEARE B X (AIAFT BRITREAM
EERABEEFEZLR)ERER - REH
ROERBBELEMT ¢

2015 2014
—E-RF —FT-HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREETTT
41,276 489,421
1,720,391 2,429,885
2.4% 20%

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 24 March 2016, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to acquire the
entire interest in Yao Neng Developments Limited and its
subsidiaries, which are principally engaged in the provision of
online service platform in the PRC. The purchase consideration
of HK$400,000,000 (equivalent to RMB335,872,000) for the
acquisition was in the form of cash.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

The consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2014 has been represented as if the operation
discontinued during the current year had been discontinued at the
beginning of 2014 (note 11).
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 46. 741 TEIBAIR R
COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

BRAARBNHRERROMBMARRENE R

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: N
2015 2014
—E-RE —T—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHEBARIRE 850,693 469,065
Total non-current assets ERBEERTE 850,693 469,065
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  JBHFUE « #&& M H &Y FKIA 313 416
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B B A R FIE 10,818 202,412
Cash and cash equivalents Re MRS EEY 6,171 36
Total current assets MENEERT 17,302 202,864
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERHTB A RFIA 22,327 28,651
Other payables and accruals H AP RE KR ERTE A 77,976 419
Tax payable FEREER 5,997 5,997
Total current liabilities mEAERT 106,300 35,067
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS REF(EE)BE (88,998) 167,797
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EERADEE 761,695 636,862
Net assets FEE 761,695 636,862
EQUITY L 3
Issued capital BEITIRA 104,732 97,401
Reserves T 656,963 539,461
Total equity 4R EE 761,695 636,862
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 46. RA BB T #)

COMPANY (Continued)
Note: Hiat -
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RARIRBEZRENT

Foreign Retained

currency profits/
Share Treasury Capital translation (accumulated

premium shares reserve reserve losses) Total
REBRH,

RARE EFRSG BARE EifE (REER) st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARBTT ARETRT ARETT ARBTrT ARET:

Balance at 1 January 2014 R-ZE—NE—A[—H
ko3 429,549 - 106,715 - 21,555 557,819
Loss and total comprehensive loss A E1E K& 2 EE 18
for the year okl - - - 3,553 (21,911) (18,358)
At 31 December 2014 RZZ—MmE
+=-A=+—H 429,549 - 106,715 3,553 (356) 539,461
Share repurchased BRI - (149,203) - - - (149,203)
Cancellation of shares repurchased #4838 [01i% 15 (142,440) 149,203 - - - 6,763
Profit and total comprehensive FERIZENZBE
income for the year - - - (3,424) 25,412 21,988
Issue of shares BIIRG 237,979 - - - - 237,979
Share issue expense FITRA R (25) - - - - 25
At 31 December 2015 RZZT—hF
+-A=+—8 525,063 - 106,715 129 25,056 656,963
47. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47. #HEEMBIHRK
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by BTN "F- A=+ HLERBET]
the board of directors on 30 March 2016. BRI FERE o
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